
May 09, 2024 

To, 

The Corporate Relations Department, 

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, 

Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051 

The Corporate Relations Department, 

Department of Corporate Services, 

BSE Limited, 

25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai − 400001 

Re: Script Symbol “NXST”, Scrip Code 543913 

Scrip Code for NCDs: 974908 and 974909, Scrip Code for CPs: 726784 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Subject: Outcome of the Board Meeting of Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited, Manager 

to Nexus Select Trust held on May 09, 2024. 

We wish to inform you that the Board of Directors of Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

(“NSMMPL”) (previously known as Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited), Manager 

to Nexus Select Trust (“Trust”), at its Meeting held on Thursday, May 09, 2024, , has inter-alia: 

(i) Approved the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Audited Condensed

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust for the quarter, half year and financial year

ended March 31, 2024, and has noted the Auditor’s Report thereon (together referred to as

“Audited Financial Statements”);

(ii) Declared distributions of ₹3167.87 million (Indian Rupees Three Thousand One Hundred Sixty

Seven point Eight Seven million only) / ₹2.091 (Indian Rupees Two point Zero Nine One only)

per Unit for the quarter ended March 31, 2024. The distribution comprises ₹760.53 million

(Indian Rupees Seven Hundred Sixty point Five Three million only) / ₹0.502  (Indian Rupees

Zero point Five Zero Two only) per Unit in the form of interest (less applicable taxes, if any),

₹1,625.60 million (Indian Rupees One Thousand Six Hundred Twenty Five point Six Zero

million only) / ₹1.073 (Indian Rupees One point Zero Seven Three only) per Unit in the form

of dividend, ₹15.15 million  (Indian Rupees Fifteen point One Five million only) / ₹0.010

(Indian Rupees Zero point Zero One Zero only), per unit in the form of other income and

₹766.59 million (Indian Rupees Seven Hundred Sixty Six point Five Nine million only) / ₹0.506

(Indian Rupees Zero point Five Zero Six only) per unit in the form of repayment of SPV level

debt, to those who are the Unitholders of the Trust as on Friday, May 17, 2024 (“Record Date”);

and

(iii) Declared Net Asset Value of ₹144.61 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Forty Four point Six One

only) per Unit for the Trust as at March 31, 2024 as per Regulation 10(22) of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, based on the Gross

Asset Value derived in the Valuation Report dated May 9, 2024, issued by iVAS Partners,

Valuer represented by Mr. Vijay Arvindkumar C, Partner.



A copy of the Audited Financial Statements along with the reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon and 

Security Cover Certificate in compliance with SEBI Circular bearing reference no. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_CRADT/CIR/P/2022/6 dated May 19, 2022, read with Regulation 54 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are enclosed as Annexure I and II 

respectively. 

Please note that in accordance with the paragraph 4.9 of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-

2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023, the summary of audited financial statements of NSMMPL for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024, is included in Annexure I. 

In terms of Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a declaration regarding unmodified opinion in the Audit Reports of the 

Trust for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is enclosed as Annexure III 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018, read with 

paragraph 4.18 of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023, 

there is no material deviations, in the use of proceeds of issue of debt securities by the Trust and has been 

adequately disclosed in the Financial Results. 

The documents referred to above shall also be uploaded on the Website of the Trust at 

https://www.nexusselecttrust.com/ 

Further, pursuant to BSE Circular bearing reference no. 20230315-41 dated March 15, 2023, and NSE 

Circular bearing reference no. NSE/CML/2023/20, dated March 15, 2023, only the Audited Financial 

Statements and Auditor’s Reports of the Trust for the quarter, half year and financial year ended March 31, 

2024, have been enclosed with this outcome.  

The Press release, Earnings Presentation and Summary Valuation Report will be uploaded separately. 

We also wish to inform you that the record date for the distributions to Unitholders for the quarter ended 

March 31, 2024, will be Friday, May 17, 2024, and the payment of distribution will be made on or before 

Friday, May 24, 2024.  

The meeting commenced at 02:30 Hrs IST and concluded at 04:25 Hrs IST. 

You are requested to take the same on record. 

Thanking you, 

For and on behalf of Nexus Select Trust acting through its Manager, Nexus Select Mall Management 

Private Limited (Previously known as “Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited”) 

Charu Patki 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Membership No. A18140 

https://www.nexusselecttrust.com/


SR BC & COLLP 12th Floor, The RulJy 
29 Senapati Bapal Marg 
Dadar (West) Chartered Accountants 
Mumbai - 400 028, India 

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000 

Independent Auditor's Report on Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Nexus Select Trust 

To 
The Board of Directors of 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 
(formerly known as Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited) (the "Manager") 
in its capacity as Manager of Nexus Select Trust (the "Trust"), 
501 B Wing, Embassy 247, 
LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai 400083. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying condensed standalone Ind AS financial statements of Nexus Select Trust 
(the "Trust"), which comprise the condensed standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the condensed 
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income, the condensed standalone 
Cash Flow Statement for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024, the condensed standalone 
Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Statement of Net Assets at 
Fair Value as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the year ended March 31, 2024, 
the Standalone Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the Trust for the quarter, half year and 
year ended March 31, 2024 and notes to the condensed standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as 
the "Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements") being prepared by the Manager pursuant to the 
requirements of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ("REIT Regulations"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Condensed 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements: 

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of the REIT Regulations in this regard; and
ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim

Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with the REIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the Trust as at March 31, 2024, its profit
including other comprehensive income and its cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended March
31, 2024, the changes in unitholder's equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, its net assets at fair value
as at March 31, 2024, its total returns at fair value for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the NDCFs of
the Trust for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI''). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Trust 
in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the ICAI and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
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Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 2.1 which describes the Basis of preparation of the Condensed Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements and Note 14 which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of 
compound financial instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Management of the Manager (the "Management") is responsible for the preparation of these Condensed 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position as at March 31, 
2024, financial performance including other comprehensive income and cash flows for the quarter, half year and 
year ended March 31, 2024, changes in unitholder's equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, its net assets at 
fair value as at March 31, 2024, its total returns at fair value for the year ended March 31, 2024 and net 
distributable cash flows of the Trust for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024, in accordance 
with the requirements of the REIT Regulations, Indian Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial 
Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the 
REIT Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Management is responsible for 
assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Trust's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going

concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

(i) The Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements includes the figures for the quarter ended March

31, 2024 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended

March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the current

financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us.

(ii) The Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements includes the figures for the half year ended March

31, 2024 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended

March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the second quarter of the current

financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us.

Our opinion on the Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of these 

matters. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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(b) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity, Statement of Net

Assets at Fair Value, Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash

Flows of the Trust dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles

generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations.

For s R B C & co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

Partner 

Membership Number: 112773 

UDIN: 24112773BKCUOH2340 

Mumbai 

May 9, 2024 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Standalone Balance Sheet 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

Financial assets 

• Investments

- Loans

- Other financial assets

Non-current tax assets (net) 

Current assets 

Financial assets 

- Investments

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Other bank balances

- Loans

- Other financial assets

Other current assets 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 

Corpus 

Unit capital 

Other equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings

- Other financial liabilities

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings

- Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SR BC 8: CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 09, 2024 

Note 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

141,215.81 

28,707.42 

708.47 

2.52 

170,634.22 

1,933.08 

520.16 

0.11 

1,347.76 

290.00 

4,091.11 

174 725.33 

0.10 

150,950.21 

1,358.83 

152,309.14 

21,308.37 

80.42 

21,388.79 

932.00 

0.59 

7.96 

76.48 

10.37 

1,027.40 

22,416.19 

174,725.33 

As at 

March 31, 2023, 

(Audited) 

0.10 

264.96 

186.00 

451.06 

451.06 

0.10 

(29.51) 

(29.41) 

0.05 

480.42 

480.47 

480.47 

451.06 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

(as Manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

Tuhin Parikh 

Director 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 09, 2024 

Chief 

Executive Officer 

DIN : 00217255 
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Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Income 
Dividend income 
Interest income 
Other income 

Expenses 
Valuation expenses 
Audit fee 
Investment management fees 
Trustee fee 
Other expenses 

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Profit/(Loss) before tax 
Tax expense: 

Current tax 
Deferred tax (credit) / charge 

Profit/(Loss) for the period/year 
Other comprehensive income 
Items that wilt not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Re-measurement gain / (loss) on defined benefits obligations 
Income tax relating to above item 

Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the period/year 
Total comprehensive income for the period/year 

Earnings per unit 
Basic 
Diluted 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

Note 

22 
23 

25 

24 

26 

27 

2 

For the quarter ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the quarter ended 
For the quarter ended March 311 2023 

December 31, 2023 (Audited) (Unaudited) 
(Refer note 41) (Unaudited) (Refer note 41) 

1,646-81 1,618.60 
1,386.19 1,432.00 

21.22 34.83 
3,054.22 3,085.43 

1.13 
1.16 0.90 0_05 

31-68 30-76 
0.50 0.39 0.52 

23.97 20.30 28.94 
58.44 52.35 29.51 

2,995.78 3,033.08 (29.51) 
455.99 459.75 

2,539.79 2,573.33 (29.51) 

20.80 

20.80 
2,518.99 2,573.33 (29-51) 

2,518.99 2,573.33 (29.51) 

1.66 1.70 Not Applicable 
1.66 1.70 Not Applicable 

,./-,'(, :·-�c1:
-::; / - :; i 

For the half year ended 
For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
(Audited) September 30, 2023 

(Unaudited) 
(Refer note 41) (Unaudited) (Refer note 41 ) 

3,265.41 2,809.64 
2,818.19 1,801.34 

56.05 18.00 
6,139.65 4,628.98 

1-13 3.50 
2.06 1.80 0.05 

62.44 44.75 
0.89 0.85 0.52 

44.27 146.13 28.94 
110. 79 197.03 29.51 

6,028.86 4,431.95 (29.51) 
915.74 585.17 

5,113.12 3,846.78 (29.51) 

20.80 

20.80 
5,092.32 3,846.78 (29.51) 

5,092.32 3,846.78 (29.51) 

3.36 3.27 Not Applicable 
3.36 3.27 Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

'"�"·" 
Tuhin Parikh 
Director 

� _/ 
::�t 

DIN: 00544890 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

Executive Officer 
DIN : 00217255 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

For the year ended 
For the period 

August 10, 2022 to March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
(Audited) (Audited) 

6,075.05 
4,619.53 

74.05 
10,768-63 

4.63 
3_86 0.05 

107.19 
1.74 0.52 

190.40 28.94 
307.82 29.51 

10,460.81 (29.51) 
1,500.91 

8,959.90 (29.51) 

20.80 

20.80 
8,939.10 (29.51) 

8,939_ 10 (29.51) 

6.64 Not Applicable 
6.64 Not Applicable 

/71 
-�r.�

Rajesh Dea 
cfoef Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Finance costs 

Interest income 

Loss / (Gain) on Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments at FVTPL 

Gain on sale of financial assets classified at FVTPL 

Liabilities written back 

Dividend income 

Operating cash flow before work;ng capital changes 

Changes in working capital: 

Other financial assets (non-current and current) 

Other assets (non-current and current) 

Trade payables 

Financial liabilities (non-current and current) 

Other liabilities (non-current and current) 

Net cash flow generated from / (used in) operating activities before taxes 

Income taxes paid 
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities 

(Purchase) / Proceeds from sale of investments (net) 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures of SPV 

Investment in redeemable preference shares and equity shares of SPV 

Inter-corporate deposits given (net) 

(Investment in) I Redemption of other bank balances 

Interest received 

Dividend received 
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds towards initial corpus 

Proceeds from issue of units 

Expenses incurred towards intial public offerings 

Proceeds from non-current borrowings excluding debentures (net of processing fees) 

Repayment of non-current borrowings (excluding debentures) 

Proceeds from issue of debentures (net of processing fees) 

Proceeds from issue of short term borrowings (net of processing fees) 

Distribution to unit holders 

Interest paid 
Net cash flow generated from I (used in) financing activities 

For the quarter ended 

March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 

(Refer note 41) 

2,539.79 

455.99 
(1,386.19) 

(1.22) 

(20.00) 

(1,646.81) 

(58.44) 

(5.39) 

7.42 

(31.34) 

(62.52) 

0.83 

(149.44) 
(4.55) 

(153.99) 

(418.67) 

474.82 

(0.11) 

1,029.35 

1,646.81 

2,732.20 

(49.16) 

931.19 

(3,029.89) 

(449.05) 

(2,596.91) 

For the quarter ended 
For the quarter ended 

December 31, 2023 
March 31

: 
2023 

(Unaudited) 
(Unaudited) 

(Refer note 41) 

2,573.33 (29.51) 

459.75 
(1,432.00) 

2.46 

(37.29) 

(1,618.60) 

(52.35) (29.51) 

(0.79) 

0.44 

(13.86) 0.05 

(22.63) 29.46 

9.41 

(79.77) 
(2.53) 

(82.30) 

1,901.84 

19.99 

83.16 

1,367.97 

1,618.60 

4,991.56 

(7.31) 

(3.28) 
(90.00) 

(0.05) 

(4,520.76) 

(445.03) 

(5,066.43) 

For the half year ended 
For the half year ended 

For the half year ended 
For the year ended 

For the period 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 August 10, 2022 to 

(Audited) 
September 30, 2023 

(Unaudited) 
March 31, 2024 

March 31, 2023 

(Refer note 41 ) 
(Unaudited) 

(Refer note 41 ) 
(Audited) 

(Audited) 

5,113.12 3,846.78 (29.51) 8,959.90 (29.51) 

915.74 585.17 1,500.91 
(2,818.19) (1,801.34) (4,619.53) 

1.24 (3.16) (1.92) 

(57.29) (3.23) (60.52) 

(11.61) (11.61) 

(3,265.41) (2,809.64) (6,075.05) 

(110.79) (197.03) (29.51) (307.82) (29.51) 

(6.18) 263.96 257.78 

7.86 10.43 18.29 

(45.20) 53.70 0.05 8.50 0.05 

(85.15) (212.36) 29.46 (297.51) 29.46 

10.24 0.13 10.37 

(229.22) (81.17) (310.39) 
(7.08) (16.24) (23.32) 

(236.30) (97.41) (333.71) 

1,483.17 (3,353.81) (1,870.64) 

(3,365.02) (3,365.02) 

(270.00) (270.00) 

494.81 (30,549.99) (30,055.18) 

83.05 (170.66) (87.61) 

2,397.32 1,315.56 3,712.88 

3,265.41 2,809.64 6,075.05 

7,723.76 (33,584.28) (25,860.521 

0.10 

14,000.00 14,000.00 

(56.47) (493.32) (549.79) 

(3.28) 12,366.20 12,362.92 
(90.00) (910.00) (1,000.00) 

(0.05) 9,907.61 9,907.56 

931.19 931.19 

(7,550.65) (7,550.65) 

(894.08) (492.86) (1,386.94) 

(7,663.34) 34,377.63 26,714.29 0.10 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period /year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period /year (refer note 8) 

Note: 

For the quarter ended 
March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 
(Refer note 41 ) 

(18.70) 
538.86 

520.16 

For the quarter ended 
For the quarter ended 

March 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 
(Unaudited) 

(Unaudited) (Refer note 41 ) 

(157.18) 

6%.04 0.10 
538.86 0.10 

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows". 

Summary of s1gnificant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For S R B C & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm registration number: 32498ZE/E300003 

�·-� 
Partner�

1 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

For the half year ended 
For the half year ended 

For the half year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Audited) 
September 30, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

(Refer note 41) 
(Unaudited) 

(Refer note 41 ) 

(175.88) 695.94 

696.04 0.10 0.10 
520.16 696.04 0.10 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Tuhin Parikh 
Director 

DIN: 00544890 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

� Director and Chief 
Executive Officer 
DIN : 00217255 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

For the year ended 
For the period 

August 10, 2022 to March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
(Audited) 

(Audited) 

520.06 0.10 
0.10 

520.16 0.10 

-�. l -
esh Oeo 
ef Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Corpus
Particulars

Balance as on August 1 O, 2022 
Corpus received during the period (refer note 31) 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Movement during the year (refer note 31) 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

B. Unit Capital
Particulars

Balance as on April 01, 2023 
Units issued during the year 
- pursuant to the initial public offer, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up in cash (refer note 14(i))
- in exchange for equity interest, redeemable prefrence shares and compulsory convertible

debentures of SPVs and joint venture (refer note 1)
Less : Units issue expenses (refer note 14) 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

C. Other Equity 
Particulars

Balance as on August 10, 2022 

Loss for the period 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Add : Profit for the year 
Less : Distribution to unitholders 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 

Partner 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

2 

Units 

140,000,000 
1,375,000,000 

1,515,000,000 

Rs. Million 

0.10 
0.10 

0.10 

Rs. Million 

14,000.00 
137,500.00 

(549.79) 
150,950.21 

Rs. Million 

(29.51) 
(29.51) 

8,939.10 
(7,550.76) 
1,358.83 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

(as Manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

Tuhin Parikh 
Director 

Place Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

� Director and Chief 
Executive Officer 
DIN : 00217255 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Al Standalone statement of Net Assets at Fair Value INAVl 

Particular 

(A) Total Assets 
(B) Total Liabilities 
(C) Net Assets 

(D) No. of Units 
NAY [ (C)/(D)] 

Notes: 
Measurement of fair values 

As at March 31, 2024 
(Audited) 

Book value 
174,725.33 

22,416.19 
152,309.14 

1,515,000,000 
100.53 

Fair value 
241,497.05 

22,416.19 
219,080.86 

1,515,000,000 
144.61 

As at March 31, 2023 
(Audited) 

Book value 
451.06 
480.47 
(29.41) 

Fair value 
451.06 
480.47 
(29.41) 

Refer note 1 Refer note 1 

The fair value of investments in SPVs are computed basis the fair value of the underlying investment properties, investment properties under development, property, plant and equipment and capital work­
inprogress as at March 31, 2024 along with values of other assets and liabilities accounted in the respective SPY financial statements as at March 31, 2024.The fair value have been determined by independent 
external property valuers, having appropriately recognized professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. 

Valuation technique 

The valuers have followed a Discounted Cash Flow method. The valuation model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the 
expected rental growth rate, vacancy period, occupancy rate, average room rent, lease incentive costs and blended tariff rates. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount 
rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (primary vs secondary), tenant credit quality and lease terms. 

Notes: 
1. The Trust has issued units post March 31, 2023 and acquisition of SPVs / joint venture completed on May 12, 2023, hence the disclosures in respect of Net Asset Value (NAY) per Unit have not been 
disclosed as at March 31, 2023. 

2) Break up of Net Asset Value 

Particulars 

Fair value of investments in SPVs/lnvestments 
Other Assets 
Less : Liabilities 
Net Assets 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

238,042.71 
3,454.34 

22,416.19 
219,080.86 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

451.06 
480.47 
(29.41) 

3) The Trust holds investment in SPVs/lnvestment Entity which in turn hold the properties. Hence, the breakup of property wise fair values has been disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

B) Standalone statement of Total Returns at fair value 

Particulars 

(A) Total comprehensive income I (loss) 
(B) Add : Changes in fair value not recognised 
Total Returns C = (A+B) 

For the half year ended 
March 31, 2024 

5,092.32 
7,833.08 

12,925.40 

For the half year ended 
September 30, 2023 

3,846.78 
3,876.04 

7,722.82 

For the half year ended For the year ended For the period 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 August 10, 2022 to 
March 31, 2023 

(29.51) 8,939.10 (29.51) 
11,709.12 

(29.51) 20,648.22 (29.51) 

In the above statement, changes in fair value have been computed based on the difference in fair values of Investment Property, Investment property under development, Property, Plant & Equipment, 
Capital Work-in-progress from May 13, 2023 (May 12, 2023 being the date of acquisition for SPVs/ Joint venture) to March 31, 2024 adjusted for other assets / liabilities of the respective SPVs/lnvestment 
Entity. The fair values of the aforementioned assets as at March 31, 2024 and September 30, 2023 are solely based on the valuation report of the independent valuer appointed under the REIT Regulations. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 

�, .... !7� Partner 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited M-,s.,=, .. ., 

Tuhin Parikh 
Director 

DIN: 005
0 

,-x_, '
Raj<{/h:fi!o 
Chief Fina ial Officer 

Place: Mum· ai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

zf?� 
��ga� 

Executive Officer 
DIN : 00217255 

Chief 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22·23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

S.No Particulars 

1 Cash flows received from Asset SPVs and Investment Entity in the form of : 
Interest 
Dividends /net of applicable taxes) 
Repayment of Shareholder Debt 
Proceeds from buy-backs / capital reduction (net of applicable taxes) 
Redemption proceeds of preference shares or other similar instruments 

2 Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs and Investment Entity 
adjusted for the following: 

Applicable capital gains and other taxes 
Related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
Directly attributable transaction costs 
Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested (directly or indirectly) as permitted under REIT 

3 Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs and Investment Entity not 
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as permitted under REIT Regulations, if such proceeds 
are not intended to be invested subsequently 

4 Add: Any other income at the Nexus Select Trust level and not captured herein 

5 Less: Any other expense at the Nexus Select Trust level, and not captured herein (to the extent not paid 
through debt or equity) 

6 Less: Any payment of expenses, including but not limited to: 
Trustee fees 
REIT Management Fees 
Valuer fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Trademark license fees 
Secondment fees 

7 Less: Debt servicing, to the extent not paid through debt or equity 
Including Principal, interest, redemption premium etc. of external debt at the Nexus Select Trust 
Including repayment of external debt or interest at the Asset SPY levels to meet guarantor 
obligations, if any 

8 Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the standalone Nexus Select Trust level 

9 Add/(Less): Other adjustments including changes in working capital 
NDCF 

Notes: 

For the quarter ended 
March 31, 2024 

(Audited) 
(Refer note 41) 

1,027.48 
1,646.81 

777.75 

21.87 

(9.20) 

(0.50) 
(31.68) 

(1.13) 
34.48 

ID.JOI 

(252.57) 

(4.55) 

140.59) 
3,167.87 

For the quarter ended For 
::r::

i
: r,e;�;;

ded 

December 31, 2023 (Audited) (Unaudited) (Refer note 41) 

1,366.16 
1,618.60 

344.34 

39,11 

16.26) 

10.39) 
(30.76) 

(13.16) 

ID.JOI 

1273.25) 

12.53) 

(11.56) 
3,030,00 

2,393.64 
3,265.41 
1,122.09 

60.98 

(15.46) 

10.89) 
162.44) 

(1.13) 

21.32 

(0.60) 

(525.82) 

(7.08) 

(52.15) 
6,197.87 

For the period ended For the period ended 

September 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 
(Unaudited) (Audited) 

1,301.77 
2,809.64 

450.69 

17.02 

(19.38) 

(0.85) 
144.75) 

(3.50) 
(37.87) 

10.46) 

(16.24) 

64.69 
4,520.76 

3,695,41 
6,075.05 
1,572.78 

78.00 

[34.841 

11.74) 
(107.19) 

14.63) 
(16.55) 

(1.06) 

(525.82) 

(23.32) 

12.54 
10,718.63 

1 The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in its meeting held on May 09, 2024 , have declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 2.091 per unit which aggregates to Rs 3,167.87 million. The distributions of Rs 2.091 per unit comprises Rs 
0.502 per unit in the form of interest, Rs. 1.073 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs. 0.010 per unit in the form of other income and the balance Rs 0.506 per unit in the form of amortization of debt. Along with distribution of Rs. 7,550.76 million/ 
Rs. 4.984 per unit for the period ended December 31, 2023, the cumulative distribution for the year ended March 31, 2024 aggregates to Rs. 10,718.63 million/Rs. 7.075 per unit. 

2 Since the Trust got listed on May 19, 2023 the comparative figures for year, half year and quarter ended March 31, 2024 are not applicable. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes form an integral Part of the condensed standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For S R  BC 8: CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
KAI Firm 324982E/E300003 

11oL..V7:}ll;l.J'-VJ� 

Partner 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

s Manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

Director Chief 
Executive Officer 

DIN: 00544890 DIN : 00217255 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 09, 2024 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

1. Trust Information

Nexus Select Trust ("the Trust") has been set up by Wynford Investments Limited (the

'Sponsor') on August 10, 2022 as an irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian

Trusts Act, 1882 pursuant to a Trust Deed dated August 10, 2022 ("Trust Deed"). The

registered office of the Trust is situated at Embassy 247, Unit no. 501, B Wing, LBS Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400083, Maharashtra.

The Trust was registered with SEBI on September 15, 2022, as a Real Estate Investment

Trust ('REIT') under Regulation 3(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real

Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, having registration number IN/REIT/22-

23/0004. The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and

the Manager for the Trust is Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited (the

'Manager'). The objectives of the Trust are to undertake activities in accordance with

the provisions of the REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of the

Trust is to own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in

India.

The Trust has acquired the SPVs and investment entity by acquiring all the equity

interest, Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs), Redeemable Preference Shares

(RPS) held by the Sponsor, Sponsor Group and certain other shareholders on May 12, 2023.

In exchange for these, the above holders have been allotted Units of the Trust. Units

were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock

Exchange (BSE) on May 19, 2023.

The condensed standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance

with a resolution passed by Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf the Trust on May

9, 2024.

Shareholding pattern of Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs)/Subsidiaries/ Investment Entity

of the Trust are as follows:

S. No Name of the Description of asset Shareholding 

1. 

2. 

3. 

SPV /Subsidiary 

Select Infrastructure 

Private Limited ('SIPL') . 

CSJ Infrastructure Private 

Limited ('CSJIPL') 

Westerly Retail 

Limited ('WRPL') 

with SIPL w.e. f. 

2023) 

Private 

(merged 

May 15, 

Nexus Select Citywalk located 100% 

at Delhi 

Nexus Elante, Hyatt Regency, 100% 

Chandigarh and Elante Office, 

located at Chandigarh 

Nexus Seawoods, located at 100% 

Navi Mumbai 

4.4 MW (AC) solar power 

project, located at Nagpur, 

which supplies electricity to 

Nexus Seawoods 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

4. Euthoria Developers Private

Limited ('EDPL')

Nexus Amritsar, 

Amritsar 

located at 100% 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail 

Private Limited ('NHRPL') 

Vijaya Productions Private 

Limited ('VPPL') 

Chitrali Properties Private 

Limited ('CPPL') 

Nexus Ahmedabad One, located 

at Ahmedabad 

4.175 MW (AC) hybrid 

project (wind and 

located at Rajkot, 

power 

solar) 

which 

supplies electricity to Nexus 

Ahmedabad One. 

Nexus Hyderabad, located at 

Hyderabad 

Nexus Koramangala, located at 

Bengaluru 

Nexus Vijaya and Vijaya 

Offices, located at Chennai 

Nexus Westend and 0. 3 msf of 

the Westend Icon Offices, 

located at Pune 

[Refer 

below] 

100% 

100% 

100% 

8. Safari Retreats Private Nexus Esplanade, which 100% 

Limited ('SRPL') includes an office space, 

located at Bhubaneshwar 

9. Nexus Shanti ni ketan Retail Nexus Shanti ni ketan, located at 100%

Private Limited ('NSRPL') Bengaluru

10. Nexusmalls Whitefield Nexus Whitefield and Oakwood 100% 

Private Limited ('NWPL') Residence Whitefield 

Bangalore, located at 

Bengaluru 

11 . Nexus Mangalore Retail Fiza by Nexus, located at 100% 

Private Limited ('NMRPL Mangaluru 

(Mangalore)') 

12. Nexus Udaipur Retail Nexus Celebration, located at 100% 

Private Limited ('NURPL') Udaipur 

13. Nexus Mysore Retail Private Nexus Centre City, located at 100%

Limited ('NMRPL (Mysore)') Mysuru 

14. Naman Mall Management Nexus Indore Central, located 100%

Company Private Limited at Indore 

('NMMCPL') 

15. Daksha Infrastructure 0. 7 msf of the Westend Icon 100%

Private Limited ('DIPL') Offices and 9. 7 MW of 

Renewables, located at Pune 

16. Mamadapur Solar Private Karnataka Solar Park

Limited ('MSPL')

100% 

Note 
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

17. Nexus South Mall Mall management service 

Management Private 

Limited ('NSMMPL') 

(merged with MSPL w.e.f. 

April 1, 2023) 

18. Indore Treasure Island Treasure Island Mall 

Private Limited ('ITIPL')

100% 

50% 

Note: As a part of formation transaction of the Trust, the Sponsor group entity has 

transferred 99 .45% equity to the Trust. For the remaining 0. 55%, the Sponsor group entity 

has agreed to sell its stake to the Trust at a fixed consideration of Rs. 100 million in 

accordance with the applicable law. As per the arrangement between the Trust and 

Sponsor group entity, the Trust have present access of ownership on the entire 100% 

equity of EDPL. Accordingly, investment in EDPL has been disclosed at 100% and 

consideration payable against the call option has been recognized as liability. 

2. Basis of Preparation and Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (hereinafter referred to as the 'Financial 

Statements' or 'SFS') has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real 

Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any 

guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. 

CIR/IMD/DF /146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (the "REIT Regulations"); Indian 

Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 

2(1 )(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent 

with the REIT regulations. 

The Financial Statements of the Trust comprises the Standalone balance sheet and 

Standalone statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024, the standalone 

Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Standalone 

Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows and a summary of 

material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the quarter, half year 

and year ended March 31, 2024, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' 

Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the Standalone statement of Total Returns 

at Fair Value for the half year and year ended March 31, 2024. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the Financial Statements have 

been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the accounting policies below. The 

accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the period presented in these 

Financial Statements. 

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to 

the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated. 

1/.::-;. ·:-;::.:-7�_�"'
:::::,.... 

,.i'<lf\age 
II '...---.. 
'/�"""' 

{__N._:_ 
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2.2 Operating cycle and basis of classification of assets and liabilities 

Current versus non-current classification 

The Trust presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non­
current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Trust has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 

2.3 Use of judgements and estimates 

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
in any future periods affected. 

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in 
the following notes: �=:::::-... 
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• Presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations
• Valuation of financial instruments
• Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment property
• Impairment and fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under

construction, Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress of the

SPVs/ Joint Venture

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 

relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected 

line item in the Financial Statements. 

2.4 Foreign currencies 

The Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is also the Trust's functional 

currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Trust 

operates. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Trust at their respective 

functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

However, for practical reasons, the Trust uses average rate if the average approximates 

the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 

functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are 

recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 

are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non­

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on 

translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 

recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 

differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are 

also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 

expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non­

monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the 

date on which the Trust initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary 

liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or 

receipts in advance, the Trust determines the transaction date for each payment or 

receipt of advance consideration. 
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2. 5 Fair value measurement

The Trust measures certain financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at

each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 

transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset

or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Trust. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 

participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 

best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 

highest and best use. 

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 

observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial 

Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring 

basis, the Trust determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 

hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value 

measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at 

fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for sale in 

discontinued operations. 
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At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets 
and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Trust's 
accounting policies. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Trust has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and 
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

2.6 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This 
inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment 
extends beyond normal credit terms. 

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably. 

Recognition of dividend and interest income 

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which 
Trust's right to receive payment is established. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The 'effective interest 
rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial 
asset. 

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets 
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is 
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial 
asset. 

2. 7 Taxes

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers 
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. 
The Trust shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using 
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method 
predicts better resolution of the treatment. 
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Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the 

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 

purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

The Trust offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a 
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation auth • • her the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
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intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant 
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered. 

2.8 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount of the obligation. When the Trust expects some or all of a provision to be 

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 

as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 

relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any 

reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 

current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 

recognised as a finance cost. 

2. 9 Operating segments

The objective of the Trust is to undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of 

the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of the Trust is to 

own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in India. 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager allocate the resources and assess the 

performance of the Trust, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). In 

accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting", the CODM 

monitors the operating results of the business. as a single segment, hence no separate 

segment needs to be disclosed. As the Trust operates only in India, no separate 

geographical segment is disclosed. 

2. 10 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 

will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events beyond the control of Trust or a present obligation that is not recognised because 

it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. 

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 

cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is 

not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial 

Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefit is remote. 

2. 11 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value 
through profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Trust's business model for managing them. 
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust initially 
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a 
significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical 
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as 
the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows 
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
irrespective of the business model. 

The Trust's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether 
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, 
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a 
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are 
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual 
cash flows and selling. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or sell 
the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four 
categories: 

• Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with

recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative

gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 

A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are 
met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments) 

A 'financial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as 
at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, 
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are 
recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets 
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon 
derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to profit or loss. 

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) 

Upon initial recognition, the Trust can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments 
as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition 
of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. 
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a 
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends 
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of 
payment has been established, except when the Trust benefits from such proceeds as a 
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded 
in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to 
impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair 
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the 
Trust had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed 
equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of 
payment has been established. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Trust's 
standalone balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Trust has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Trust has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, 
the Trust continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Trust's 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Trust also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the Trust has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Trust could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Trust recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Trust expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit 
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected 
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a 
lifetime ECL). 

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Trust applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Trust does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Trust has 
established a p ,-,,:;;:;:;=� ix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
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adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment. 

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Trust applies the low credit risk 
simplification. At every reporting date, the Trust evaluates whether the debt instrument 
is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that 
is available without undue cost or effort. 

It is the Trust's policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, 
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance 
will be based on the lifetime ECL. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two 
categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose 
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in 
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable 
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not 
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. The Trust has not designated any financial liability as at fair 
value through profit or loss. 
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings) 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Trust are those contracts that require a 
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified 
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair 
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss 
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount 
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in 
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115. 

De recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. 
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The senior 
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal 
changes which are significant to the Trust's operations. Such changes are evident to 
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Trust reclassifies 
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in 
business model. The Trust does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 

Original 
classification 

Amortised cost 

FVTPL 

Amortised cost 

FVTOCI 

FVTPL 

FVTOCI 

Revised 
classification 

FVTPL 

Amortised Cost 

FVTOCI 

Amortised cost 

FVTOCI 

FVTPL 

2. 12 Offsetting of financial instruments

Accounting treatment 

Fair value is measured at reclassification 
date. Difference between previous 
amortized cost and fair value is recognised 
in profit or loss. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes 
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is 
calculated based on the new gross carrying 
amount. 

Fair value is measured at reclassification 
date. Difference between previous 
amortised cost and fair value is recognised in 
OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes 
its new amortised cost carrying amount. 
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is 
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, 
the asset is measured as if it had always been 
measured at amortised cost. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes 
its new carrying amount. No other 
adjustment is required. 

Assets continue to be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss the reclassification date. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.13 Investment in SPVs 

The Trust has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with Ind 
AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements'. Investments in SPVs are reviewed for 
impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. 

2. 14 Unit Capital

Units issued by the Trust are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable 
to the issuance of units are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 
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2.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, 
cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2. 16 Distribution Policy

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to the 
unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows ('NDCF') of 
the Trust ("REIT Distributions"). The NDCF is calculated in accordance with the REIT 
Regulations and in the manner defined by the Manager. REIT Distributions shall be 
declared and made not less than once every six months in every financial year and shall 
be made not later than fifteen days from the date of such declaration. 

In terms of the REIT Regulations and NDCF framework prescribes the following minimum 
amount of NDCF to be distributed to the Trust: 
- not less than 90% of the NDCF of the SPVs are required to be distributed to the Trust,
in proportion to its shareholding in the SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

- 100% of the cash flows received by the Holding Company from the underlying SPVs are
required to be distributed to the Trust, and not less than 90% of the NDCF generated by
the Holding Company on its own shall be distributed to the Trust, subject to applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The aforesaid net distributable cash flows are made available to Trust in the form of (i) 
interest paid on Shareholder Debt, (ii) Repayment of Shareholder Debt, (iii) dividends 
(net of applicable taxes), (iv) Proceeds from buy-backs / capital reduction (net of 
applicable taxes) and (v) Redemption proceeds of preference shares or other similar 
instruments or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as 
may be permissible under the applicable law. 

2.17 Cash distribution to Unitholders 

The Trust recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the 
distribution is authorized. As per the REIT Regulations, a distribution is authorized when 
it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A corresponding amount is 
recognized directly in equity. 

2.18 Statement of net assets at fair value 

The disclosure of statement of Net Assets at Fair value comprises of the fair values of the 
properties held by SPVs/lnvestment Entity and the Holding Company as well as book 
values of the total liabilities and other assets of the Trust. The fair value of the property 
held by SPVs/lnvestment Entity and Holding Company are reviewed semi-annually taking 
into consideration market conditions existing at the reporting date, and other generally 
accepted market practices. 
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2.19 Statement of Cash flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Trust are segregated. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 
at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above, net 
of outstanding bank/book overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Trust's 
cash management. 

2. 20 Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit 
holders of the Trust by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the 
period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to unitholders of the Trust and the weighted average number of units 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units. 

2. 21 Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, share of net profits /
(losses) of investments accounted for using equity method, exceptional items and tax 
(EBITDA) 

The Trust has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. In its measurement, the Trust does not include 
finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and tax. 
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3 Non-current Investments 

Particulars 

Investment in shares of SPVs (At cost) (Unquoted) 

46,666,787 equity shares of CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid 

up (March 31, 2023: Nil) 

2,000,000, equity shares of Chitrali Properties Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid 

up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

1,311,065 equity shares of Safari Retreats Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 

(March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

2,301,722 equity shares of Euthoria Developers Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

2,600,000 equity shares of Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited of Rs.10 

each, fully paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

14,882 equity shares of Mamadapur Solar Private Limited of Rs.10 each fully paid up 

(March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

1,692,304 equity shares of Select Infrastructure Private Limited of Rs.100 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

4,608,163 equity shares of Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023: Nil) (Refer note 36(ii)) 

11,987,000 equity shares of Vijaya Productions Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid 

up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

2,016,071 equity shares of Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, 

fully paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) (Refer note 36(ii)) 

38,407,586 equity shares of Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

10,527,920 equity shares of Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

84,915,553 equity shares of Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited of Re.1 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

43,190,186 equity shares of Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited of Re.1 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

72,795 equity shares of Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited of Rs.100 each, fully paid 

up (March 31, 2023: Nil) 

Investment in shares of joint venture (Unquoted) 

10,409 equity shares of Indore Treasure Island Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid 

up (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

Investments in Redeemable Preference Shares (RPS) (Unquoted) 

At amortized cost 

630,053 RPS of Chitrali Properties Private Limited of Rs.100 each, fully paid up (March 

31, 2023 : Nil) 

9,360,000 RPS of Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully 

paid up (March 31, 2023: Nil) 

As at 

March 31 , 2024 

15,342.47 

5,155.64 

4,777.87 

16,270.11 

642.14 

1,794.62 

37,810.61 

13,572.74 

12,107.28 

2,338.48 

4,219.98 

3,725.00 

399.11 

376.07 

6,488.93 

2,059.31 

15.89 

8.54 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
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Particulars 

Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) (Unquoted) 

At amortised cost 

33,650,247 CCD of Select Infrastructure Private Limited, face value of Rs.100 each 

(March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

100,000,000 CCD of Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 

each (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

At Fair Value through Profit & Loss account (FVTPL) 

770,000,000 CCD of CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited, face value of Rs.10 each (March 

31, 2023 : Nil) 

102,980,019 CCD of Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited, face value of Rs.1 O each 

(March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

65,116,502 CCD (Class A) of Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited, face value of Rs.10 

each (March 31, 2023 : Nil) 

41,922,973 CCD (Class B) of Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited, face value of Rs.10 

each (March 31, 2023: Nil) 

Total 

Name of SPVs/joint venture 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited* 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

*Refer note 1

4 Loans - Non-current 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Unsecured, considered good 

Inter-corporate deposits to related parties (refer note 31) 

Total 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

3,365.02 

1,000.00 

7,700.00 

1,029.80 

651.17 

365.03 

141,215.81 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

Ownership Interest 

As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

50.00% 

As at 

March 31 , 2024 

28,707.42 
28,707.42 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
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5 Other non-current financial assets 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 
Unsecured, considered good 

Security deposits 
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity* 
Interest accrued 

- compulsorily convertible debentures (refer note 31)

- inter-corporate deposits (refer note 31) 
Total 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

1.00 
87.50 

123.43 
496.54 

708.47 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

* includes fixed deposits of Rs. 87. 50 millions (March 31, 2023: Nil) pertaining to debt service reserve account as lien against term loan. 

6 Tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Non-current 

Advance tax (net of provision for tax) 

Total 

7 Current Investments 

Particulars 

At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Investments in mutual funds 
Total 

8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Cheques on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current account
- in deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 
Total 

9 Other bank balances 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Earmarked balances with bank 

-Unclaimed distribution
Total 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

2.52 
2_52 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

1,933.08 
1,933.08 

As at 

March 31 , 2024 

438.61 

53.82 
27.73 

520.16 

As at 

March 31 , 2024 

0.11 
0.11 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.10 

0.10 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
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10 Loans - current 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Unsecured, considered good 

Inter-corporate deposits to related parties (refer note 31) 

Total 

11 Other current financial assets 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Unsecured, considered good 

Interest accrued on 

- bank deposits

- compulsorily convertible debentures (refer note 31)

- intercorporate deposits to related parties (refer note 31)

Other receivables

- issue expenses recoverable from selling unitholders (refer note 31)

- related parties (refer note 31)

Total 

12 Other current assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid expenses 

Unit issue expenses (to the extent not written off or adjusted) 

Total 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

1,347.76 
1,347.76 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

0.01 

70.00 

213.82 

6.17 

290.00 

As at 

March 31 , 2024 

As at 

March 31 , 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

264.96 

264.96 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

18.29 

167. 71

186.00 
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13 Corpus 

Particulars 
Balance as on August 10, 2022 

Corpus received during the period (refer note 31) 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Balance as on April 01, 2023 

Movement during the year (refer note 31) 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

14 Unit Capital 

Particulars 

Balance as on April 01, 2023 

Units issued during the year 

• pursuant to the initial public offer, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up in cash 

- in exchange for equity interest, redeemable preference shares and compulsory 

convertible debentures of SPVs and joint venture (refer note 1) 

Less : Units issue expenses (refer note below) 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Units 

140,000,000 

1,375,000,000 

1 515 000 000 

Note : Issue expenses pertaining to the Initial Public Offering have been reduced from the unit capital in accordance with fnd- AS-32 Financiaf fnstruments: Presentation. 

(a) Terms / rights attached to Units 

Rs. Million 

0.10 
0.10 

0.10 

0.10 

Rs. Million 

14,000.00 

137,500.00 

(549.79) 

150 950.21 

(i) The Trust has only one class of Unit. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote per unit.The Board of Directors of the Manager approves 

distribution. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distribution in Indian Rupees. 

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, the Trust is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each 

financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its Unitholders. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contain 

both equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32-Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS·PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 

06, 2023 issued under the REIT Regulations, the unit capital have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI master circular dated 

July 06, 2023 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is presented in Other Equity and not 

as finance cost. In line with the above. the distribution oavable to unit holders is recoenised as liabilitv when the same is aooroved bv the Manaeer. 

(ii) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date. Further the Trust has not issued 

any units for consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date, except as disclosed above. 

15 Other E uit 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 

As on August 10, 2022 

Less: Loss for the period 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Add: Profit for the year 

Add: Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

Less : Distribution to unitholders 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Nature and Purpose of reserves 

Retained earnings 

Rs. Million 

(29.51) 

29. 51 

8,939.10 

(7,550.76) 
1,358.83 

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of the period/year, the profit / loss after tax is transferred 

from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings. 
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16 Borrowings - Non-Current 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Term loans - secured (refer note (A)) 

From financial institutions 

Non Convertible Debentures (NCD) - secured (refer note (B)) 
Series 1- Tranche A - NCD 

Series 1 • Tranche B - NCD 

Total 

Notes 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

11,379.24 

6,951.64 

2,977.49 

21,308.37 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

(A) The Trust has obtained lease rental discounting Loan ('LRD Loan') of Rs. 12,500 million with a flexi hybrid loan of Rs. 1,000 millions as a sub­

limit of LRD Loan. LRD Loan carries interest rate of 8.40% p.a i.e. Repo Rate+ Spread. LRD Loan will be repaid in 156 months which includes 48

months as standstill period.

Security 

The LRD loan is secured against exclusive charge on immovable properties and lease receivables of Nexus Hyderabad Mall, Nexus Centre City

and 67. 95% of total buildup area of Nexus Koramangala Mall and corporate guarantee is provided by Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited

and Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited.

(B) The Trust has issued following redeemable non-convertible debentures:

Particulars 

No. of debentures 

Face Value (Rs.) 

Coupon Rate 

Tenure 

Redemption date 

Deemed date of Allotment 

Call Option 

The NCDs are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. 

Security 

Series 1 - Tranche A 

70,000 

100,000 

7. 86% per annum payable quarterly 

3 years 

June 16, 2026 

June 16, 2023 

30th month and 33rd month from 

Series 1 - Tranche B 

30,000 

100,000 

8% per annum payable quarterly 

5 years 

June 16, 2028 

June 16, 2023 

54th month and 57th month from 

Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. June Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. June 

16, 2023. 16 2023. 

The NCDs are secured against first ranking mortgage of immoveable assets - Select Citywalk Mall and first ranking hypothecation over the 

escrow account into which all cashflows of the mortgaged property will be deposited and hypothecation over all such cashflows (both present 

and future).Further, Corporate Guarantee is provided by Select Infrastructure Private Limited capped to the value of its mortgaged property. 
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17 Other non-current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

At amortised cost

Call option over non-controlling interest (refer note 1) 
Total 

18 Current borrowings 

Particulars 

Unsecured 

Commercial Paper (refer note below) 
Total 

Note

As at 

March 31, 2024 

80.42 
80.42 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

932.00 
932.00 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

On March 22, 2024, Nexus Select Trust issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 each, at a discount of 8.03% per annum to the 
face value. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will mature on February 20, 2025. 

19 Trade pa ables 

Particulars 

At amortised cost

Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Dues to others 
Dues to related parties (refer note 31) 

Total 

20 Other current financial liabilities 

Particulars 

At amortised cost

Interest accrued on term loan 
Unclaimed distributions 
Other liabilities 

- related parties (refer note 31)
- others

Total 

21 Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Total 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

0.59 

3.87 
4.09 
8.55 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

74.20 
0.11 

2.17 
76.48 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

10.37 
10.37 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.05 

0.05 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

480.42 

480.42 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
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22 Interest income 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

Interest income on 

bank deposits 1.88 1.76 
compulsory convertible debentures (refre note 31) 442. 95 471. 94 
inter corporate deposits to related parties (refere note 31) 940.55 957.48 
redeemable preference shares (refer note 31) 0.81 0.82 

Total 1,386.19 1,432.00 

23 Other income 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

Liabilities written back 
Gain/ (Loss) on fair valuation of financial Instruments at FVTPL 1.22 (2.46) 
Gain on sale of financial assets classified at FVTPL 20.00 37.29 
Total 21.22 34.83 

24 Finance costs 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

At amortised cost 

Interest expense on 

- term loan 250.82 253.80 
- non convertible debentures 203.28 205.92 
- commercial paper 1.88 

Bank charges 0.01 0.03 
Total 455.99 459. 75 

25 Other expenses 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

Legal and professional fees 7.54 11.51 16.84 
Rates and taxes 0.02 0.03 2.32 
Marketing and promotional expenses 1.02 0.30 6.49 
Travelling and conveyance 3.29 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation loss/ (gain) 0.17 
Provision for GST recoverable 14.89 7. 51 
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.51 0.78 
Total 23.97 20.30 28.94 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

3.64 13.86 
914.89 524.50 

1,898.03 1,261.77 
1.63 1.21 

2,818.19 1,801.34 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 September 30, 20 23 March 31, 2023 

11.61 
(1.24) 3.16 
57.29 3.23 
56.05 18.00 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 
March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

504.62 347.32 
409.20 237.50 

1.88 
0.04 0.35 

915.74 585.17 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 
March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

19.05 67.37 16.84 
0.05 12.99 2.32 
1.32 37.81 6.49 

0.04 3.29 
0.17 0.02 

22.40 26.71 
1.29 1.19 

44.27 146.13 28.94 

For the year ended 
For the period 

March 31, 2024 
August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

17.50 
1,439.39 
3,159.80 

2.84 
4,619.53 

For the year ended 
For the period 

March 31, 2024 
August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

11.61 
1.92 

60.52 
74.05 

For the year ended 
For the period 

March 31, 2024 
August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

851.94 
646.70 

1.88 
0.39 

1,500.91 

For the year ended For the period 
August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2024 
March 31, 2023 

86.42 16.84 
13.04 2.32 
39.13 6.49 

0.04 3.29 
0.18 

49.11 
2.48 

190.40 28.94 
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26 Income tax 

Statement of profit and loss section 

Particulars 

Current Income Tax 

Current income tax charge for the period/year 

Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

OCI Section 

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI: 

Particulars 

Statement to Other comprehensive income (CCI) 
Deferred tax related to items reco nised in OCI 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

20.80 20.80 

20.80 20.80 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

20.80 

20.80 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

Nexus Select Trust (the Trust") is a business trust registered under SEBI REIT Regulations, 2014. Hence, the interest and dividend received or receivable by the Trust is exempt from tax under section 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the "Act") and the rental income received or 

receivable is exempt from tax under section 10(23FCA) of the Act. Further, any expenditure incurred in relation to earning the exempt income is not tax deductible in view of the provisions of section 14A of the Act. The income of the Trust, other than exempt income, is chargeable to tax 

at the maximum marginal rates in force. 
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27 Earning per unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU is calculated by dividing the profits for the period/year attributable to unitholders of the Trust by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period/year. Diluted EPU is calculated by dividing the profits attributable to unit holders of the Trust by the 

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Particulars 

Profit and loss after tax 

Weighted average number of units 

Earnings per unit 

- Basic (Rupees/unit) 

- Diluted (Rupees/unit) 

For the quarter ended 

March 31, 2024 

2,518.99 

1,515,000,000 

1.66 

1.66 

For the quarter ended 

December 31, 2023 

2,573.33 

1,515,000,000 

1.70 

1.70 

For the quarter ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 

(29.51) 5,092.32 

Refer note 1,515,000,000 

Refer note 3.36 

Refer note 3.36 

Note: The Trust has issued units subsequent to March 31, 2023. Therefore the disclosures in respect of Earnings per unit is not applicable for the comparative periods presented. 

28 Investment Management fee 

REIT Management fee 

(Fi ures in ru ees million exce t number of units) 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the year ended 
For the period 

September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 
August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

3,846.78 (29.51) 8,939.10 (29.51) 

1,175,573,770 Refer note 1,345,286,885 Refer note 

3.27 Refer note 6.64 Refer note 

3.27 Refer note 6.64 Refer note 

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated August 10, 2022, Investment Manager is entitled to fees@ 1% of distributions (Refer note 31 ). The fees has been determined for undertaking management of the Trust and its investments. REIT management fees recognised during 

the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 amounts to Rs. 31.68 million and Rs. 107.19 million respectively. 

29 Secondment Fees 
Pursuant to the Secondment agreement dated April 27, 2023 the Manager is entitled to fees of Rs. 0.10 million per month in respect certain employees of the Manager being deployed to the Trust in connection with the operation and management of the assets of the Trust. The fees shall 

be subject to an escalation of five per cent every financial year for a period of five years. Secondment fees for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 amounts to Rs.0.30 million and Rs.1.06 million respectively. There are no changes during the year ended March 31, 2024 in the 

methodology for computation of secondment fees paid to the Manager. 
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30 Financial instruments • Fair value measurement 

A The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below: 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

At FVTPL 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures 

Investment in mutual fund 

At amortised cost 

Investment in redeemable preference shares 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures 

Loans and advances (current and non-current) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 

Other financial assets (current and non-current) 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

FVTPL 

Call option over non-controlling interest classified as other financial liability 

At amortised cost 

Borrowings including interest accrued 

Non-convertible debentures 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) 

Total 

Carrying Value 

March 31, 2024 

9,746.00 

1,933.08 

24.43 

4,365.02 

30,055.18 

520.16 

0.11 

998.47 

47 642.45 

80.42 

12,385.44 

9,929.14 

8.55 

2.27 

22 405.82 

Fair Value 

March 31, 2024 

9,746.00 

1,933.08 

24.43 

4,365.02 

30,055.18 

520.16 

0.11 

998.47 

47 642.45 

80.42 

12,385.44 

9,929.14 

8.55 

2.27 

22 405.82 

Carrying Value 

March 31, 2023 

0.10 

264.96 

265,06 

0.05 

480.42 

480.47 

Fair Value 

March 31, 2023 

0.10 

264. 96 

265.06 

0.05 

480.42 

480,47 

The management has assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, current borrowings, trade payables, current lease deposits and 

other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

B Measurement of fair values 

The level of fair values are defined below: 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments 

which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data 

and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If  one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2024 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement heirarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Financial assets measured at FVTPL 

As at March 31, 2024 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures 

Investment in mutual fund 

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL 

As at March 31, 2024 

Call option over Non-controlling interest 

Determination of fair values 

Total 

9,746.00 

1,933.08 

80.42 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

9,746.00 

1,933.08 

80.42 

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further 

information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on NAV at reporting date and fair value of compulsory convertible debentures is based on the terms and condition specific to compulsory 

convertible debentures 

ii) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values. 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

31 Related party disclosures 

List of related parties as per the requirements REIT Regulations 

S.No Relationship

(i) Sponsor
(ii) Trustee
(iii) Manager

(iv) Sponsor Group

(v) Directors and key managerial personnel of the Manager 

Chief Executive Officer and Non - Independent Director 
Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Independent Director
Independent Di rector
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non - Independent Director
Non - Independent Director
Non - Independent Director
Relative of KMP

(vi) Joint Venture 

(v) Entities controlled by Trust 

Name of Entities 

Wynford Investments Limited 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

55111 Indian Investments One Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Alpha Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Forum Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SBS Forum Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII 5B5 Forum Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Red Fort Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia 5B5 Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII 5B5 Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Kohinoor Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia 5B5 Kohinoor Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII 5B5 Kohinoor Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BRE Coimbatore Retail Holdings Ltd 
BREP Asia 5B5 Coimbatore Retail Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII 5B5 Coimbatore Retail Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia II Indian Holding Co IX (NQ) Pte Ltd 

Dalip Sehgal 
Rajesh Deo 
Charu Patki 
Alpana Parida 
Jayesh Tulsidas Merchant 
Michael D Holland 
Sadashiv Srinivas Rao 
Tuhin Parikh 
Asheesh Mohta 
Arjun Sharma 
Neeraj Ghei 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited (till May 12, 2023, entity jointly 
controlled by Sponsor Group) 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by 
Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Chitrali Properties Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by 
Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Safari Retreats Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by 
Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Euthoria Developers Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled 
by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, 
entity controlled by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity 
controlled by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Vijaya Productions Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by 
Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity' 
controlled by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled 
by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled 
by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

S.No Relationship 

(vi) Promoter of Trustee

(vii) Entitiy controlled by KMP 

(vii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Trust of Subsidiary

Name of Entities 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity 

controlled by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled 

by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled 

by Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by 

Sponsor Group till May 12, 2023) 
Select Infrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023) 

Axis Bank Limited 

Select Management & Consultant LLP 

Select Citywalk Charitable Trust 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

II Transactions with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Particulars 

Income 

Dividend Income 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

N\amadapur Solar Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Interest income from bank deposits 

Axis Bank Limited 

Interest income from inter corporate deposits 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 
Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

J\o\amadapur Solar Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Interest income from redeemable preference shares of SPVs 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

81.67 91.93 173.60 812.00 

96.04 99.97 196.00 120.62 

287.72 239.38 527.09 378.06 

16.46 54.05 70.51 115.34 

693.84 663.38 1,357.23 702.31 

204.14 184.33 388.47 140.15 

164.82 167.82 332.64 365.60 

8.55 8.55 29.98 

10.41 10.41 

91.72 109.19 200.91 145.59 

0.01 0.06 0.07 9.35 

44.65 46.65 91.31 50.87 

197.49 200.07 397.56 295.36 

133.14 136.02 269.17 175.98 

57.53 58.29 115.82 78.30 

57.53 58.29 115.81 65.74 

32.18 32.84 65.02 46.26 

245.58 248.90 494.49 337.55 

7.49 4.16 11.65 

48.45 50.04 98.50 58.63 

5.72 7.72 13.44 12.68 

32.13 35.35 67.48 45.05 

22.33 22.09 44.41 29.73 

23.34 23.63 46.97 31.85 

8.24 8.35 16.59 12.30 

22.38 22.71 45.09 21.21 

2.37 2.36 4.74 0.28 

0.45 0.45 0.90 0.70 

0.36 0.37 0.73 0.52 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

985.60 

316.62 

905.15 

185.85 

2,059.53 

528.62 

698.24 

38.52 

10.41 

346.50 

9.42 

142.18 

692.91 

445.15 

194.12 

181 .55 

111.28 

832.03 

11.65 

157.13 

26.12 

112.52 

74.14 

78.82 

28.88 

66.29 

5.02 

1.60 

1.25 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs . million, unless otherwise stated) 

II Transactions with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Particulars 

Interest income/fair value changes from compulsory convertible debentures 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus f'Aangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman f'Aall t,Aanagement Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus N\angalore Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Select Mall f'Aanagement Private Limited 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

103.88 103.12 206.99 153.94 

239.31 242.60 481.91 242.60 

0.00 10.27 10.27 10.86 

31.08 51.49 82.57 52.64 

32.01 32.45 64.45 32.45 

36.68 32.02 68.70 32.02 

1.08 1.87 2.95 

2.12 1.90 4.03 

0.61 1.00 1.61 

0.67 0.98 1.65 

1.30 2.58 3.88 

0.42 0.43 0.85 

1.78 2.88 4.66 

0.86 1.15 2.01 

1.13 1.35 2.48 

0.61 0.99 1.60 

0.49 1.14 1.64 

0.69 1.03 1.72 

0.34 0.73 1.07 

0.54 1.14 1.68 

0.01 0.01 0.01 

0.18 4.49 4.68 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

360.93 

724.52 

21.13 

135.21 

96.90 

100.72 

2.95 

4.03 

1.61 

1.65 

3.88 

0.85 

4.66 

2.01 

2.48 

1.60 

1.64 

1.72 

1.07 

1.68 

0.01 

4.68 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

II Transactions with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Particulars 

Expenses 

Issue expenses 

Receivables towards issue expenses incurred on behalf of selling unitholders 

Investment Management Fees 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

Secondment Fees 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

Finance Cost 

Axis Bank Limited 

CSR Expenses 

Select Citywalk Charitable Trust 

Legal and professional fees 

Axis Bank Limited 

Trustee fee expenses 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by* 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

*including amount debited to unit capital/ recoverable from selling unitholders. 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

264.96 

31.68 30.76 

0.30 0.30 

0.50 0.39 

194.41 

0.59 

9.15 

0.59 

3.54 

0.59 

2.42 

0.74 

1.45 

1.17 

1.83 

1.45 

1.45 

16.18 

0.15 

0.59 

21.07 110.08 123.26 

62.44 

0.60 

0.89 

131.16 

44.75 

0.46 

12.53 

0.22 

1.09 

0.85 

72.17 

0.05 

8.83 

0.02 

1.19 

1.83 

0.13 

104.92 

264.96 

194.41 

0.59 

9.15 

0.59 

3.54 

0.59 

2.42 

0.74 

1.45 

1.17 

1.83 

1.45 

1.45 

16.18 

0.15 

0.59 

123.26 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

107.19 

1.06 

12.53 

0.22 

1.09 

1.74 

72.17 

0.05 

8.83 

0.02 

1.19 

1.83 

0.13 

236.08 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 

264.96 

194.41 

0.59 

9.15 

0.59 

3.54 

0.59 

2.42 

0.74 

1.45 

1.17 

1.83 

1.45 

1.45 

16.18 

0.15 

0.59 

123.26 



---------------------- -------- - -------- - - ------------------- ---------

Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

II Transactions with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Particulars 

Assets 

Investment in equity shares of SPVs 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

fillamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited (Refer note 36(ii)) 

Yijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited (Refer note 36(ii)) 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Investment in joint venture 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Investment in redeemable preference shares of SPVs 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures of SPVs 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited (Refer note 36(ii)) 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited (Refer note 36(ii)) 

Nexus i\'\angalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Inter corporate deposits given 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

64.93 

39.43 

39.79 

10.39 

8_63 

9.90 

16.72 

15.00 

4.38 

2.85 

30.58 

7_32 

30.00 

9.31 

1.50 

12.20 

344.61 

670.66 

(344.61 I 

(670.66) 

3.00 

240.00 

20.00 

61.36 

344.61 

670.66 

(344.61) 

(670.66) 

64.93 

39.43 

39.79 

10.39 

8.63 

12.90 

16.72 

255.00 

4.38 

2.85 

30-58 

27.32 

91.36 

9.31 

1.50 

12.20 

15,342.47 

5,155.64 

4,777.87 

16,270.11 

642.14 

1,794.62 

37,810.61 

13,228.13 

12,107.28 

1,667.82 

4,219-98 

3,725.00 

399_ 11 

376.07 

6,488.93 

2,059.31 

14.29 

7.29 

7,700.00 

3,365.02 

344.61 

1,670.66 

1,029.80 

1,016.20 

1,500.00 

6,397.61 

4,400.00 

1,850.00 

1,850.00 

1,060.00 

7,950.00 

1,600.00 

300.00 

1,200.00 

700.00 

1,102.00 

750.00 

266.06 

75.00 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

15,342.47 

5,155.64 

4,777.87 

16,270.11 

642.14 

1,794.62 

37,810.61 

13,572.74 

12,107.28 

2,338.48 

4,219.98 

3,725.00 

399_ 11 

376.07 

6,488-93 

2,059.31 

14.29 

7.29 

7,700.00 

3,365.02 

1,000.00 

1,029.80 

1,016.20 

1,564.93 

6,437.04 

4,439.79 

1,860.39 

1,858.63 

1,072.90 

7,966.72 

255.00 

1,604.38 

302.85 

1,230.58 

727.32 

1,193.36 

759.31 

267.56 

87.20 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2023 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

II Transactions with Related Parties as defined in (1) 

Particulars 

Inter corporate deposits received 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

lnvestment/(Redemption) in/of Fixed Deposits 

Axis Bank Limited 

Equity 
Issue of unit capital (in exchange of the Investment in equity shares of SPVs 

and joint venture) 

BRE Coimbatore Retail Holdings Ltd 
BREP Asia II Indian Holding Co IX (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SBS Coimbatore Retail Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia SBS Forum Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia SBS Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Forum Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Red Fort Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP VIII SBS Coimbatore Retail Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII SBS Forum Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII SBS Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
55111 Indian Investments One Ltd 

Wynford Investments Limited 

Select Management & Consultant LLP 

Arjun Sharma 

Neeraj Ghei 

Subscription to intial corpus 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

Unit issue expenses 

Axis Bank Limited 

Distribution paid (net of TDS) 

Wynford Investments Limited 

55111 Indian Investments One Ltd 

BREP Asia SG Forum Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SG Red Fort Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd 
BREP Asia SBS Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BREP VIII SBS Red Fort Holding (NQ) Ltd 
BRE Coimbatore Retail Holdings Ltd 

BREP Asia II Indian Holding Co IX (NQ) Pte Ltd 
Select Management & Consultant LLP 

Arjun Sharma 

Neeraj Ghei 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 

495.50 50.00 
45.00 
20.00 

12.50 29.00 
112.85 60.00 

70.58 95.00 
22.32 
37.50 45.35 
26.50 

23.19 (78.77) 

179.48 268.80 
138.06 206.76 

89.46 133. 98 
267.44 400.52 

0.33 0.50 
0.20 0.31 

40.22 60.23 
566.32 848.13 
242.49 364.33 

11.01 16.55 
164.84 247.15 

545.50 
45.00 
20.00 

41.50 
172.85 
165.58 

22.32 
82.85 
26.50 

(55.58) 

448.28 
344.82 
223.44 
667. 95 

0.83 
0.51 

100.45 
1,414.45 

606.83 
27.56 

411.99 

47.61 

75.00 
10.00 
50.00 
20.00 
60.00 
90.00 

97.01 
1.06 

83.16 

4,216.06 
28,872.60 

9.47 
10.51 
50.69 

4,760.91 
22,960.65 

4.49 
6.45 

31.13 
7,040.11 
9,152.07 

12,568.34 
570.83 

8,454.47 

0.22 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

47.61 
545.50 
120.00 

30.00 
50.00 
61.50 

232.85 
255.58 

22.32 
179.86 

27.56 

27.58 

4,216.06 
28,872.60 

9.47 
10.51 
50.69 

4,760.91 
22,960.65 

4.49 
6.45 

31.13 
7,040.11 
9,152.07 

12,568.34 
570.83 

8,454.47 

0.22 

448.28 
344.82 
223.44 
667.95 

0.83 
0.51 

100.45 
1,414.45 

606.83 
27.56 

411.99 

For the period 

August 10, 2022 to 
March 31, 2023 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Ill Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Balances at the end of the year 

Particulars 

Assets 

Investment in equity shares of SPVs 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Investment in joint venture 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Investment in redeemable preference shares of SPVs 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Investment in compulsory convertible debentures of SPVs 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Inter corporate deposits 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

15,342.47 

5,155.64 

4,777.87 

16,270.11 

642.14 

1,794.62 

37,810.61 

13,572.74 

12,107.28 

2,338.48 

4,219.98 

3,725.00 

399.11 

376.07 

6,488.93 

2,059.31 

15.89 

8.54 

7,700.00 

3,365.02 

1,000.00 

1,029.80 

1,016.20 

1,019.43 

6,389.43 

4,319.79 

1,860.39 

1,858.63 

1,042.90 

7,916.72 

255.00 

1,542.88 

70.00 

975.00 

705.00 

1,013.50 

759. 31

87.20

240.00

As at 

March 31, 2023 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Ill Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Balances at the end of the year 

Particulars 

Balances with Bank 

Axis Bank Limited 

Investment in Fixed Deposits 

Axis Bank Limited 

Interest accrued on compulsory convertible debentures 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Interest accrued on inter corporate deposits 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Other receivables 

Receivables towards issue expenses incurred on behalf of selling unitholders 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

' (1 (\ 
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As at 

March 31, 2024 

11 .21 

27.58 

193.43 

19.68 
293.52 
45.44 
57.53 
60.91 
75.90 

149.79 
2.57 
5.02 

0.14 
1.27 
0.39 
0.46 
0.27 
0.43 
0.85 
0.14 
0.59 
0.14 
0.26 
0.71 
0.13 
0.14 
0.01 
0.25 

'· 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

264.96 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

Ill Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (I) 

Balances at the end of the year 

Particulars 

Liabilities 

Trade payables 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

Other payables 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 

Chitrali Properties Private Limited 

Safari Retreats Private Limited 

Euthoria Developers Private Limited 

Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 

Vijaya Productions Private Limited 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited 

Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Daksha Infrastructure Private Limited 

Mamadapur Solar Private Limited 

Indore Treasure Island Private Limited 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

Bank gurantee given by SPVs for loan taken 

Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited ft Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

Equity 

Subscription to intial corpus 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

4.09 

10,000.00 

11,574.20 

0.10 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0.59 

194.41 

9.15 

0.59 

3.54 

0.59 

2.42 

0.74 

1.45 

1.17 

1.83 

1.45 

1.45 

16.18 

0.15 

0.59 

123.26 

0.10 



Nexus Select Trust 
RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

32 Disclosure as per SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other requirements as per SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2022/ 122 dated September 22, 2022 (as amended from time to time) and SEBI circular 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018 (as amended from time to time) 

As at/For the quarter As at/For the quarter 
S.No Ratios ended ended 

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 

(a) debt-equity ratio 0.15 0.14 

(b) debt service coverage ratio 6.57 6.60 

(c) interest service coverage ratio 6.57 6.60 

(d) outstanding redeemable preference shares NA NA 

(e) capital redemption reserve/debenture redemption reserve NA NA 

(f) net worth 152,309.14 152,820.18 

(g) net profit after tax 2,518.99 2,573.33 

(h) earnings per share (Basic/Diluted) 1.66 1.70 

(i) current ratio 3.98 11.78 

(j) long term debt to working capital 6.98 8.14 

(k) bad debts to account receivable ratio NA NA 

(1) current liability ratio 0.05 0.01 

(m) total debts to total assets 0.13 0.12 

(n) debtors' turnover NA NA 

(o) inventory turnover NA NA 

(p) operating margin percent 98% 98% 

(q) net profit margin percent 82% 83% 

(r) asset cover ratio 10.73 NA 

The following definitions have been considered for the purpose of computation of ratios and other information 

(a) Debt Equity Ratio = Total borrowings 1 / Unitholders' Equity' 

As at/For the quarter 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

(29.41) 

(29.51) 

NA 

0.94 

NA 

NA 

1.00 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

As at/For the half year As at/For the half year As at/For the half year As at/For the year As at/For the period 
ended ended ended ended August 10, 2022 to 

March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

0.15 0.14 NA 0.15 NA 

6.58 7.57 NA 6.97 NA 

6.58 7.57 NA 6.97 NA 

NA NA NA NA NA 

NA NA NA NA NA 

152,309.14 154,767.58 (29.41) 152,309.14 (29.41) 

5,092.32 3,846.78 (29.51) 8,939.10 (29.51) 

3.36 3.27 NA 6.64 NA 

3.98 17.65 0.94 3.98 0.94 

6.98 4.60 NA 6.98 NA 

NA NA NA NA NA 

0.05 0.01 1.00 0.05 1.00 

0.13 0.12 NA 0.13 NA 

NA NA NA NA NA 

NA NA NA NA NA 

98% 96% NA 97% NA 
83% 83% NA 83% NA 

10.73 10.65 NA 10.73 NA 

(b) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Finance costs, Depreciation, Amortisation and Tax / [Finance cost (net of capitalisation and excluding interest on lease deposit and interest on lease liability)+ Scheduled principal repayments made during the year to the extent 
not refinanced excluding repayment made of overdraft facility] 

(c) Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Finance costs, Depreciation, Amortisation and Tax I Finance cost (net of capitalisation and excluding interest on lease deposit and interest on lease liability) 

(d) Net worth = Unitholder's Equity' 

(e) Current ratio =·current assets/ Current liabilities 

(f) Long term debt to working capital ratio = Long term debt3 / working capital' 

(g) Current liability ratio = Current liabilities/ Total liabilities 

(h) Total debt to total assets = Total debt5 / Total assets 

(i) Debtors Turnover= Revenue from operations/ Average trade receivable 
(j) Bad debts to account receivable ratio = Bad debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivable 

(k) Operating margin = (Profit before tax and exceptional Item + Interest expense - Other Income) / (Interest Income+ Dividend Income) 

(1) Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional items and tax/ Total Income 

(m) Asset cover ratio= Net asset value of the SPVs and Joint venture of the Trust as per Independent Valuer/ Total borrowings' (excluding processing fees) 

Notes 
Total borrowings = Long-term borrowings+ Short-term borrowings + Accrued interest 

er's equity = Unit Capital + Other equity + Corpus 

debt= Long term borrowings (excluding current maturities of long term debt) + Interest accrued on debts (Non-current) 
apital = Current asset - Current liabilities 

{ - 5 J t =Long term borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings), + short term borrowings and interest accrued on these debts 
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Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

33 Commitments and Contingent liabilities 

There are no amount of claims against the Trust that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees or other amounts for which the Trust is 
contingently liable. There are no commitments as at March 31, 2024. 

34 Details of utilisation of proceeds of IPO are as follows 

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus 

Partial or full repayment or prepayment and redemption of 
certain financial indebtedness of the asset SPVs and the joint 
venture. 
Acquisition of stake and redemption of debt securities in 
certain asset SPVs 

General purposes and REIT issue expenses 
Total 

Proposed utilisation 

2,500.00 

10,032.64 

1,467.36 
14 000.00 

35 Details of utilisation of proceeds of Non Convertible Debentures are as follows 

Objects of the issue as per the information memorandum 

Providing loans to the SPVs for repaying their debts, 
refurbishment expenses, working capital requirements and 
for general corporate requirements. 

Total 

36 Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) 

Proposed utilisation 

10,000.00 

10,000.00 

Actual utilisation upto 

March 31, 2024 

2,500.00 

10,032.64 

1,467.36 
14 000.00 

Actual utilisation upto 

March 31, 2024 

10,000.00 

10 000.00 

Unutilised amount as at 

March 31, 2024 

Unutilised amount as at 

March 31, 2024 

(i) The Board of Directors of the Manager in its meeting held on November 08, 2023, has approved the modification in the tenor of the compulsory
convertible debentures (CCD) held by Trust in the SPVs as follows:

Name of the Asset SPV 

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited 
Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited 

CSJ Infrastructure Private Limited 
Select Infrastructure Private Limited 

Existing Tenor of the CCDs Revised Tenor of the CCDs 

(unless converted earlier (unless converted earlier 

as per terms of the CCDs) as per terms of the CCDs) 

October 30, 2030 (Tranche November 7, 2038 
1) and July 1, 2038 (Tranche (Tranche 1 and Tranche 2)
2)

November 09, 2029 November 07, 2038
Class A: September 15, 2030 Class A: November 7, 2038
Class B: October 30, 2039 Class B: November 7, 2038

July 16, 2037 
May 12, 2023 

November 07, 2038 
November 07, 2038 

(ii) Pursuant to the terms of the compulsorily convertible debentures ("CCD"), the Board of Directors of Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited and
Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited have approved the conversion of the CCDs held by the Trust in the SPVs. Accordingly, SPVs has alloted
following equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 to the Trust upon conversion of such CCDs:

Name of SPV 

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited 
Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited 

No of CCDs held 

34,461,206 
167,066,482 

No of CCDs converted 

34,461,206 
67,066,482 

There is no impact on the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements on account of such conversion. 

37 Segment reporting 

Number of equity shares 

issued on conversion 

116,215 
550,176 

The Trust has only one operating segment. Hence, disclosure under Ind AS 108, "Operating Segments" is not applicable. 



Nexus Select Trust 

RN: IN/REIT/22-23/0004 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated) 

38 In accordance with section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, following schemes of amalgamation (the "Scheme") was 

filed for amalgamation, on fast track basis, between wholly owned subsidiary company and their respective Holding company : 

- Merger of NSMMPL, holding company with MSPL, subsidiary company - The appointed date as per the Scheme is April 1, 2023, which was

approved by Regional Director on July 28, 2023.

- Merger of WRPL, subsidiary company with SIPL, holding company - The appointed date as per the Scheme is May 15, 2023, which was approved

by Regional Director on October 12, 2023.

39 (i) NHRPL had filed petition under Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to obtain approval of National Company 

Law Tribunal for reduction of share capital. The said scheme was approved on August 11, 2023. Accordingly, NHRPL has adjusted Rs.258.93 

millions (out of balance available in securities premium account) against the debit balance in Profit 6: Loss Account. 

(ii) The following SPV's have filed petitions for capital reduction under Section 66 read with section 52 and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 to obtain approval of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT):

- CSJIPL

- NURPL

- NWPL

- CPPL

NCLT has passed an adverse order for CSJIPL. However, this will not have any impact on CSJIPL financial statements. Out of the remaining

above, subsequent to March 31, 2024, capital reduction scheme for CPPL 6: NURPL have been approved by the NCLT. Accordingly, CPPL 6: NURPL

has adjusted Rs.625.03 million and Rs. 271.36 million respectively (out of balance available in securities premium account) against the debit

balance in Profit 6: Loss Account during the year ended March 31, 2024. NWPL petition is pending with NCLT for approval.

40 The Trust was incorporated on August 10, 2022. Accordingly, the comparative figures have been disclosed from the date of incorporation. 

Further, the Trust acquired the SPVs/lnvestment Entity by issuing units on May 12, 2023. Accordingly, the previous year numbers are not 

comparable. The figures for the comparative period from August 10, 2022 to March 31, 2023 and quarter and half year ended March 31, 2023, as 

reported in these condensed standalone financial statements have been compiled by the management. 

41 The financial information for the quarter and half year ended March 31 are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of year 

ended March 31 and the unaudited figures upto December 31 and September 30 respectively. 

42 The figures of previous year have been reclassified/ regrouped for better presentation in the financial statements and to conform to the current 

year's classifications / disclosures. This does not have any impact on the profits / (loss) of previous year. 

As per our report of even date 

For S R B C 8: CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003 

Partner 

Membership No 112773 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 09, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 

(as Manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

Tuhin Parikh 

Director 

' DIN•Df}f90 

X�h 
Ra' Dea

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 09, 2024 

Officer 
DIN : 00217255 



SR BC & COLLP 12th Floor, The Ruby 
29 Senapati Bapat Marg 
Dadar (West) Chartered Accountants 
Mumbai - 400 028, India 

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000 

Independent Auditor's Report on the Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Nexus Select Trust 

To 
The Board of Directors of
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 
(formerly known as Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited) (the "Manager")
in its capacity as Manager of Nexus Select Trust (the "Trust"), 
501 B Wing, Embassy 247, 
LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai 400083. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying condensed consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Nexus Select Trust
(hereinafter referred to as the "Trust"), its subsidiaries (the Trust and its subsidiaries together referred to as the
"Group") and its joint venture comprising of the condensed consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
condensed consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the condensed
consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024, the condensed
consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, the consolidated
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value
for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the Trust and each
of its subsidiaries for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 and notes to the condensed consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of a material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements") being prepared by the Manager
pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ("REIT Regulations"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditor on separate audited condensed Ind AS financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, the Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements: 
(i) includes the financial information of the entities mentioned in Annexure 1 to this Report; 
(ii) are presented in accordance with the requirements of the REIT Regulations in this regard; and 
(iii) give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial

Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its joint venture as at March 31, 2024,
their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income and their consolidated cash flows for the
quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024, their consolidated statement of changes in Unitholder's
equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, their consolidated statement of net asset at fair value as at March
31, 2024, their consolidated total returns at fair value for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the NDCFs of the
Trust and each of its subsidiaries for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Condensed Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group and joint venture in accordance
with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the ICAI and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us and other

�===::;,p;w.i.'t1ors in terms of their reports referred to in "Other Matter" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
� *��("I . a basis for our audit opinion on the Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. 
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 which describes the Basis of preparation of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS

Financial Statements and Note 23 which describes the presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound

financial instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

The Management of the Manager (the "Management") is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these

Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial

position as at March 3I, 2024, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income and

consolidated cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended March 3I,2024, consolidated statement of changes

in unitholder's equity for the year ended March 31, 2024, consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 3I,2024,
consolidated total returns at fair value for the year ended March 3I,2024 and net distributable cash flows of the Trust

and each of its subsidiaries for the quarter, half year and year ended March 3L,2024, in accordance with requirement

of the REIT Regulations, lndian Accounting Standard 34, (lnd AS 34) "lnterim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule

2(1Xa) of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles

generally accepted in lndia, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations. The respective Board of Directors

of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate

accounting records for safeguarding ofthe assets oftheir respective company and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudenU and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for

the purpose of preparation of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements by the Management, as

aforesaid.

ln preparing the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the Manager and the

respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for

assessing the ability of the Trust and their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Manager and companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are

also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust and their respective companies.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Condensed Consolidated lnd AS

nts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a

a Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint venture to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group

and its joint venture of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the Condensed

Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the condensed lnd AS financial statements of such entities included in the Condensed Consolidated
lnd AS Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other
auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and such other entities included in the Condensed

Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

a

a

t



SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Nexus Select Trust
Page 4 of 6

Other Matters

7. The Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements includes the condensed lnd AS financial statements
of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.5,272.32 million as at March 31,2024
and total revenues of Rs.29I.22 million, Rs. 610.97 million and Rs. 1,084.20 million, total net profit after tax
of Rs. 56.44 million, Rs. 99.24 million and Rs. 182.18 million, total comprehensive income of Rs. 56.90 million,
Rs. 99.69 million and Rs. 182.63 million, net cash inflow / (outflow) of Rs. 28.24 million, Rs. 10.70 million and
Rs. (231.28) million and Net Distributable Cash Flows of Rs. 210.82 million, Rs. 444.69 million and Rs. 680.46
million forthe quarter, half year and year ended March 31,2024, as considered in Condensed Consolidated
lnd AS Financial Statements which have been audited by their respective independent auditor.

The independent auditor's report on the condensed lnd AS financial statements of these entities have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is

based solely on the reports of such auditor and the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph

above.

2. (i) The Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements includes the figures for the quarter ended March
3I,2024 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended
March 31", 2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the end of the third quarter of the
current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us.

(ii) The Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements includes the figures for the half year ended
March 31, 2024beingthe balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
ended March 31,,2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the end ofthe second quarter
of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us.

Our opinion on the Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit and as required by the REIT Regulations and on the consideration of reports of the other auditor
on separate condensed lnd AS financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the
'Other Matter' paragraph we report that:

(a) We / the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements;

(b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Unitholder's Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at
alue and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and each of its subsidiaries dealt with

port are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements;
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(c) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements comply with the lndian

Accounting Standard 34, (lnd AS 34) "lnterim Financial Reporting", as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT

Regulations.

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Abhi
Partner

Agarwal

Membership Number: 112773

UDIN : 24II27 73 BKCUOJ5445

Mumbai
May 9,2024

]t'
r{r

c&
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SRBC&COLLP
chartered Accountants

Nexus Select Trust
Page 6 of 6

Annexure 1 - ln respect of Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

List of subsidiaries consolidated in Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

List of joint venture consolidated in Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

Sr. No. Name of the Entity

7 Indore Treasure lsland Private Limited

Sr. No. Name of the Entity

1 CSJ lnfrastructure Private Limited

2
Select lnfrastructure Private Limited (refer Note 59 (ll) of Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements)

3 Chitrali Properties Private Limited

4 Safari Retreats Private Limited

5 Euthoria Developers Private Limited

6 Naman Mall Management Company Private Limited

7
Mamadapur Solar Private Limited (refer Note 59 (ll) of Condensed Consolidated lnd AS Financial

Statements)

8
Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited
(formerly known as Prestige Hyderabad Retail Ventures Private Limited)

9 Vijaya Productions Private Limited

10
Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited (formerly known as Prestige

Shantiniketan Leisures Private Limited)

1I Nexusmalls Whitefield Private Limited
form known as P Garden Constructions Private Limited)

12
Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited

form known as Flicker Private Lim

13
Nexus Mangalore Retail Private Limited
(formerly known as Prestige Manga lore Retail Ventures Private Limited)

14
Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited
(formerlv known as Prestige Mysore Retail Ventures Private Limited)

15 Daksha lnfrastructure Private Limited



Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23/OOo4
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(At[ amounts are in Rs. mittion, untess otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
As at

March 31,2024
(Audited)

As at
March 31,2023

(Audited)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equiPment

Right of use assets

CapitaI work-in-progress

lnvestment property
lnvestment property under devetopment

Other intangibte assets

lnvestment accounted for using equity method

Financiat assets
- Loans

- Other financiaI assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Non-current tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

Current assets

lnventories
FinanciaI assets

- lnvestments
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other bank batances
- Loans

- Other financial assets

Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Corpus

Unit Capitat

Other equity

Liabilities

Non-current tiabilities
Financiat tiabitities

- Borrowings
- Lease tiabitities
- Other financiaI tiabitities

Deferred tax tiabitities (net)

Provisions

Other non-current tiabitities

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

6,389.09
65.42

306.57
'138,1 18.95

39.07

34,580.77

2,111.47

10

11

46

1Z

13

14

863.50

430.81

4,291 .82

1,080.92

45.31

15

16

17

18

19

20

1Z

21

I 88,323.1 5

27.82

9,733.77

656.22

394.04

788.98

1 50.00

478.18

1 08.90

443.54

0.1 0

764.96

r so.oo

1?-,781.45 451.06

201 104.60 451.06

27

23

24

0.10

1 50,950.21

(1,601.81 )

0.10

(29.51 )

1 49,348.50 (2e.41)

75

26

46

77

28

41,698.11

64.25

1,284.93

1 07.1 8

53.55

64.20

43,272.22

Mumbai



Nexus Select Trust
RN: IN/REIT/22-23 IOOO4

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, untess otherwise stated)

As at As at

Particu lars Note March 31,2024
(Audited)

March 31,2023
(Audited)

Current tiabilities
FinanciaI tiabitities

- Borrowings
- Lease tiabitities
- Trade payabtes

Total outstanding dues of micro and smalt enterprises

Total outstanding dues of trade payabtes other than micro and smalt enterprises

- Other financia[ tiabitities
Provisions

Current tax liabitities (net)

other current tiabitities

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

5ummary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements

As per our rePort of even date

29

30

30

31

32

33

34

937.20

13.76

160.37

580.20

6,1 01 .08

92.44

95.65

s03.1 8

480.42

0.05

8,483.88 480.47

51 756.'.|O 480.47

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Agarwal

Partner

Membership No 112773

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of

Nexus Select Matl Management Priyate Limited

(as Manager to Nexus Setect Trust)

Tuhin Parikh

Director
DIN: 00544890

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

Rajesh

Chief Officer

P(ace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

201 104.60

Dalip

Director and Chief Executive Officer

DIN:00217255

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

451.06

7

fr/u,i4BA' *

9
%

CE

Mumbai



Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23l0004
Cohd.nred Consolid.ted Financirl SbEmenB
Consolid.Ed SEhment of Profit and Los
(ALt amounts are in R5. miLfion, untess otheMise stated)

Nob

For the qurrter ended

^,larch 
31, 2024

(Audited)
(Refer noE 60 & 61)

For the qurtur ended
oecember 3'1, 2023

(Unaudibd)
(Rcfer hote 60)

For the qurtur ended
A,larch 31, 2023

(AudiEd)
(Refer note 60 & 6l )

For the hrlfyear en&d
hrch 31, 2024

(Audited)
(Refer note 50 & 6l)

For the half ye.r ended
kpbhber !0, 2023

(Unrudited)
(Refer nok 60 & 51)

For the h.lfye.r ended
hrch 31, 2023

(Audited)
(Refer noE 50 & 61)

For the yerr ended
hrch 31, 2024

(AudiEd)
(Refer note 60)

For the pedod
August 10, 2022 b

March 31, 2023
(AudiEd)

(Refer nob 60)

Revenue frcm oFratios
lnterest lncome
Other income

E.rnin8s per unit
Basic

DiLuted

ForSRScAcoLLP
Chartered Accountanb

Perticuhrs

lcAl Firm

per Abhishek

MembeBhip No 112771

l5
l6
37

l9
4
41

42
48

5,347.05
70.64

189.33

5,661.04
32.O4

44.34

241.67
457.71
216.35
238. t4

26.00
10.13

0.39

'1,610.47

325.30

4,038.30
970.18

1,592-11

1 8.36

0-52

(2e.s I )

(29.5 1 )

(29.s1 )

11,491.O4

96.1 5

3,132.24

562.90

16.17)

60.00

1,952.96

0.05

0.5?

(2e.5 1 )

(29.s 1 )

19,163-78

24a.56

156.15

796.4
1,662.27

831.90
803.80
95.68
16.05
4.63
1.74

13,657.7a
3,370.95
s.701.64

5,O85.19

62.57

0.52

29.51

{29.51 )

(29.5 I )

51

8,155.70
125.88
ao7.37

11,008.09
122.68

157.06
791.33
393.77
345.10
4.30
17.04
1.50
0.85

799.71

443.49
(8.s6)

ExFnss
Cost of materiaL and componenb con5umed

Changes in inventories of fjnished goods and work-in-Progress

Emptoyee benefib expeEe
OFrating and haintenance expenses

Repai6 and maintenance
lnvestment managemenl fees

lnsurarce expenses
Audit fees
Vatuation fees
Trustee fees
Other expenss

Errnings before finance coeB, dePrecietion, amoftisation and d

Depreciahon and amortjsation expenses

Profit befo.e shrre of net Profit of investment .ccounted for 6ing equity method end d

Share of net profit ot investmen! accounted for using equity method

Profit / {Lossl before bx

current tax
Tax adiustmentr relating b earlier years

Deferred d charge / {credit)

Profit / (Loss) for the pedod / Ye.r
Other cohprehensire income
Items tha! witt not be reclassified subsequently to profit or toss

Re-mesurement gain / (Loss) on defined benefits ob[iSatjons

lncome td reLating to above iEm
Tobl other comprehensiw income for the Pcnod /year
Totrl comprehensiw incohe / (lo$) for the period /yea.

47 -81

197.67
413.21

221.78
219.96
25.38

8.88
1.13

0-50

0.05

439.34
870.94

458.50
51.38

19.01

1-13

0.89
114.17

7 ,981.20
1,896.18 1,474.77

0-05

52743

4
45

926.00

1,540.12

237.60

(6.17)

5,147.76

46
1,006.39

(8.55)

47
2.94

2.94

Mt Appticabte

Not AppLicabLe

53

\6.1?l

4.45

4.45

Not Appticable

Not Appticabte

For and on behaLf of the Board of DirecbE of

Nexus Select Mill iilanrgement PrivaE Limited

0.71

0-71

Not AppLicabLe

Not Applicable

D.lip
Dkector and Chief Executive Officer

DIN:00217255

0.97

o.97

1 -67

1.67

summary of significant accounting poLicies

The accompanlng notes form an integral part of the condensed consoLidated financiaL statemenB

k per our report of even date

number: 324982E/E300003 {algnager b Nexus Setect Trusl}

'l6Lz
Tuhin Prrikh
Dir4tor
DIN:0054890

MUMBAI
*

c&

Mumbai D
o

*
oate: May 9, 2024 oate: May 9, 2024 Date: May 9, 2024 Date: May 9, 2024



RN: lN/REIT/22-2310004

Conden3ed Con30lldlted FhEnclal St.iemenit
conrolidated stalemen! of c.sh Flow

{Au anounts are in Rs. miulon, unles otheMse naled)

For the qua(er ended
March 31, 2024

(Refer nore 60 a 51)

For the qua*e. ended
oecember 31,2023

For the half year ended For the half year end€d For the half year ended

M6..h 11, 2024 september 30, 2023 March !1, 2023

lAudlted) {Unludlted) (Audlt€d}

{Refer note 60 6 6l) (Refer note 60 & 6l | {Refer note 60 6 6l)

March 11,2024
augult 10, 2022 to

M.rch 31,2023

For the quarter ended
&rch 31,2023

{Refer note 60 & 611

Carh tlowfrom oPe..thg activltles
P.oflt / (Lo*) before tax

5hare of net proft of investment accounted for using equity method

Depreciation and amotization expen5e!

Rental income on ditcounting ot leas; dePosib

Lea5eequattation incom€

Net gain on fair value changet

Lo$ on rat Valuation of Financial ln(rumenB at FVTPL

Lo$ on sale / dlcard of PPE and inv€*ment Prcpertv

cain on sale of financial atseB classified at FVTPL

I i.bilti€r written back

Provtion for etPe.ted.redit los5 written back

Bad d;bB / advances wrtten off

Operatlng c.shflow before worklng caPltal change3

Changes in worklng..Plbl:

Other financial .sset3 (non.current and curent)

other a$ets (non.curenl and curentl

provtsion lnon.cur.ent and current)

Financiat liabitities {non.curenl and curentl
Other liabilitier {non-curenl and €ur€nt)

Nel.ashflow generated from operating actlvltle. before taxes

lncome raxei paid Inet of retundsl

Netcashflow generated from operating acsvues

1,555.42 1,610.47 129.51 I l,165.90 !,981.87 {29.51) 5,147.75 (29.51 )

(J5.l0t
926.0r

|,416.18
(70.55)

(5r.74)

3.32
(r 18.8r)

(0.@l

l.7t
171.66\

3.64)
5.65

(18.16)

970.11

1,476.@
(52.q1
(50.65)

t5.90t

116.671

2.21

tr50-03)

t2.24)
1.70

llr.66)
1,896.!8

?,952.18

1122.68'l
(102.40)

(2.5E)

1f5.48)

162.571
1,170.95

5,?01.64

{248.561

il61./o)
124.571

{?08.95)

(28.91 )

1,474.77

1,248.86

{125.88)

179.10)

{2r.99)
17t.41l

5.92

tzzt.70l
0.6r)
l.4l

14.f7

7.26

(319.451

125.26\

0.ll)
r8.08

l.14
t97.751

121.61)

15.741

3,764.66

(1.0r)

r6.45

86.55
l6r.5r

(286.941

(32.121

73.20

t1.2s)

ll 18.90)

187.6t)

172.l1l
55.96

r0.46

!t3,t!
40,94

5.43

23r.95

4.fz
357.95

tlu.7ol
tt.17

{t1t.14)

0.05

19.46

0.05

79.46

12.26\

(6?.461

48.92

9t.ll
(230.96)

l?1.671
l&.ll

l.t7
149.49

493.64

49.29
(315.67)
'110.39)

75-16

5,634.921,621.96
119.78

3,705.18
{11 1. r6}

Caih tlow from irvetlng actlvitiei

Cash balance acquned on acquhition

lnt€. corporate deporits received back / leivenl

Purchase of propedy plant and equipment, investm€nt propedy and

5ale / lPurchase) of lnve*menk lnet)
Redemption / {lnvefment} in oth€r bank batanc€t {neu

Net cashflow fiom / tured ln) invettlng acuvtles

u14.671

(941.881

141.461

45.06

10.{

I r6.021

(118.47)

652.26

1,461.41

118.26

t,ao1.74

7.51

7,195.77

18.51)

.17)

4,977.55

l?@.32)

14,668.29)
757.U
107.56

4,q0.76
(1,615.02)

t!,@.99)

4,s0-76
(3,615.02)

lr,0r r-501

t65l.l4t

QA9.62l
1,411.98

r63.35

r0.11

(862.46)

14,957.91)
2,171.O2

210.91

10.41

11,241.O31 636.47 14.612.26t 11,975.791

Crrh tlowfrom flnanclng actlvitlet
P.oceedr towards intial corput

Proceedt fiom Esle of onis
Expen5er incured towards initial public offerings

Proceedt from non-curent borofrngs lnet off Proce$ing feet)

Repayment of nor.curent borofrngs
Proceedr fiom t5ue of debentures (net off proce$ing feei
Proceed5 trom ttue of cur€nt borrosngs
R€payment {i.cluding redemption) oldebentures

?ayment of lease liabilty (inc{uding inrere*)
DEt.ibution to unit hotdeu
Net cashflowfrom / {used lnl fln.ncing actlviilet

156.47)

18,785.53

(18,536.88)

(0.06)

931.19

l4,m,m
1549.79\

lr,151.71
(4,@8.56)

9,907.56

931,19

(8,495.59t

8,168.561

120.91)

0.10

t49.t6l
9,47J.16
(9,m. r9)

t7.31)
9,312.40

19,536.69\

{0.s)

14,@.m
(491.321

12,366.20

125,471.681

9,907.62

il,667.081
(9.65)

{8,495.591

{1,501.{91

t1 r.06)

931.70

t828.rl
(5.891

(838.76)

tt.95)
14,51O.161

(2,509.08)

51.62

l.8,104.271 300.68 ,803.58) o.10

0.10{323.66)
666.O7

t272.031
666.07

665.97
0.10 0. l0

393.94
0.10

Net lncre.selldecreate) ln c$h and cath equivalenE
Cash :nd ca3h equivatents at the beginning of the pedod

Caih .nd cash equival€nb at the end of the Period {Refer note l7' 342.41 0.10

The above *atement of cash 1106 has been prepared under the lndireci Merhod a5 set out in the tndian Accounting Standard llnd AS) 7 ' 'statement of Cash Flow"

summaryof significant accounting Policie! (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integral Patr of the condensed consolidated financial *atemenB

A! per our report of even date

kmberhip No 112771

FoTSRBC&COLtP
Chartered Accountanb

lCAl Fiim registration number: 124982E/El@l

For and on behatf of the &ard of Diiectou of

Neru3 select Mall M.nagement Pilvate Llmtred

las enaqer to Nexut Setect Tru*)

DIN: @5q690

o.llp 5eh8.l
Dtector and Chief Executive officer
DIN : m217?55

Chief

Dater ey 9, 2024 oate: May 9, 2024 Date: tuy 9, 2024 oater May 9, 2024

Mumbai

MUMBAI

&G

et
**



Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-ZllO0O4
condensed consohdated linancial Statements

{Att amounts are in Rs. mi(tlon, untess otheMse stated)

I Statement of Net Assets at Fair value (NAV)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2024

(Audited)

As at March 31, 2023
(Refer note I below)

Book Fair value Book velue Fair value

(A) Total Assets

(B) Totat Liabitities

(C) Net Assets

(D) No. of Units (mittions)

NAV (C) / (D)

201,104.60
51,756.10

270,836.93

51,756.10

451.06

4A0.47

45t.06
480.47

50 21 9,080,83 129.411 (79.44\

1 ,51 5.00
98.58

't,515.00

't44.61
Refer note 1 Refer note 1

been determined by independent externat property vatuer
The fair value of lnvestment Property, Property, Ptant and Equipment, lnvestment Property under devetopment and Capitat work-in'progress have

having appropriately recognized professionat quatifications and recent experience in the l@ation and category of the Property being vatued'

Valuation technique:

Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quatity of a buitding and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quatity and (ease terms'

Notes:

disclosed as at March 31, 2023.

2. Project wise break up of Fair vatue of Assets as at March 3'l , 2024:

Property Name Fair value of As'ets
Name of the Entity

Select lnfrastructure Private Limited

CSJ lnfrastructure Private Limited

Select lnfrastructure Private Limited (Refer note 59)

Euthoria Devetopers Private Limited

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited

Nexus Hyderabad Retail Private Limited

Vijaya Productions Private Limited

Chitrali Properties Private Limited

Safari Retreats Private Limited

Euthoria Devetopers Private Limlted

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited

Nexusmatts whitefietd Private Limited

Nexus Udaipur Retait Private Limited

Nexus Mangalore RetaiI Private Limited

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited

Naman Mall Management Company Private

Daksha lnfrastructure Private Limited

Mamadapur Sotar Private Limited

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

Nexus Setect citywatk
Nexus Etante comptex

Nexus seawoods

Nexus Ahmedabad One

Nexus Hyderabad

Nexus Koramangata

Nexus vijaya Comptex

Nexus Westend comptex

Nexus Esptanade

Nexus Amritsar

Nexus Shantiniketan

Nexus Whitefietd Comptex

Nexus cetebration

Fiza by Nexus

Nexus Centre citY

Nexus lndore Centrat
Nexus westend Complex

Karnataka sotar

Treasure lstand

49,791.92

52,100.49
26,O76.66

70,249.35
'18,978.45

9,834.47
16,200.64

1 3,239.85

10,376.13

7,838.64
7,675.86

7,256.01

3,825.10
5,298.19
3,310.87
2,O99.66

8,880.44

2,237.29
2,190.40

Nexus Setect Select Trust 376.51

836.93

valuation report of the indeP€ndent valuer appointed under the REIT Regutations'

Mumbai



Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/z2-2310004
condensed consolidated hinancial statementt

of Total Returns at Fair Valuell Statement

Particular!
For the half year ended

March 3'1,2024

income/(toss) -(A) 2,525.O7

Add : Changes in fair vatue not recognised ' (B)

TotalReturnsC =(A+B)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of the condensed consolidated financiat statements

As per our report of even date

ForsRBC&coLLP
Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Abhishek
Partner
Membership No 11221

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

For the half year ended
September 30, 2023

3,453.40
.42

For the half year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31 2023

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of

Nexu5 Select Mall Management Private Limited
(as Manager to Nexus Setect Trust)

5,978.46
669.72

Dalip
Director and Chief Executive officer

DIN : 00217255

Place: Mumbai

DaG: May 9, 2024

(2e.s1 )

assets as at Sepiember 30, 2O2l and March 31, 2024 are solety based on the vatuation report of the independent valuer apPointed under the REIT Regutations'

Tuhin Parikh
Director
DIN: 005,14890

ffi,
Datei May 9, 2024

MUMBAI

Bcd

*
*

Mumbai



Nexus Select Trust

RN: lN/REIT/22-2310004
Condensed consolidated Financial Statements

consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity

(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, untess otherwise stated)

A. Corpus
Rs. MillionParticulars

Balance as on August 1O,2022
Corpus received during the period (Refer note 52) 0.10

0.10Balance as at March 31, 2023
Balance as on April 01, 2023 0.10

Movement the
as 0.10

B. Unit Capital

Particulars Units Rs. Million

Balance as on April 01, 2023

Units issued during the quarter

- pursuant to the initiat pubtic offer, tssued, subscribed and futly paid-up in cash [Refer note 23

(ii)l
- in exchange for equity interest, redeemable preference shares and computsory convertible

debentures of 5PVs and joint venture

140,000,000

1 ,375,000,000

1 4,000.00

1 17,500.00

Less : Units issue (Refer note 23) 549.79\

as 1,51 5,000,000 1 50,950.21

C. Other Equity
Rs. MiltionParticulars

Balance as on August 10,2022
Loss for the period

as at

Balance as on

51

29.51

(29.51)

5,978.46Add : Profit for the year

Less : Distribution to unithotders (7,550.76
(1,501.81 )as

Summary of significant accounting poticies (Refer note 2)

The accompanying notes form an integraI part of the condensed consotidated financiat statements

As per our report of even date

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Abhishek Agarwal

Partner

Membership No 112773

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited

(as Manager to Nexus Select Trust)

Tuhin Parikh

Director

DIN: 00544890
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Nexus Select Trust
RN: iN/REIT/22-23l00o4
Condensed Con50lidat€d Financial Statoments

Dlsclosure pursuant to SEBI .ircular No. ClNlMDlOFl14612016
(All amounts are in R5. miltion, untess otheNise staied)

NEt Dtstribut.ble cash Flow (NDcF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to sEBl circular No. clRilMD/DF/i46/2016

For quafter
ended

lYterch 31, 2024
(Audited)

(Refer note 61 )

For the qu.rter

DecemtEr 31, 2023
(unaudited)

ended
March 31, 2024

(Audit€d)
(Refer note 6l)

September 30,

202t
(Unaudlted)

liarch 31, 2024
(Audtted)

{Refer note 55)

year For the year ended

5,No Partlcula.s

1 Cash ftows received from Asset SPVS and lnvestment Entity in the form of
1,027.48

1,646.81

717.75

1,166.16

I,618.60
344.34

2,393.64

3,265.41

1,122.09

1,301.77

2,809.64
450.69

r,695.41

6,075.05

1,572.78

19.1 1

16.26)

60.98

(1 s.46)

78,00

{34.84)

lnterest
Dividends (nel of applicabte laxes)

Repayment of Sharehotder Debt

Proceeds from buy'bac16 / capitat reduction (net of applicable laxes)

Redemplion proceeds of preference shares or other similar instruments

2 Add: proceeds from sate of investments, asseb or sate of shares of Asset SPVS and lnvestment Entity adjusted

for the fotlowing:

Applicable capital gains and other taxes

Related debB setlled or due to be settled from sale proceeds

oirecily aLtdbutable transacLion costs

Proceedsreinvestedorptannedtobereinvesled(directtyorjndirectly)aspermiltedunderREIT

I Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, asseb or sab of shares of Asset sPvs and lnvestment EntiLy not

distributed puFuant to an eartier plan lo re-invest as permitted under REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are

not intended to be invested subsequentty

4 Add: Any olher income at the Nexus Setect Trust level and nol captured herein

5Less:AnyolherexpenseattheNexusselectTrusttevet,andnotcapturedherein(totheextentnotpaid
through debt or equitY)

6 Lessr Any payment of expenses, inctuding but not limited to:

Trustee fees

REIT Manaqement Fees

Valuer fees

Legat and Professionat fees

Secondment fees

7 Less: Debt seruicinq, to the exteni not Paid Lhrough debl or equity

lncluding Principat, interest, redemption premium etc of external debt at lhe Nexus Setect Trust

tevet

lncLuding rePaynEnt of external debt or interest at the Asset sPV levets to meet guaranLor

obLigations, if any

8 Less: lncome tax and other iaxes fif appticable) at Lhe standalone Nexus Select Trust levet

21.a7

(9.20)

(0.s0)

(31.68)

(1.1 l)
14,48

(0.10t

\252.57\

{4.ss)

(0.19)

(r0.76)

(1 1.1 6)

(0.r0)

(o.89)

(62.44)

(1.11)

21.17

(0.60)

(s25.821

17.O2

(1e.18)

(0.8s)

144.751
(t.50)

117.871

(0.46)

t1.74i

{107.19}
(4.6r)

(16.55)

(271.25)

(2.53)

(1.06)

(s25.82)

(21.r2)
17.08)

For and on behatf of the Eoard of oirectoE of

Nexus select Mall lvtanagement Prlvat6 Limited

(as Manager to Nexus SelectTrust)

116.Z4i

64.69
0ther

lCAl Firm reqistration number: 124982E/E100001

in

Notes :

2 Since the Trust got tisted on May 19, 2O2l the comparative figures for year, hatf year and quarter ended Ma.ch 11, 2024 are not applicabte'

summary of significant accounting pollcies 1

The accompanying noles form an integral parl of the condensed sLandatone financiat statemenb

As per our reporl of even date

FoTSRBC&COLLP
chartered Accountants

#a^
per Abhlthek
Partner

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

DIN:

Director

Rajesh

0fector Executive officer
DIN:0o217255

Membership No 112771

Officer

Date: May 9, 2024

AIUIVIBAI
*

*

A

9
%

CE

Mumbai



Nexus Select Trust
RNi IN/REIT/22-2310004

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIRAMDDF114612016

{AlL amounts are jn Rs. mitLion, untess otheMise stated)

For the year etrded lrlarch 31 , zo24

sPV wise NDCF

ParticulaB

Profit after tax s per statemnt of profit and lo$ (standalone) (A)

Add/(Less): Non-cash adjustments, incLuding but not limited to:
- Depreciation, amortization and impairment
- Assets written off or Liabilities written back

- Deferred tax
- Current Tax
- lnd-As adjustments (strajght tining, eftectjve interest for finance costs, etc.)
- Other Non Cash Adjustments

Add: lnterest on Sharehotder Debt charged to statement of profit and loss

Add/(Less): Loss/(gain) on sale of assets, investments or shares of Asset SPVS or lnvestment

Entity

Add: Proceeds from sale of assets, investments linctuding cash equivalents), sate of shares of

Asset SPVS or lnvestment Entity adjusted for the fotLowing:

- Appticabte capitaL gains and othel taxes

- ReLated debts settted or due to be settled from sate proceeds

- Directly attributabte transaction costs

- Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as perDitted under REIT Regutations

Add: Proceeds from sate of investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVS or lnvestment

Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier Ptan to re-invest as permjtted under REIT

Regutations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsquentLy

Add/(Les5): Other adjustments, including but not Limited to net changes in security deposits,

working capitat(jncLuding cash and bank balances), etc.
Less: Capex not charqed in the statement of profit and toss, to the extent not funded by debt

Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemptjon of preference shares / debentures / any

other such instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obLigations / liabiLities etc 
' 
to

parties other than Nexus Select 6roup, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Add,/(Less): Change in lntercorporate deposit amongst Asset SPVS

Add: cash ftow received from Asset sPV and lnvestment Entity towards (appLicabLe for Holdco

onLy, to the exterlt not covered above):

- Repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt

- Proceeds from buy-backs / capitaL reduction

Less: lncome tax and other taxes paid {as appticabte)

Less: Proceeds to sharehotders other than Nexus SeLect Trust through buyback of shares /
capitaL reduction / dividend paid on preference or equity capitaL, buyback distribution tax if any

paid on the same, and further incLuding buyback distribution td, if apptjcabte on distribution to
Nexus SeLect Trust

Total adjustments (B)

CSJIPL VPPL CPPL SRPL NSRPL NWPL

653.30 532.83 54.19 199.66

NA,TRPL

(Ltangalore)
NURPL

NMRPL

(Mysore)
NM},iCPL DIPL SIPL NHRPL EDPL MSPL Total

37.97 165.03 153.42 144.21 112-77 (37.63) 278-87 2,957-17 280.54 776.49 126.a4 5,438.65

406.00

2.00

108.91

163.1s
'17.60

0-03

746.55

43.24

11.25)

82.14

137.15

l.29.74],

0.33
'1 1.65

100.79

(3.4E)

43.19

7't.88

(0.s0)

1.O7

64.49

(5.ss)

(1.07)

194.12

26.17

1.54

52.08
'1.06

111.27)

0.84
11?-.52

23.71

(1.0o)

(8.e8)

3s.1'1

92.85

1.57

0.03

5.O2

91"10

3.4E

54.46

75.89
(1 4.55)

1.57

853.16

1.03

120.15

6.52

2o2.80

6.86

(3.67)

181.55

0.03

0.'t l

20.46

2.25

21.34

31.E1

(1 1.60)
(0.46)

28_89

43.47

(0.12)

13.32

24.11

lo.24l
(185.00)

30.76

(0.38)

(144.01 )

9.81

12.14)

446.73

0.1 1

12.70)

292.34

(2.63)

154.97

43.80

23.72

(25.45)

(0.0e)

76-12

28.85

(0.83) 33.92

784.48

14.4O)
(1,920.s8)

184.12

(14.06)

o.20

1,059.'16

3.91

1,850.29

4.43

11,812.46)
977.03

(75.25)

(2.33)

4,3E6.88

7.260.20
0-37 1.72

6.62 50.40 z7.E3 54.OO 2.70 20.19 lz4.77l 39.87 (1OO.77) 95-42 (43.00) (3.66) 48s.01

(3.31 )

162.83

3.01

6.96

0.59

111 .28

314.O2

18.51

1,834.05 174.49

73.17 l27.O3l

(3.20) (8.83) 17.421 (s.12) (3.84) (2.01) (1.7s) (2.34) (8.86) (22.s1) 1.24.211 (71.3s)

57.18 039.00) (s1.32) (70.30) 125.24) 33.75

241.O5 48.30 1 31 _83 66.75 67.01

(3E.00) 38.00 0.00

12.78) (98.16) 1.246-991 1104-64) 1227.71l' 35.47 1803.64)

67.65 1239.44) 1,O3?..7O 289-25 124.50 4,945.88487.72 253.54 366.46

NDCF .35

Notes :

1. Sihce the Trust got tisted on lrlay 1 9, 2023 the comparative figures for year ended llarch 31, 2024 are not appticable-

The accompaDying notes form an integrat part of the condensed consotidated financiat statements

As per our report of even date

549.91

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Nexus Select Mall Managemnt PriEte Limited
(as to Nexus Setect Trust)

Tuhin Parikh
Directot
DIN: 00544890

Place: Mumbai

Date: liay 9, 2024

Director

404.13 406.08 776.O3 29.3E 346.52

FoTSRBCECOLLP
ChaTtered Accountants
lCAl Firm number: 3249E2ElE300003

per Abhishek
Partner Chief officer

74 251.34 11

MUMBAI **

c&

Mumbai

Iilembership No 1'12773

PLace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

DIN : 00217255

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: ,tay 9, 2024

Executive Officer

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: l,tay 9, 2024



Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23l0004

Condensed consolidaFd Financial SbtemenB
Disclosure pursuant to sEBl circular No, CIFJIMDIDF1146/2016
(A[[ amoun8 are in Rs. mituon, untess otheMise stated]

For the half year ended I{arch 31, 2024

sPV wise NDCF

PadiculaB

Profit after tax a5 per sbtement of profit and loss (standalone) (A)

Add/(Less): Non-cash adjustments, inctuding but not Limited to:

- Depreciation, amortization and impairment
- A5sets written off or liabitities written back

- Deferred tax
- Current Tax
- lnd-As adjustments (straight Lining, eff*tive interest for finance costs, etc. )

- other Non Cash Adjustments

Add: hlterest on Sharehotder Debt charged to statement of prcfit and loss

Add/(Less): Loss/(gain) on sale of ssets, investments or shares of Asset SPV5 or lnvestment Entity

Add: Proceeds from sale of asets, investments (inctudihg cash equivalents), sate of shares of

Asset SPVs or lnvestment Entjty adjusted for the folLowing:

- Appticable capital gains and other tdes
- Retated debs ettted or due to be settLed from sate proceeds

' Di@tty attributabte transaction costs

- Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as Permitted under REIT Regutations

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, 6sets or sate of shares of Aset SPV5 or lnvestment Entity

not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re'invest as permitted under REIT Regutations, if
such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequentty

Add/{Lesi): Other adjustments, incLuding but not limited to net changes in security dePosits,

working capjtatlincLuding cash and bank batances), etc.
Less: Capex not charged in the statement of Profit and loss, to the extent not funded by debt

Less: Net debt repayment / ldrawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any

other such instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obtigations / tiabitities etc., to
parties other than Nexus Setect Group, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Add/(L*s): change in lntercorporate deposit amongst Asset SPvs

Add: Cash fLow r4eived from Aset SPV and lnvestment Entity towards (aPPticabLe for Hotdco

only, to the extent not covered above):

- Repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt

- Prcceeds from buy_backs / capitat reduction

Lesr: lncome tax and other taxes paid (as aPPlicabLe)

Less: Proceeds to sharehotdero other than Nexus Select Trust ihrouqh buyback of shares / capital
reduction / dividend paid on preference or equity capital, buyback distribution td if any paid on

the same, and further including buyback distribltion tax, if appLjcabte on distributjon to Nexus

Setect Trust

Tobl adjustmenb (B)

CSJIPL VPPL

402.03 303.27

CPPL SRPL

2A.73 119.52

NSRPL NWPL NURPL NMMCPL DIPL SIPL NHRPL EDPL

7.12 85.36 165.26 92.11 122.58 (19.99) 147.74 444.99 204.43 442.63

NMRPL

(r{angalore)
NMRPL

(Mysore)

15.06

(0.13)
(185.00)

12.24

(1.00)

12.961

li{sPL Tobl

75.62 2,621.34

236.34
2.00

75.24

100.97

8.12

0.13

453.O7

( 1.34)

48.35

81.25

(17.38)

0.33

1 1.65

54.82

2.07
1 1-58

2.54
(0.55)

270.75

41.47

(0.s0)

0.18

34.32
(3.93)

0.03
1 1 5.82

24.61

(0.12)

0.52

't 5-48

o-21

2?..90

9.62
(9.2s)

0.07

67.47

16.33

17.32

21.O0

(1s.32)
(0.09)

13.44

17.43

o.26

{ 1 44.01 }

20.58 442.99

t1.s7l
178.10

65.10

9.55
(0.40)

604.56

3.91

(79.38)

1.29

51.54

2.55

37.72

51.60
(8.08)

1.57

504.75

1.03

7.96

6E.73

6.40

4.47
108.72

1.26

( 1.98)

1 15.81

0.03

11.19

2.25

12.42

1 9.10

16.59)

lo.46l
1 6.59

1,053.30

1 1.08

108-62

542.11

(27.221

3.41

2,616.50

7.26

1.80

0.00

181.07

{2.18)
4.21

92.79

(2.33)

0.o2

98.96

4.77
0-59

65.02

14.23)

50.43

9.80

0.03

4.74

0.20 o.37

120.16 135.72) (7. r9l (2.03) 32.77

50-65 (0.00i

179.40 (73.201 (23.37) (38.24) (5.83i 53.88

1 ,2Z6.Oa 38.45 310.35 147.32 234.82 180.25

1.77

19.50 43.85 10.63

3_85 47.31 5.37 3.1'l {58.81) (141-15) 122.72) {131.98)

1A.41 (39.79) 30.64
12.57 147.581 84.61

o.64 52.57

0.00

42.83 (159.53)

(38.00)

(25.E1) 110.62 (5.891 3.98 53.',18 1,083.00 627.92 220.67 49 75 4,2e2-71

lCAl Firm

per Abhishek

I4embership No 1 1223

Date: May 9, 2024

Chief Executive Offi€er

2o2.73 1 16.69

chief officer

266.44

For and on behaLf of the tsoard of Directors of

Nexus Select llall Management Prwate Limited
las Manager to Nexus set{t Trust)

39.45 527.99 37 4.09
NDCF 11

Notes :

1 . 5i nce the Trust got tisted o n May 1 9, 2023 the comparative fi gures fo r haLf year ended March 3 1 , 2024 are not aPpLicabte.

The accompanying notes form an integraL part of the condensed consoLidated financial statements
As per our repon of even date

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chaftered Accountants

number: 324982E/E300003

DIN

MUMBAI *

&c9
%

*
Mumbai

tln /ry-4/
Tfhin Parikh

ri[".';*',T
Date: May 9, 2024 Date: May 9, 2024

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: liay 9, 2024



Nexus Selftt TrEt
RN: IN/REIT/z2-23lo004
CondeMd Consolidated FinaEial SbGments

Dislosure pursu.nt to sEBl circular No. CIRAMA/DF114612016

(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, unless otherwise stated)

For th€ quarFr ended ,t4arch 31, 2024

il SPV wise NDCF

Particulars

Profit afbr bx as per sbkment of profit and loss (sbndalone) (A)

Add/(Lss): Non-cash adjustments, incLuding but not timited to:
- Deprcciation, amortization and impairment

- Assets written off or liabitities written back

- Deferred tax
- Current Tax
- lnd-AS adiustments (straight tining, effective interest for finance costs, etc.)
- Other Non Cash adjustments

Add: lnterest on SharehoLde. Debt charged to statement of profit and loss

Add/(Less): Loss/(gain) on sale of assets, investments or shares of Asset SPVS or lnvestment

Entity

Add: Proceeds from saLe of assets, jnvestments (incLuding cash equivatents), sale of shares of

Aset SPVS or lnvestment Entity adjusted for the foLlowing:

- Appticabte capitat gains and other taxes
- Retated debts sttled or due to be settted from saLe proceeds

- Directly attributabte transaction cosB

- Proceeds reinvested or ptanned to be reinvested as permitted under REIT Regulations

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or saLe of shares of Asset sPVs or lnvestment

Entity not distributed pursuant to an eartier ptan to re-invest as permitted under REIT

Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsquentty

Add/(Les): Other adiustments, inctuding but not Limited to net changes in s4urity deposits,

workinq capital(inctuding cash and bank balahces), etc.

Lss: Capex not charged in the statement of profit and Loss, to the extent not funded by debt

Less: Net debt repayhent / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures / any

other such instrument / premiums / accrued interest / any other obligations / tiabilities etc., to
parties other than Nexus Select Group, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Add/(Less): change in lntercorpomte deposit amongst Asset SPVS

Add: cash fLow received from Asset sPV and lnvestment Entity towards (apPlicabte for Holdco

only, to the extent not covered above):

- Repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt
- Proceeds from buy-backs / capitaL reduction

Less: lncome tax and other taxes paid las apPlicabte)

L6s: Proceeds to sharehotders other than Nexus Setect Trust through buyback of shares /
capital reduction / dividend paid on preference or equity capitat, buyback distribution tax if any

paid on the same, and further incLuding buyback distribution tax, if appticabte on distribution to
Nexus SeLect Trust

Total adjustmenB (B)

CSJIPL VPPL CPPL SRPL

264.35 12E-55 8.63 68.23

(Lbn3alore)

7.97 45.34 182.76 48.48 138-45

NSRPL NWPL
NMRPL NMRPL

(Mysore)
NURPL

8.21

NMMCPL DIPL SIPL

(6.02) 7a.75 221.35

NHRPL EDPL

209.24

NPL Tobl

9-38

172.34)

216.80

(63.38)

5.65

1 ,209.79
3.54

122.79

2.00

44.05

65.18

(20.57)

(0.12)

23.93

12.20

(1.34)

16.49

(1 1.2e)

0.33

7.49

27.71

2.07

5.01

19.72

(0.50)

o.49

15.15

(3.21)

0.28

57.54

o.12

7.73

0.16

6.95

9.62

17.46)

0.35

32.13

0,37

4.69

t1.00)
(1.431

10.38

1.28

24.48

14.28)

0.03

2.37

224.20
( 1.s7)

106.63

(16.86)

(0.e2)

(0.33)

301.37

l-30

34.55

5-95

43.19

27.85

3.39

(2.88)

57.53

0-03

59.16

5.58

2.25

2.91

13.46

12.69)
(0.46)

8.24

1?..27

(0.12)

7.71

{0.13)
( 1 8s.00)

E.69

o.26

\144.O1)

111.17

25.74

1.35

1,566.41

534.23

0.70
(0.46)

134.72

2-16

0.00

79.54

(1.64)

0.04

43.32

3.29

0.71

32.18

(1.751

4.21

38.26

1.74

6.35

8.04

11.94

(1 1.31)

(0.09)

5.71

19.24

24.46

\7.78J
4.03

245.58

17.O4 (0.00)

236.62 122.17) 17.651 118.42) (13.87) 39.60

654.74

6.14 127.34) \1.241 8.91 4.28 26.39 5.93 16.69 (37.07) 3.76 57.23 (5-56) 32.81 (79.60) 35.25

'18.66

0.00

157.77

3.90 2,053.35

56.28 (1.7E)

1.27 0.34

(38.00)

6-63 (25.04) 1114.111 28.14 167.031 54.21

45.36 134.76 69.93 92.70 93.73 l1oz.24l 84.71 (78.43) {30.00) 12.9A 55E.21 339.24 135.73

NDCF tcl = lA+Bl 9l 9.09

NoB:
1. Since the Trust got Listed on May 19, 2023 the comparative figures for quarter ended March 31, 2024 are not appticabte.

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of the condensed consolidated financiat statements

As per our report of even date

143.39 138.16 100.57 139.07 80. 60-02 (36.02) 91.73 779.66 450.41

officer

ForsRBc&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
lcAl Firm registration number: 3249828/8300003

per Abhishek

Partner
Membership No 1 12773

Place: Mumbai

Date: lr\ay 9, 2024

For and on behaLf of the Board of Directors of
Nexus Select l,lall lrlaMgement Private Limited

WU-
Chief Executive officer

3,6'19.76

MUMBAI

&coGI

*
Ca

MumbaiTuhin Parikh
Director

DIN:00544890

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

SeLect Trust)

DIN:002'17255

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024



Nexus Selet Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23l00o4
Conde6ed Consolidated FinaEial Stabments

Disclosure pursBnt to SEBI circular No. clR./l.MDnFl14612016

(ALL amounts are in Rs. million, untess otherwise stated)

For the quarter ended December 3'1, 2023

ll sPV wise NDCF

Particulars

Profit after bx as per stabment of profit and loss (standalone) (A)

Add/(Lss): Non'cash adjustments, including but not limited to:
- Depreciation, amortiation and impairment

- Assets written off or Liabitities written back

- Deferred tax
- current Tax
- lnd-AS adjustments (straiqht tining, effectjve interest for finance costs, etc. i
- Other Non Cash Adjustments

Add: lnterest on SharehoLder Debt charged to statement of profit and toss

Add/(Les): Loss/(qain) on sale of as*ts, inveslments or shares of Asset SPVS or lnvestment

Entity

Add: Proceeds from saLe of assets, jnvestments (incLuding cash equivalents), saLe of shares of
Asset SPVS or lnvestment Entity adjusted for the fottowing:

- Appticable capitat gains and other taxes
- Retated debts settted or due to be settted from sate p.oceeds

- Directty attributable transaction costs

- Proceeds reinvested or pLanned to be reinvested as permitted under REIT Regutations

Add: Proceeds from sate of investments, assets or sate of shares of Asset SPV5 or lnvestment

Entity not distributed pursuant to an eartier plan to re-invest as permitted under REIT

Regulations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequentty

Add/(Less): other adjustments, inctuding but not limjted to net changes ih security deposits,

working capitaLlinctuding cash and bank balances), etc.

Lss: Capex not charged in the statement of Profit and toss, to the extent not funded by debt

Les: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of Preference shares / debentures /
any other such instrument / prehiums / accrued jnterest / any other obtigations / tiabiLities

etc., to parties other than Nexus Select Group, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Add/(Les): Change in lntercorporate deposit amongst Asset SPV5

Add: Cash ftow received from Asset sPV and lnvestment Entity towards (appticabte for Hotdco

only, to the extent not covered above):

- Repayment of the debt in case of jnvestments by way of debt
- Proceeds from buy-backs / capitat reduction

Less: lncome tax and other taxes paid (as appticabLe)

Less: Proceeds to sharehoLders other than Nexus SeLect Trust through buyback of shares /
capjtaL reduction / dividend paid on preference or equity capitat, buyback distribution tax if
any paid on the same, and further including buyback distribution tax, if aPPLicabte on

distribution to Nexus Select Trust

Tobl adjustmena (B)

CSJIPL VPPL CPPL SRPL

137.69 174.70 20.10 51.29

113.55

NSRPL NWPL

4.01

7.76

0.04

1 5.95

0.@

(1.78)

(0.28)

35.35

NMRPL

([tangalore)

117.511

7.35

NURPL

7.72

NMRPL

(Mysore)
NMMCPL DIPL SIPL NHRPL EDPL MSPL Total

(0.8s)

12.33

p.zsr

(0.35)

10't.53

1?-.30

(0.00)

3'l- 86

43.74

(6. 08)

4.16

68.99

10-20

273.64

222.09

71.47

81.96

(0.07)

303.19

2.61

25.75

1.21

1 8.48

23.14
(0.2e)

(2.4s)

259. t7

1.03

34.18

0.45

12.721

80.86

\2.14)
0.90

58.29

524.38

1.70

180.96

325.30

37..A6

l.2.241

1 ,406.71

3.72

43.64 (15.88) (13.97)

a.1a 4.74 7.54

93.46 233.39 16.46 1,054.97

5.6127.11 21.75

6.5731.19

35.79

28.69

o.25

249.26

96.23

(0.31)

19.17

10.721

(0.26)

58.29

(1.53)

'1.4E

(0.12)

32.44

(s.s1 )

25.95

14.O9

2.36

9.51

5.63

(3.e0)1.85

(0.19)

136.O2

9.28

9.06

(4.01 ){0.43)

54.53

(0.69)

(0.02)

55.65 8.35

0.08

{41.86} 19.96 (0.80} 23.86 15.22

(136.61) 13.57 (20.23) 32.03 49.36

17.47 4.70 1.72

o.29 33.9 l

12.49) (8.e7) 7.14 (3.52) 33.77], l.27.04) (50.86) (64.9s) (',11.38) (317.34)

76.43 25.90 72.54 33.97 4.21 524.77 244.70 a4.93 45.85 2,239.36

17..72) 26.89

0-01

33.61

(57.23) (s1.02) (15.721 {1e.82)

571.34 (6.90) 175.60

8-04 14.27

77 3A M2.17 86.53

195.70 12A.67 141.27 126.54 56-66 20.oo

officer

zo 748.41 381.96 294.33709.03

The accompanying notes form an jntegral Part of the condensed consolidaled financiaL statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBc&coLLP
Chartered Accountants

lcAl Firm number: 324982E/E300003

Partner

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Nexus SelKt,rlall L an.gement Private Limited

Manager to Nexus Setect Trust)

Parikh Dalip

L
Per ExecutiveOfficer Chief

DIN:
Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

Mumbai
l',\embership No 1 12773

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: I'tay 9, 2024

Director

DIN:00544890

Date: May 9, 2024

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024



Nexu sel*t Trst
RN: |N/REIT/22-23I0OO4

conderd consolidated Financial statemenB

Di*losure puEEnt to SEBI circular No. clvlt D/DF114612015

(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, untess otherwis stated)

For the period ended SePbmber 30, 2023

ll SPV wise NDCF

Particulars

Profit after tax as Per sbtement of Profit and loss (standalone) (A)

Add/(Le$): Non-cash adjustments, including but not limited to:

- Depreciation, amortization and impairment
- Assets written off or tiabitities written back

- Deferred tax
- Current Tax
- lnd-As adjustments (straight tining, effective interest for finance costs, etc )

- Other Non Cash Adiustments

Add: lnterest on SharehoLder Debt charged to statement of profit and loss

Add/(Less): Loss/{gain) on sate of assets, investments or shares of Asst sPVs or lnvestment

Entity

Add: Proceeds from sate of assets, investments (including cash equivalents), sale of shares of

Asset SPV5 or tnvestment Entity adjusted for the following:

- Appticabte capital gains and other taxes

- Related debts settled or due to be settted froh sale proceeds

- Djrectty attributable transactjon costs

- Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as permitted under REIT Regutations

Add:Proceedsfromsaleofinvestments,assetsorsateofsharesofAssetSPVSorlnvestment
Entity not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re'invest as permitted under REIT

Regutations, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subFquentty

Add/(Lss): Other adjustments, inctuding but not timited to net changes in Fcurity deposits,

working capitaL(inctuding cash and bank balances), etc.

Less: Capex not charged in the slalemeot of profit and loss, to the extent not funded by debt

Le$: Net debt repayment / (drawdown) / redemption of preference shares / debentures /
anyothersuchinstrument/premiums/accruedinterest/anyotherobtiSatjons/tiabil.ities
etc., to parties other than Nexus Setect Group, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Addl(Lss): Change in lntercorporate deposit amongst Asset SPVS

Add: Cash ftow received from Asst sPV and lnvestment Entity towards (apPticabLe for HoLdco

onty, to the extent not covered above):

- Repayment of the debt in case of investments by way of debt

- Proceeds from buy-backs / caPitat reduction

Less: lncome tax and other taxes paid (as appticabLe)

Le5s: Proceeds to shareholders other than Nexus Setect Trust through buyback of shares /
capitatreduction/dividendPaidonpreferenceorequitycapitaL,buybackdistributiontaxif
any paid on the same, and further incLuding buyback djstribution tax, if aPPticabte on

distribdion to Nexus Select Trust

Total adjustmenb (B)

CSJIPL VPPL CPPL SRPL NSRPL NWPL

251.27 229.56 33.46 80.14 30.86 79.67

NMRPL

(r,{angalore)
NURPL

(11.84) 52.10 (9.8O)

12.52 13.34

{0-64)

(0.45)

62.18 12.58

NMMCPL DIPL
NlvlRPL

(Mysore)
SIPL NHRPL

131.13 2,5'7la 76.11 333.85 51.22 3,a17.26

EDPL MSPL

51.42

o.12

5.12

94.08

5.60

(1.69)

65.74

Tobl

790.39

{6.6s)
(1,921 -08)

434.92

(41.441

15.74)

1 ,770.34

40.40

'123.92)

169.67

33.67

62.18

9.48

(0.10)

793.44

1A.73

0.09

33-79

55.91

(12.36)

30.40

0.90

30.'t 8

(1.62)

(1.10)

78.30

10.69

29.17
(8.s6)

\z.ozJ
0.77

45-05

8-33

60.80

117.641

11.47

(5.02)

z..ts

#.46

14.53

0-28

334.90

(2.83)

(2,098.68)

119.01

(17.01 )

0.60

454.60

39.57

0.93

16.74

24.29
(6.48)

348.40

9.28

8.92

12.71

15.01)

'12.30

45.97

{5.s5)
11.61

1 8.86

12.79

9.05
(0.1 1 )

26.47

2.71

(10.r3)

4.44

42.42

(8.23){0.e8)
(0.02)

63.87

7.27
(1.4e)

175.98

(1.69)

12.701

111.27

193-86 ',108.89 119.641 8.66 17.63

607.ss 136.05 177.37 106.24 131.63

10.14 17.93) 1.74 15.02 s.23 (21.39) A7.46 (s5.57) 43.91

(8.86) (23.80) |'24.211 {0.51)(32.04) (3.20) (s.83) 17.421 (s.12) (3.84) (2-01i (1 7s) (7341

1122.211 (6s.80) l27.esl (32.06) (19.41) 120.12) (4.69) (13.39) 12.361 (s.se) (39.36) (10s.84) (81.e2) Ies 73l (7 36) (644'08)

74.11 21.14 72.65 63-03 14.45 (1,360.421 4O4.7A 68.58 74.75 653.19

M5.7a 480.89 125.97 45
1 210.83 186.38

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Nexus sel4t lrlall Management PriEte Limited
(as Manaqer to Nexus Setect Trust)

62.27 62.A5 45.39

Raje5h

and Chief Executive officer chief Officer

140.47

The accompanyinq notes form an integrat part of the conden€d conglidated financiat statemenb

As per our report of even date

ForsRBC&coLLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm

per Abhishek

Partner
l'4embershjp No 1 12773

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

number: 324982ElE3@003

fu,/,
Tuhin Parikh
Director

DIN:00544890

PLace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024

MUMBAI
*

C9

e,
*

c &

Mumbai

Ptace: Mumbai

Date: May 9, 2024



Nexus Select Trust
RN : r N/RElr | 22-231 OOO4

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1. Trust Information

The condensed consotidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as the

'consotidated financia[ statements' or 'CFS') comprise financiatstatements of Nexus

Select Trust ("the Trust") and its subsidiaries / Speciat Purpose Vehictes ('SPVs')

(cottectivety, the "Group" or "Nexus Sel.ect Group") and joint venture (atso referred

to as the lnvestment Entity). The subsidiaries and joint venture are companies

domicited in lndia.

Nexus Setect Trust has been set up by Wynford lnvestments Limited (the'Sponsor')

on August 10,ZO22 as an irrevocabte trust under the provisions of the lndian Trusts

Act, 1882 pursuant to a Trust Deed dated August 10, 2022("Trust Deed"). The

registered office of the Trust is situated at Embassy 247, Unit no. 501, B Wing, LBS

Marg, Vikhroti (West), Mumbai 400083, Maharashtra.

The Trust was registered with SEBI on September 15, 2022, as a Rea[ Estate

lnvestment Trust ('REIT') under Regutation 3(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board

of lndia (Reat Estate lnvestment Trusts) Regutations, 2014, having registration

number |N/REIT/2Z-23/0004. The Trustee to the Trust is Axis Trustee Services

Limited (the 'Trustee') and the Manager for the Trust is Nexus Setect Mat[

Management Private Limited (the 'Manager'). The objectives of the Trust are to
undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of the REIT Regutations and

the Trust Deed. The principal activity of the Trust is to own and invest in rent or

income generating real estate and retated assets in lndia.

The Trust has acquired the SPVs and investment entity by acquiring att the equity

interest, Computsory Convertibte Debentures (CCDs), Redeemabte Preference Shares

(RPS) hetd by the Sponsor, Sponsor Group and certain other sharehotders on May 12,

2023. ln exchange for these, the above hotders have been attotted Units of the Trust.

Units were subsequentty tisted on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay

Stock Exchange (BSE) on May 19,2023.

The consotidated financiat statements were approved for issue in accordance with a
resotution passed by Board of Directors of the Manager on behatf the Trust on May

09,2024.

Detaits of the subsidiaries / Special Purpose Vehictes ('SPVs')/ lnvestment Entity

considered in the preparation of the consotidated financia[ statements are as fottows:

S. Name of
No SPV/Subsidiary

the Description of asset Shareholding

t. Setect tnfrasiiucture Nexus Setect Citywttk tocated at 100%

Private Limited Dethi
('slPL')
CSJ lnfrastructure Nexus Elante, Hyatt
Private Limited Chandigarh and Etante

Regency, 100%

Office,

o)
o

*

'csJlPL' tocated at Chandigarh



Nexus Select Trust
RN : I N/RErT | 22-231 OOO4

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

S. Name of the
No SPV/Subsidiary

3. Westerty Retail
Private Limited
('WRPL') (merged
with SIPL w.e.f. MaY

15,2023)
4. Euthoria Devetopers

Private Limited
('EDPL',)

Description of asset

Nexus Seawoods, located at Navi 100%

Mumbai
4.4 MW (AC) sotar power project,
located at Nagpur, which suPPties

etectricity to Nexus Seawoods

Nexus Amritsar, located at 
,

Amritsar
Nexus Ahmedabad One, located at
Ahmedabad
4.175 MW (AC) hybrid power
project (wind and sotar) located at
Rajkot, which suppties etectricity
to Nexus Ahmedabad One.

Nexus Hyderabad, located at
Hyderabad
Nexus Koramangata, located at
Bengaturu

Nexus Vijaya and Vijaya Offices,
located at Chennai

5. Nexus Hyderabad
Retait Private
Limited ('NHRPL')

Shareholding

100%

IRefer Note
betowl

100"/"

100o/"

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

6. Vijaya
Private
('VPPL')

7. ChitraLi
Private
('cPPL')

8. Safari
Private

Productions
Limited

Properties
Limited

Nexus Westend and 0.3 msf of the
Westend lcon Offices, tocated at
Pune

Nexus Esptanade, which inctudes
an office space, located at
Bhubaneshwar
Nexus Shantiniketan, located at
Bengaturu

Nexus Whitefietd and Oakwood
Residence WhitefieLd Bangatore,
located at Bengaturu

Fiza by Nexus, located at
Mangaturu

Retreats
Limited

('sRPL',)

9. Nexus Shantiniketan
Retail Private
Limited ('NSRPL')

10 Nexusmalls
Whitefietd Private
Limited ('NWPL')

11 Nexus Mangatore

Retail, Private
Limited ('NMRPL

(Mangatore)')
12 Nexus Udaipur RetaiI

Private Limited
('NURPL')

'13 Nexus Mysore Retail
Private Limited
('NMRPL (Mysore)')

Nexus Cetebration,
Udaipur

located at 100%

Nexus Centre City, located at 100%

Mysuru
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

S. No Name of
SPV/Subsidiary

the Description of asset

14. Naman Matt Nexus lndore Central, located at 100%

Management
Company Private
Limited ('NMMCPL')

15. Daksha lnfrastructure
Private Limited
('DlPL',)

16. Mamadapur Sotar
, Private Limited

('MSPL',)

lndore

0.7 msf of the Westend lcon

Offices and 9.7 MW of Renewabtes,
located at Pune

Karnataka Solar Park

Sharehotding

100%

100%

17. Nexus South Matt Mat[ management service
Management Private
Limited ('NSMMPL')
(merged with MSPL

w.e.f. Aprit 1 ,2023)
'18. lndore Treasure Treasure lsland Malt

lstand Private
Limited ('lTlPL')

100%

Note: As a part of formation transaction of the Trust, the Sponsor group has

transferred 99.45% equity to the Trust. For the remaining 0.55%, the Sponsor group

entity has agreed to selt its stake to the Trust at a fixed consideration of Rs. 100

mitLion in accordance with the applicable taw. As per the arrangement between the
Trust and Sponsor group entity, the Trust have present access of ownership on the
entire 100% equity of EDPL. Accordingty, investment in EDPL has been disctosed at
100% and consideration payable against the catl option has been recognized as

tiabitity.

2. Basis of Preparation and MaterialAccounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and Statement of Comptiance

The CFS has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Rea[ Estate

lnvestment Trusts) Regutations, 2014 as amended from time to time inctuding any
guidetines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circutar No.

CIR/IMD/DF/146/7016 dated December 79, 7016 (the "REIT Regulations"); lndian
Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 34 "lnterim Financiat Reporting", as prescribed in Rute

2(1Xa) of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 (as amended)
and other accounting principtes generatty accepted in lndia, to the extent not

.o
=Mumbai

inconsistent REIT regutations.

*l)
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

and Loss, inctuding other comprehensive income, the Condensed Consotidated

Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Net Distributabte Cashftows of Nexus

Setect Trust and each of the SPVs, and a summary of material accounting poticies

and other exptanatory information for the quarter, hatf year and year ended March

31,2024 and the Consotidated Statement of Changes in Unithotders' Equity for the
year ended March 31,2024 and the consotidated Statement of Total Returns at Fair

Vatue for the hatf year and year ended March 31,2024-

The CFS have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting

principtes generall.y accepted in lndia. Further, the CFS have been prepared on the

historicat cost basis except for the accounting poticies betow. The accounting poticies

have been apptied consistentty over a[[ the period presented in these CFS.

Att amounts discl,osed in the CFS and notes have been rounded off to the nearest

mittion as per the requirement of Schedute lll, untess otherwise stated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consotidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the

Group and lnvestment Entity. ControL is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has

rights, to variabte returns from its invotvement with the investee and has the abitity
to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specificatty, the Group

controls an investee if and onty if the Group has:

. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current abitity to
direct the retevant activities of the investee)

. Exposure, or rights, to variabte returns from its involvement with the investee,

and
. The abil,ity to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
. Generatty, there is a presumption that a rnajority of voting rights resutt in

controt. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a

majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers a[[

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, inctuding:
. The contractua[ arrangement with the other vote hotders of the investee

. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

. The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

. The size of the group's hotding of voting rights retative to the size and dispersion

of the hotdings of the other voting rights hotders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controts an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three etements

of controt. Consotidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over

the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,

tiabitities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are inctuded in the consotidated financiat statements from the date the Group

gains control, untit the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.



Nexus Select Trust
RN : I N/REIT/22-23 | o0o4
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

a

CFS are prepared using uniform accounting poticies for like transactions and other
events in simitar circumstances. lf a member of the Group uses accounting poticies

other than those adopted in the consotidated financia[ statements for Like

transactions and events in simitar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made

to that Group member's financial statements in preparing the consotidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting poticies.

The financial statements of atl entities used for the purpose of consolidation are
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company. When the end of
the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the
subsidiary prepares, for consotidation purposes, additiona[ financia[ information as

of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enabte the parent to
consotidate the financial information of the subsidiary, untess it is impracticabte to
do so.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine [ike items of assets, [iabitities, equity, income, expenses and cash ftows
of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and

expenses of the subsidiaries are based on the amounts of the assets and

tiabitities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition
date.

Offset (etiminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each

subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary.

Etiminate in futt intragroup assets and tiabitities, equity, income, expenses and

cash ftows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resutting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such

as inventory and fixed assets, are etiminated in futt). lntragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consotidated financial
statements. lnd AS 12 lncome Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise
from the etimihation of profits and losses resutting from intragroup transactions.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financia[ statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting poticies into [ine with the Group's accounting poticies. At[
intra-group assets and liabitities, equity, income, expenses and cash ftows retating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in futt on

consotidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of controt, is

accounted for as an equity transaction. lf the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
it:

Derecognises the assets (inctuding goodwitt) and liabitities of the subsidiary at

a

a

a

their carrying amounts at the date when controt is lost
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2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

2,3,1 Business combination

o Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controtting interests
. Derecognises the cumutative transtation differences recorded in equity
e Recognises the fair vatue of the consideration received
. Recognises the fair vatue of any investment retained
. Recognises any surptus or deficit in profit or loss

. Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group's capacity
as owners

Rectassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit
or loss or transferred directty to retained earnings, if required by other lnd ASs as

woutd be required if the Group had directly disposed of the retated assets or
Liabitities.

At the time of acquisition of assets and tiabitities assumed, the Group evatuates

whether the acquisition is a business combination or asset acquisition.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of
activities and assets inctude an input and a substantive process that together
significantty contribute to the abitity to create outputs. The acquired process is

considered substantive if it is criticat to the abitity to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired inctude an organised workforce with the necessary skitts,

knowtedge, or experience to perform that process or it significantty contributes to
the abitity to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot

be reptaced without significant cost, effort, or detay in the abitity to continue
producing outputs.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred
measured at acquisition date fair vatue and the amount of any non'controtting
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group etects whether
to measure the non-controtting interests in the acquiree at fair vatue or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiabte net assets. Acquisition'retated
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group has an option to apply a 'concentration test' that permits a simptified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The

optional concentration test is met if substantiatty att of the fair vatue of the gross

assets acquired (net of cash and cash equivatents, deferred tax assets and goodwi[[

from deferred tax tiabitities) in a transaction is concentrated in a singte identifiabte
asset or Group of simitar identifiabte assets.

lf the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and the Group identifies and recognizes the individual identifiabte
assets acquired and liabil.ities assumed by attocating the purchase price first to
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financia[ assets/financiaI tiabitities at the respective fair vatues, the remaining

batance of the purchase price is then attocated to the other identifiabte assets and

tiabitities on the basis of their retative fair vatues at the date of purchase. Such a

transaction does not give rise to goodwilt or bargain purchase gain.

2.3.2 Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the CFS in conformity with generatly accepted accounting
principtes in lndia requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabitities, income and expenses. Actual
results coutd differ from those estimates.

Estimated and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised

and in any future periods affected.

lnformation about critical judgements in apptying accounting poticies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the CFS is inctuded in the
fottowing notes:
. Presentation of "Unit Capitat" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT

Regutations
. Vatuation of financial instruments
r Estimation of useful tife of property, ptant and equipment and investment

property
o Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, avail,abitity of future taxabte

profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and provision for
income taxes.

. lmpairment and Fair vatuation of lnvestment Property, lnvestment property

under construction, Property, ptant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress
. Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disctosure of

contingent Iiabitities
. Assessment of acquisition as business combination vs asset acquisition and

apptying the concentration test.

Detaited information about each of these estimates and judgements is inctuded in

retevant notes together with information about the basis of calcutation for each

affected line item in the CFS.

2.3.3 lnvestment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant inftuence. Significant
inftuence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

of the investee but is not control or joint control over those poticies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
controt is the contractuatty agreed sharing of contro[ of an arrangement, which exists
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onty when decisions about the retevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing controt.

The considerations made in determining whether significant inftuence or joint control

are simitar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

lnterests in fottowing joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Name of Company Description of asset Current shareholding

lndore Treasure lstand

Private Limited (lTlPL),

[Padma Homes Private
Limited (Padma) and Katani

Brothers (lndia) Limited
(Katani) are whotty-owned
subsidiaries of lTlPLl

Treasure lstand Matt,

which includes an office
space, located at lndore

Nexus Setect Trust -

50%
Mr. Karan Singh
Chhabra - 50%

The Group's investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using

the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initiatty recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment

is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate

or joint venture since the acquisition date.

The statement of profit and loss reftects the Group's share of the resutts of

operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is

presented as part of the Group's OCl. ln addition, when there has been a change

recognised directLy in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group

recognises its share of any changes, when appticabte, in the statement of changes in

equity. Unreatised gains and losses resutting from transactions between the Group

and the associate or joint venture are etiminated to the extent of the interest in the

associate or joint venture.

lf an entity's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equats or exceeds its

interest in the associate or joint venture (which inctudes any long-term interest that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additionat

losses are recognised onty to the extent that the Group has incurred [ega[ or

constructive obtigations or made payments on behatf of the associate or joint
venture. lf the associate or joint venture subsequentty reports profits, the entity

resumes recognising its share of those profits onty after its share of the profits equats

the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or [oss of an associate and a joint venture

is shown on the face of the statement of profit and [oss outside operating profit.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same

reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the

accounting poticies in line with those of the Group.
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After apptication of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary

to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At

each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that
the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. lf there is such evidence,

the Group catcutates the amount of impairment as the difference between the

recoverabte amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying vatue, and then

recognises the loss as 'Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture' in the
statement of profit and [oss.

Upon loss of significant inftuence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.

Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon

loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair vatue of the retained

investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or [oss.

2.3.4 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current /
non-current

ctassification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normal

operating cycte
. Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading
. Expected to be reatised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
. Cash or cash equivatent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to
settte a

tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period

A[[ other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:

. lt is expected to be settted in normal operating cycte

r lt is held primarity for the purpose of trading
o lt is due to be settted within twetve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttement of the tiabitity for at
Ieast

twetve months after the reporting period

The terms of the tiabitity that coutd, at the option of the counterparty, resutt in its

setttement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its ctassification.

The Group ctassifies atI other [iabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and Liabil,ities are ctassified as non-current assets and liabitities.
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2.3.5

The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and

their reatisation in cash and cash equivatents. The Group has identified twetve

months as its operating cycte.

Foreign currencies

The CFS are presented in lNR, which is atso the parent company's functional

currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items

inctuded in the financiat statement! of each entity are measured using that functiona[

currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiatty recorded by the Group's entities at

their respective functiona[ currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
quatifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate

if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currencies are transtated at

the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on setttement or transtation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initiat
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair vatue in a foreign currency are

transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair vatue is determined.
The gain or toss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair vatue

is treated in tine with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value

of the item (i.e., transtation differences on items whose fair vatue gain or loss is

recognised in OCI or profit or toss are atso recognised in OCI or profit or [oss,

respectivety).

ln determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the retated

asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset

or non-monetary tiabitity rel.ating to advance consideration, the date of the

transaction is the date on which the Group initiatty recognises the non-monetary

asset or non-monetary tiabitity arising from the advance consideration. lf there are

muttipte payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date

for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair vatue

at each batance sheet date.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to sett an asset or paid to transfer a

tiabitity in an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. The fair vatue measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction

s
o

rk

to sett the asset or transfer the tiabitity takes ptace either:
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. ln the principal market for the asset or [iabitity, or

. ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the

asset or tiabitity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair vatue of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions that market
participants woutd use when pricing the asset or liabitity, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair vatue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest

and best use or by setting it to another market participant that woutd use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and

for which sufficient data are avaitabte to measure fair vatue, maximising the use of

retevant observabte inputs and minimising the use of unobservabte inputs.

Att assets and tiabitities for which fair vatue is measured or disctosed in the financial

statements are categorised within the fair vatue hierarchy, described as fottows,

based on the lowest [eve[ input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as

a whote:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabitities
. Level 2 - Val,uation techniques for which the towest [eve[ input that is significant

to the fair vatue measurement is directty or indirectty observabte
. Levet 3 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest [eve[ input that is significant

to the fair vatue measurement is unobservabte

For assets and liabitities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between

levets in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest [eve[ input

that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a whote) at the end of each

reporting period.

The Group's management determines the poticies and procedures for both recurring

fair vatue measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financia[ assets

measured at fair vatue, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets hetd for
sale in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the Management anatyses the movements in the vatues of
assets and tiabil,ities which are required to be remeasured or re'assessed as per the

Group's accounting poticies.

For the purpose of fair vatue disctosures, the Group has determined ctasses of assets

and tiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or

tiabitity and the [eve[ of the fair vatue hierarchy as exptained above.

.i

2.3.6 Revenue from Operations

o
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Revenue from lease rentals

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantiatty att the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an asset are cl,assified as operating leases. Rental income

arising is accounted for on a straight-l,ine basis over the [ock'in term. lnitial direct

costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the

carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lock-in term on the same

basis as rentat income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in

which they are earned.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or

services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reftects the consideration

to which the Group expects to be entitted in exchange for those goods or services

and exctudes amounts cottected on behatf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probabte, and the

amount of revenue can be measured retiabty. Revenue towards satisfaction of a

performance obtigation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of

variabte consideration) attocated to that performance obtigation. The transaction

price of goods sotd and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account

of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract and

and exctuding taxes or duties cottected on behatf of the government.

The specific recognition criteria described bel,ow must atso be met before revenue is

recognised.

a Revenue from contract with customers majorty inctude income from maintenance

services, marketing and parking. Revenue is recognised as and when the services

are rendered based on the terms of the contracts. The Group cottects goods and

service tax on behatf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic

benefit ftowing to the Group. Hence, it is exctuded from revenue. The Group

raises invoices as per the terms of the contract, upon which the payment is due

to be made by the customers. lf the consideration in a contract inctudes a

variabte amount (tike votume rebates / incentives, cash discounts etc.), the

Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it wil.t be entitted in

exchange for rendering the services to the customer. The variabte consideration

is estimated at contract inception and constrained untiI it is highty probabte that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumutative revenue recognised

witt not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variabte consideration is

subsequentty resotved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected

future volume rebates / incentives, cash discounts etc. are made on the most

tikety amount method. Revenue is disctosed net of such amounts.

Hospitality business - Revenue comprises sate of rooms, food and beverages and

attied services retating to hotet operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering
a

of services. Revenue recognised is net of indirect taxes, returns and discounts.
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2.3.7

2.3.8 Taxes

. Sale of renewable energy - Revenue from sate of power is recognised net of cash

discount over time for each unit of etectricity detivered at the contracted rate.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services

transferred to the customer. lf Group performs its obtigation by transferring goods

or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment

is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditionat.

Trade receivables

A receivabte (whether bitted or unbitted) represents Group's right to an amount of

consideration that is unconditional (i.e., onty the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract tiabitity is the obtigation to transier goods or services to a customer for
which Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from

the customer. lf a customer pays consideration before Group transfers goods or

services to the customer, a contract tiabitity is recognised when the payment is made

or the payment is due (whichever is eartier). Contract tiabitities are recognised as

revenue when Group performs its obtigations under the contract.

Dividend income and lnterest income

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which

Group's right to receive payment is estabtished.

lnterest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The'effective
interest rate' is the rate that exactty discounts estimated future cash receipts through

the expected tife of the financiat instrument to the gross carrying amount of the

financiaI asset.

ln calcutating interest income, the effective interest rate is apptied to the gross

carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit'impaired). However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,

interest income is catculated by apptying the effective interest rate to the amortised

cost of the financial asset.

. Current income tax

Current income tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used

to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at the

o)
o

*

reporting date.
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Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised

outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax

items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or

directty in equity. Management periodicatty evatuates positions taken in the tax

returns with respect to situations in which appticabl.e tax regutations are subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probabte that a taxation authority witl
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group shatl reftect the effect of uncertainty

for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most tikety method or expected vatue

method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between

the tax bases of assets and tiabitities and their carrying amounts for financia[ reporting
purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax tiabitities are recognised for atl taxabte temporary differences, except:

. When the deferred tax tiabitity arises from the initiat recognition of goodwitt or

an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or

loss.

. ln respect of taxabl.e temporary differences associated with investments in

subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controtted and it is probabte that the

temporary differences witl not reverse in the foreseeabte future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for atl deductibte temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax tosses. Deferred tax assets are

recognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witl be avaitabte

against which the deductibte temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utitised, except:

. When the deferred tax asset retating to the deductibte temporary difference
arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss

. ln respect of deductibte temporary differences associated with investments in

subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are

recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences
wi[[ reverse in the foreseeabte future and taxabte profit wit[ be avaitabte against

which the temporary differences can be utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabte that sufficient taxabte profit witt
be availabte to attow att or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised

deferred tax re-assessed at each rePorti ng date and are recognised to the
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2.3.9

Type of asset
Buitdings

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

extent that it has become probabte that future taxabte profits wit[ attow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
appty in the year when the asset is reatised, or the tiabitity is settted, based on tax
rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in
equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria
for separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequentty if new information
about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised
within the measurement period reduce goodwitt retated to that acquisition if they
resutt from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the
acquisition date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitl is zero, any remaining deferred
tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital reserye depending on the principte
exptained for bargain purchase gains. At[ other acquired tax benefits reatised are
recognised in profit or [oss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabitities if and onty if it has

a tegatty enforceabte right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabitities and

the deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities retate to income taxes levied by

the same taxation authority on either the same taxabte entity or different taxabte
entities which intend either to settte current tax tiabitities and assets on a net basis,

or to realise the assets and settte the tiabiLities simuttaneousty, in each future period

in which significant amounts of deferred tax tiabitities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Property, plant and equipment

Capitat work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumutated impairment [oss, if any.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumutated depreciation
and accumutated impairment losses, if any. Such cost inctudes the cost of reptacing
part of the ptant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of ptant and

equipment are required to be reptaced at intervats, the Group depreciates them
separatety based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is

performei, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the ptant and equipment
as a reptacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Att other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is catcutated on a straight-[ine basis over the estimated usefut tives of
the assets as fottows:

Estimated Useful Lives (ln years)

51-75
8-15
5-20
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Vehicles
Computers
Ptant and machinery
EtectricaI instaItations

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and

management estimate, depreciates certain items of buitding, ptant and equipment
over estimated usefut tives which are different from the useful life prescribed in

Schedute ll to the Companies Act,2013. The management betieves that these

estimated usefu[ lives are reatistic and reftect fair approximation of the period over

which the assets are likety to be used.

The Group reviews the estimated residuat vatues and expected useful lives of assets

at least annuatty.

An item of property, ptant and equipment and any significant part initiatty recognised

is derecognised upon disposat or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use oidisposat. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calcutated

as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is inctuded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, ptant and

equipment are reviewed at each financial. year end and adjusted prospectivety, if
appropriate.

2.3.10 I nvestment properties

lnvestment properties are measured initiatty at cost, inctuding transaction costs.

Subsequent to initiat recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumutated impairment loss, if any.

The cost inctudes the cost of reptacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
the investment properties are required to be reptaced at intervals, the Group

depreciates them separatety based on their specific usefu[ lives. At[ other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is catcutated on a straight-Line basis over the estimated usefu[ lives of
the assets as fottows:

Type of asset
Buitdings

Leasehotd land
Ptant and Machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Offjce Equipment
Computers
EtectricaI instattations

Estimated Useful Lives (ln Years)
Primary lease period of tand or buitding or 75

years, whichever is lower
Primary lease period

3-20

10-15

5-20

3-6
10-20

*
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The Group, based on technical assessment made by technicat expert and

management estimate, depreciates the buitding over estimated useful lives which

are different from the usefut tife prescribed in Schedute ll to the Companies Act,

2013. The management betieves that these estimated useful lives are reatistic and

reftect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are tikety to be used.

lnvestment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or

when they are permanentty withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is

expected from tneir disposit. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition. ln determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of
investment properties the Group considers the effects of variable consideration,

existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and

consideration payabte to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties onty when there is a change

in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and

inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they

do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disctosure purposes.

2.3.11 Intangible assets

lntangibLe assets acquired separatety are measured on initiat recognition at cost.

Fottoiing initiat recognition, intangibte assets are carried at cost less any

accumutited amortisatlon and accumul,ated impai rment losses. lnternatty generated

intangibLes, exctuding capitatised devetopment costs, are not capitatised and the

retat6d expenditure is reftected in profit or loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred.

The usefut tives of intangibte assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

lntangibte assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and

assesied for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangibte asset

may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an

intangibte asset with a finite usefut life are reviewed at teast at the end of each

r"porilng period. Changes in the expected useful tife or the expected pattern of

consurpilbn of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify ihe amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes

in aciounting estimates. tre amortisation expense on intangibte assets.with finite
tives is recogiised in the statement of profit and loss untess such expenditure forms

part of carrying vatue of another asset.

lntangibte assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impaiiment annuatty, either individuaLty or at the cash-generating unit levet. The

assessment of indefinite tife is reviewed annuatty to determine whether the indefinite
tife continues to be supportabte. lf not, the change in useful life from indefinite to

finite is made on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is catcutated on a straight-tine basis over the estimated useful lives of

the intangibte assets as fottows:

Estimated Useful Lives (ln Years)
3

Type of asset
Software
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Customer Contracts

An intangibte asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains cbntrot) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposat. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (catcutated as the
difierence between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)

is inctuded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.3.12Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directty attributabte to the acquisition, construction or production

of an asset that necessarity takes a substantiat period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sate are capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. At[ other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs

consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso inctudes exchange differences to the extent

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.3.13 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group appl,ies a singte recognition and measurement approach for a[[ leases,

except for short-term leases and leases of tow-vatue assets. The Group recognises

tease tiabitities to make lease payments and right-of'use assets representing the right

to use the underlYing assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the [ease

(i.e., the date the undertying asset is avaitabte for use). Right-of-use assets are

measured at cost, less any accumutated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of tease liabitities. The cost of right'of'use assets

inctudes the amount of lease Liabil,ities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight'tine basis over the shorter

of the [ease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as fottows:

Type of asset Estimated Useful Lives (ln Years)
Plant and machinery 3 to 15 rs

Buitding 3to5

lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term

or the cost reftects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is catcutated using

the estimated usefu[ life of the asset.

ii. Lease liabilities
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At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises [ease liabitities
measured at the present vatue of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments inctude fixed payments (inctuding in substance fixed payments)

less any [ease incentives receivabte, variabte lease payments that depend on an index

or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual vatue guarantees. The

lease payments atso inctude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonabty

certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the tease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
Variabte lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

expenses (untess they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

ln catcutating the present vatue of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate impticit
in the lease is not readity determinabte. After the commencement date, the amount

of lease tiabitities is increased to reftect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying amount of lease liabitities is

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resutting from a change in an index

or rate used to determine such tease payments) or a change in the assessment of an

option to purchase the undertying asset.

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group appties the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases

of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months

or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). lt atso

appties the lease of low-vatue assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be tow vatue. Lease payments on short-term leases

and leases of low-vatue assets are recognised as expense on a straight-tine basis over

the lease term.

2.3. 1 4 I mpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an

asset may be impaired. lf any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing

for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverabte amount. An

asset's recoverabte amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU)

fair vatue less costs of disposat and its vatue in use. The recoverabte amount is

determined for an individuat asset, untess the asset does not generate cash inftows

that are targety independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, the asset is

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabte amount.

ln assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their
present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that reftects current market assessments

of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair
vatue less costs of disposat, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate vatuation model is used. These
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catcutations are corroborated by vatuation muttiptes, quoted share prices for pubticty

traded companies or other avaitabte fair vatue indicators.

The Group bases its impairment catcutation on detaited budgets and forecast

catcutations, which are prepared separatety for each of the Group's CGUs to which

the individuatassets are attocated. These budgets and forecast catcutations generatty

cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a [ong-term growth rate is catcutated

and apptied to project future cash ftows after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group

extrapotates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady or dectining growth

rate for subsequent years, untess an increasing rate can be justified. ln any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the tong-term average growth rate for the products,

industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in

which the asset is used.
lmpairment losses of continuing operations, inctuding impairment on inventories, are

recognised in the statement of profit and [oss, except for properties previousty

revatued with the revatuation surptus taken to OCl. For such properties, the
impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surptus.

For assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that previousty recognised impairment

tosses no [onger exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group

estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverabte amount. A previousty recognised

impairment toss is reversed onty if there has been a change in the assumptions used

to determine the asset's recoverabte amount since the [ast impairment loss was

recognised. The reversat is timited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not

exceed its recoverabte amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that woutd have

been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment toss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and

[oss unless the asset is carried at a revatued amount, in which case, the reversal is

treated as a revatuation increase.
Goodwitt is tested for impairment annuatty and when circumstances indicate that the

carrying vatue may be imPaired.

lmpairment is determined for goodwitt by assessing the recoverabte amount of each

CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwitl retates. When the recoverable amount

of the CGU is less than it's carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

lmpairment losses retating to goodwitt cannot be reversed in future periods.

lntangibte assets with indefinite usefut lives are tested for impairment annuatty at
the CGU levet, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying

vatue may be impaired.

2.3,15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

. General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obtigation (tegal or

constructive) as a resutt of a past event, it is probabte that an outftow of resources

embodying economic benefits witt be required to settte the obtigation and a retiabte

estimate can be made of the amount of the obtigation. When the Group expects some
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or att of a provision to be reimbursed, for exampte, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but onty when the reimbursement

is virtuatty certain. The expense retating to a provision is presented in the statement

of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

lf the effect of the time value of money is materiat, provisions are discounted using

a current pre-tax rate that reftects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
tiabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as a finance cost.

. Onerous contracts

lf the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obtigation under the contract
is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for
an onerous contract is establ.ished, the Group recognises any impairment [oss that
has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidabte costs (i.e., the costs

that the Group cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obtigations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.
The unavoidabte costs under a contract reftect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of ful,fitting it and any compensation or
penatties arising from faiture to futfit it. The cost of fuLfitting a contract comprises
the costs that retate directty to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an

attocation of costs directty related to contract activities).

. Contingent Liabilities
A contingent tiabitity is a possibte obtigation that arises from past events whose

existence witt be confirmed by the occurrence or non'occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events beyond the control of Group or a present obtigation that is

not recognised because it is not probabl,e that an outftow of resources witt be required
to settte the obtigation. A contingent tiabitity atso arises in extremety rare cases

where there is a tiabitity that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured
retiabty. The contingent l,iabitity is not recognised in the books of accounts but its
existence is disctosed in the CFS by way of notes to accounts, untess possibility of an

outftow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

2.3,16 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme.
The Group has no obtigation, other than the contribution payabte to the provident
fund. The Group recognizes contribution payabte to the provident fund scheme as an

expense, when an emptoyee renders the retated service. lf the contribution payabte

to the scheme for service received before the batance sheet date exceeds the
contribution atready paid, the deficit payabte to the scheme is recognized as a
l,iabitity after deducting the contribution atready paid. lf the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the batance sheet

date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre'payment witl
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

*
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The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in lndia, which requires
contributions to be made to a separatety administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit ptan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset

ceiting, exctuding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit tiabitity
and the return on ptan assets (excl.uding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net
defined benefit tiabitity), are recognised immediatety in the batance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not rectassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eartier of:

. The date of the ptan amendment or curtaitment, and

. The date that the Group recognises retated restructuring costs

Net interest is catculated by apptying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
tiabitity or asset. The Group recognises the fottowing changes in the net defined
benefit obtigation as an expense in the consotidated statement of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtaitments and non-routine setttements; and Net interest expense or income

Accumutated leave, which is expected to be utitized within the next 12 months, is

treated as short-term emptoyee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additionat amount that it expects to pay as a resutt of the unused

entittement that has accumutated at the reporting date. The group recognizes
expected cost of short-term emptoyee benefit as an expense, when an emptoyee
renders the retated service.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twetve
months, as [ong-term emptoyee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long'term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial vatuation using the
projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/tosses are
immediatety taken to the statement of profit and [oss and are not deferred. The

obtigations are presented as current tiabitities in the batance sheet if the entity does

not have an unconditional right to defer the setttement for at least twetve months

after the reporting date.

2.3,17 Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financia[ asset of one entity
and a financial, tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financiat assets are ctassified, at initial recognition, as subsequentty measured at
amortised cost, fair vatue through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair vatue

through profit or toss.
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The ctassification of financial assets at initiat recognition depends on the financial
asset's contractual cash ftow characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivabtes that do not contain a

significant financing component or for which the Group has apptied the practical
eipedient, the Group initiatty measures a financial asset at its fair vatue ptus, in the
case of a financial. asset not at fair vatue through profit or [oss, transaction costs.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has apptied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price

determined under lnd AS 115. Refer to the accounting poticies in section (f) Revenue

from contracts with customers.

ln order for a financial asset to be ctassified and measured at amortised cost or fair
vatue through OCl, it needs to give rise to cash ftows that are'sotety payments of
principat and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is

referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument levet. Financial assets

with cash ftows that are not SPPI are ctassified and measured at fair vatue through
profit or [oss, irrespective of the business modet.

The Group's business modet for managing financial assets refers to how it manages

its financia[ assets in order to generate cash ftows. The business model determines
whether cash ftows witt resutt from cottecting contractuat cash ftows, setting the
financial assets, or both. Financiat assets ctassified and measured at amortised cost

are hetd within a business modet with the objective to hotd financial assets in order
to cotl,ect contractual cash ftows white financiat assets ctassified and measured at fair
vatue through OCI are hetd within a business model with the objective of both hotding

to cottect contractual cash ftows and setting.

Purchases or sates of financial assets that require detivery of assets within a time
frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the marketptace (regutar way

trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or setl the asset.

Subsequent measu rement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

. Financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with
recycting of cumutative gains and losses (debt instruments)

. Financial assets designated at fair vatue through OCI with no recycting of
cumutative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

. Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the foltowing
conditions are met:

. The asset is hel,d within a business model whose objective is to hotd assets for
cottecting contractua[ cash flows, and
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. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are

sotety payments of principaL and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initiat measurement, such financial assets are subsequentty measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is
catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees

or costs thai are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded in
finance income in the profit or [oss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognised in the Profit or [oss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A 'financial asset' is ctassified as at the FWOCI if both of the fottowing criteria are

met:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by cotlecting contractual
cash ftows and setting the financial assets, and

ii. The asset's contractual cash ftows represent SPP|

Debt instruments inctuded within the FVTOCI category are measured initiatty as

wetl as at each reporting date at fair vatue. For debt instruments, at fair vatue

through OCl, interest income, foreign exchange revatuation and impairment
losses or reversats are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same

manner as for financiat assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
vatue changes are recognised in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumutative fair
value changes recognised in OCI is recl.assified from the equity to profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initiat recognition, the Group can elect to ctassify irrevocabty its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair vatue through OCI when they
meet the definition of equity under lnd AS 32 Financial lnstruments: Presentation and

are not hetd for trading. The ctassification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Equity instruments which are hetd for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which lnd AS103

appties are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financiat assets are never recycted to profit or [oss'

Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and toss when

the right of payment has been estabtished, except when the Group benefits from such

proceeds as'a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such

gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments designated at fair vatue through OCI

are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial, assets at fair vatue through profit or loss are carried in the batance sheet

at fair vatue with net changes in fair vatue recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

This category inctudes derivative instruments and [isted equity investments which the

Group had not irrevocabty etected to ctassify at fairvatue through OCl. Dividends on

,|
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tisted equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been estabtished.

Derecognition

A financiat asset (or, where appticabte, a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of simitar financiat assets) is primarity derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's

consotidated batance sheet) when:

. The rights to receive cash ftows from the asset have expired, or

. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from the asset or has

assumed an obtigation to pay the received cash ftows in futl without material

de1ay to a third party under a'pass-through'arrangement; and either (a) the
group has transferred substantiatty att the risks and rewdrds of the asset, or (b)

lhe group has neither transferred nor retained substantiatl.y att the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro[ of the asset.

. When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from an asset or has

entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evatuates if and to what extent it has

retained the riiks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor

retained substantiatty att of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing invotvement. ln that case, the Group atso recognises an

associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiabitity are measured

on a basis that reftects the rights and obtigations that the Group has retained.

Continuing invotvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset

is measured at the lower of the originat carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the group coutd be required to repay.

lmpairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an attowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for att debt

instruments not hetd at fair vatue through profit or [oss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash ftows due in accordance with the contract
and att the cash fl.ows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows wit[
inctude cash ftows from the sate of cottateral hetd or other credit enhancements that
are integra[ to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been

a significant increase in credit risk since initiat recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit [osses that resul,t from defautt events that are possibte within the next 12-

months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initiat recognition, a loss attowance is required

for credit losses expected over the remaining tife of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the defautt (a tifetime ECL).

For trade receivabtes and contract assets, the Group applies a simptified approach in

catcutating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but

instead reiognises a loss attowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Group his estabtished a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
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experience, adjusted for forward-tooking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair vatue through OCl, the Group appties the low credit risk

simptification. At every reporting date, the Group evatuates whether the debt
instrument is considered to have low credit risk using atl reasonabte and supportabte
information that is availabte without undue cost or effort.

It is the Group's poticy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12'month basis.

However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the attowance witl be based on the lifetime ECL.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financiat Liabitities are ctassified, at initial, recognition, as financiat [iabil.ities at fair
value through profit or [oss, loans and borrowings, payabtes, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Att financiat tiabil.ities are recognised initiatty at fair vatue and, in the case of loans

and borrowings and payabtes, net of directty attributabte transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabitities are ctassified in two
categories:

. Financia[ tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or [oss

. Financial tiabitities at amortised cost (toans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or [oss inctude financial tiabitities hetd

for trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vatue

through profit or toss.

Financial tiabitities are ctassified as hetd for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category atso inctudes derivative

iinanciat instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging

instruments in hedge relationships as defined by lnd AS 109. Separated embedded

derivatives are atso cl,assified as hetd for trading untess they are designated as

effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on Liabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financiat tiabil.ities designated upon initiat recognition at fair vatue through profit or

loss are designated as such at the initiat date of recognition, and onty if the criteria
in lnd AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabitities designated as FVTPL, fair vatue gains/ losses

attributabte to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ losses

are not subsequentfy transferred to P&L. However, the group may transfer the

cumutative gain or tois within equity. AtL other changes in fair vatue of such tiabitity
are recogniseO in the statement of profit and [oss. The Group has not designated any

financiat tiabitity as at fair vatue through profit or [oss.

Financial tiabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)
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After initiat recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequentty

measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the tiabitities are derecognised as wetl as through the EIR

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation
is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and [oss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financiat guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a

payment to be made to reimburse the hotder for a toss it incurs because the specified
debtor fail,s to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financiat guarantee contracts are recognised initiatty as a tiabitity at fair
vatue, adjusted for transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequentty, the tiabitity is measured at the higher of the amount of
tosslttowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the
amount recognised [ess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised in accordance with the principtes of lnd AS 115.

Derecognition

A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is

discharged or cancetted or expires. When an existing financial tiabitity is reptaced by

anothei from the same lender on substantiatty different terms, or the terms of an

existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an exchange or modification is

treated as the derecognition of the originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new

tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines ctassification of financial assets and liabitities on initiat
recognition. After initial, recognition, no rectassification is made for financial assets

which are equity instruments and financiat tiabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a rectassification is made onty if there is a change in the business

modet for managing those assets. Changes to the business mode[ are expected to be

infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business modet

as a iesult of external or internat changes which are significant to the Group's

operations. Such changes are evident to externat parties. A change in the business

model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is

significant to its operations. lf the Group reclassifies financia[ assets, it appties the
rettassification prospectivety from the rectassification date which is the first day of
the immediatety next reporting period fottowing the change in business modet. The

Group does not restate any previousty recognised gains, [osses (inctuding impairment
gains or losses) or interest.

The fottowing tabl,e shows various rectassification and how they are accounted for:

Original
classification

Revised
classification

Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair vatue is measured at rectassification
date. Difference between previous
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amortized cost an
in profit or loss.

d fair vatue is recognised

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair vatue at rectassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is
catcutated based on the new gross carrying
amount

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair vatue is measured at rectassification
date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair vatue is recognised
in OCl. No change in EIR due to
rectassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair vatue at rectassification date becomes
its new amortised cost carrying amount.
However, cumutative gain or loss in OCI is

adjusted against fair vatue. Consequently,
the asset is measured as if it had atways
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair vatue at rectassification date becomes
its new carrying amount. No other

ustment is

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair
vatue. Cumutative gain or loss previousty
recognized in OCI is rectassified from equity
to or loss the rectassification date

Offsetting of financiaI instruments

Financial assets and financiat tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in

the standatone batance sheet if there is a currentty enforceabte legat right to offset

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis, to reatise

the assets and settte the tiabitities simultaneousty.

2,3. 1 8 Segment Information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities

from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses. At[ operating segments,

operating resutts are reviewed regutarty by a representative of Group and Group's

Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM') to make decisions about resources to be

atlocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financiaI

information is avaitabte.

Segment resutt represents Net Operating lncome (NOl) which has been defined by

the CODM as fo[tows:

Mall Rentals (Urban Consumption Centre Rentals)

NOI for Matt business is defined as Revenue from operations, which inctudes (i)

revenue from tease rentats (ii) maintenance income (iii) marketing income and (iv)

parking income and other.operating income less other operating expenses which

inctudes (i) Emptoyee benefits expense (ii) Operations and maintenance expenses

exctuding b support service and non'recurring repairs and maintenance; (iii)
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other expenses exctuding certain non-recurring (a) [ega[ and professionat fees (b)

bad-debts, attowances for excepted credit losses ( c) lnd AS adjustments and (d) any

other gains / losses etc.

Office Rentals

NOI for Office business is defined as Revenue from operations, which inctudes (i)

revenue from lease rentals (ii) maintenance service (iii) parking income less other

operating expenses which includes (i) Emptoyee benefits expense (ii) Operations and

maintenance expenses exctuding business support seryice and non-recurring repairs

and maintenance; (iii) other expenses exctuding certain non-recurring (a) tegal and

professional fees (b) bad-debts, atlowances for excepted credit tosses ( c) lnd AS

adjustments and (d) any other gains / losses etc.

Hospitality

NOI for Hotel business is defined as Revenue from operations, which includes (i) Room

income (ii) Food and beverage revenue (iii) Other operating revenue less other

operating expenses which inctudes (i) Emptoyee benefits expense (ii) Food, beverage

and operating suppties consumed (iii) Operations and maintenance expenses

exctuding management fees (iv) Other expenses

Others

NOI for other segments is defined as Revenue from operations which includes (i) Sate

of lnventories (office units and tand) (ii) income from generation of renewabte energy

(iii) other operating revenue less other operating expenses which inctudes (i) Changes

in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (ii) emptoyee benefits expenses

and (ii) other expenses exctuding business support service, bad-debts, altowances for
excepted credit tosses and (iii) any other gains/ losses etc.

2.3.19 Unit Capital

Units issued by the Trust are ctassified as equity. lncremental costs directty
attributabte to the issuance of units are recognized as a deduction from equity, net

of any tax effects.

2.3.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivatent in the batance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand,

cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months

or [ess, that are readity convertibte to a known amount of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in vatue.

2.3.21 Distribution Policy

Under the provisions of the REIT Regutations, the Trust is required to distribute to
the unithotders not less than ninety percent of the net distributabte cash ftows
('NDCF') of the Trust ("REIT Distributions"). The NDCF is catcutated in accordance
with the REIT Regutations and in the manner defined by the Manager. REIT

Distributions shatt be dectared and made not less than once every six months in every

ltr[i:'.
T
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financial year and shatt be made not tater than fifteen days from the date of such

dec[aration.

ln terms of the REIT Regul,ations and NDCF framework prescribes the fottowing
minimum amount of NDCF to be distributed to the Trust:
- not less than 90% of the NDCF of the SPVs are required to be distributed to the
Trust, in proportion to its sharehotding in the SPVs, subject to appticabte provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013.
- 1OO% of the cash ftows received by the Hol.ding Company from the undertying SPVs

are required to be distributed to the Trust, and not less than 90% of the NDCF

generated by the Hotding Company on its own shatl be distributed to the Trust,
subject to appticabte provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The aforesaid net distributabte cash ftows are made avaitabte to Trust in the form of
(i) interest paid on Sharehotder Debt, (ii) Repayment of Sharehotder Debt, (iii)
dividends (net of appticabte taxes), (iv) Proceeds from buy-backs / capital reduction
(net of appticabte taxes) and (v) Redemption proceeds of preference shares or other
simitar instruments or as specificatty permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other
form as may be permissibte under the appticabte [aw.

2,3.z?Statement of net assets at fair value

The disctosure of statement of Net Assets at Fair value comprises of the fair vatues

of the properties hetd by SPVs/lnvestment Entity and the Hotding Company as wetl as

book vatues of the totat tiabitities and other assets of the Group. The fair vatue of
the property hetd by SPVs/lnvestment Entity and Hotding Company are reviewed
semi-annuatty taking into consideration market conditions existing at the reporting
date, and other generatly accepted market practices.

2.3,23Cash distribution to Unitholders

The Group recognizes a tiabil,ity to make cash distributions to Unithotders when the
distribution is authorized. As per the REIT Regutations, a distribution is authorized
when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A corresponding amount
is recognized directly in equity.

2.3.z4Statement of Cash flows
Cash ftows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrats or
accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash ftows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Ftow, cash and cash equivatents consist of
cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short'term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank/book overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

2,3.25 Earnings per unit
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Basic earnings per unit is catcutated by dividing the net profit or toss attributable to
unit hotders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of catcutating dituted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the
period attributabte to unithotders and the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of att ditutive potentiat
units.

2.3.26Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, share of net profits /
(losses) of investments accounted for using equity method, exceptional items and
tax (EBITDA)

The Group has etected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the
Condensed Consotidated Statement of Profit and Loss. ln its measurement, the Group
does not inctude finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, share of net profits /
(tosses) of investments accounted for using equity method, exceptiona[ items and

tax.
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3 Property, Plant and Eouioment {'PPE )

Freehold
lands

Leaiehold
improvements

Buildings
Plant and

machineries
Furniture and

tixtureg
Computerr

Office
equipments

Electric
installations

vehicles Tohl
Particulars

Gross carrying value
Ealance as at Aprit 01, 2023

Addition on account of acquisition
(Refer note 55)

Additions

1,089.41

17.14

1 ,383,77

4.27

1,645.15

50.92

220.88

15.10

23,20

7.18

9.09

o.74

32.19

7.10

57.31

14.50

5.40 6,465,97

1 11.95

Balance as at 2024

Accumulated depreciation

Batance as at APriL 01, 2023

Charge for the Year

15

11.61

29. 37.70

5.48

7 1.52

6.71 1.06

15.

197.11
1.76 17.70 84.41

1.t5

7.98

7.19 6.51

1l

389.O9
Balance as at 31

Particular!

Gross value

as at March 3 8.07

33.79

28.70 47.06

17.70

Buildings Total

47.06

141.72

4

Batance as at Aprit 01, 2023

Addition on account of acquisition

{Refer note 55)

80,85

76as at March ll, 2024

Accumulated depreciation

Batance as at Aprit 01, 2023

Charge for the year 11.04

as at

1.72 9.12

.o2 9.32

27.68

5 Capihl

31,

value as at 31

tcwrP)

Particulars cwlP

Balance as at Apri( 01, 2021

Addition on account of acquisition
(Refer note 55)

Additions
CaDitatised

41.85

100.10

G7.18)

Mumbai

Balance as et March 31, 2024 306.57
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6 lnvestment

Particularr
Freehold

lands
Leaseholdlands Buildings

Electric
inrtallation5

office
eouioments

Furniture and

Fixtures
Computers TotalPlant and

machineries

Gross carrying value

Balance as at Aprit 01, 2023

Addition on account of acquisition
(Refer note 55)

Additions

51,048.32

145.81

300.96

10.24

177.57

1 3.85

62,040.04

1.40

20,,103.00 12.18

5.76

3,487.31

100.52

3.61

0.28

139,473.21

277.86

at March 31 2024

Accumulated dePreciation
Batance as at Aprit 01, 2023

charge for the year 4.09 300.86 809.28 45.46 5.05 l't.90 422.46

1.89 1

1.72 1,620.87
12.1

2.17 1
Batance as at March

037.35

7 lnvestment property under development ('IPUD')

Particulars IPUD

Batance as at Aprit 01, 2023

Addition on account of acquisition 
62.85

(Refer note 55)

Additions 95 93

capitatised (63.90)

DisDosats / Adiustments (55.86)

Balance as at March 31, 2024 39.02

265.74 3.09 ,t59.47

8 Other lntangible Assets

Particulars I Obl

Gross carrying value

Batance as at Aprit 01, 2021

Addition on account of acquisition 5.87 37,822'54 37 
'82a 

41

(Refer note 55)

Additions 21.85 100 08 '.. -- 123 93

m 29.72 1oo.o8 37,82254 37,95214

Accumulated ammorti5ation
Batance as at April 01, 202]

1.55 11.12 .40

Balance as at
Net value as at 2024 26-17 5.14 580.

Software and Other lntangible
license Assets

Customer
Contracts

Mumbai
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9 lnvestment accounted for using equity method

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

10,409 (March 31,2023: Nit) equity shares of Rs.10 each futty paid of lndore 2,111 .47

Treasure lstand Private Limited

Total 2,111.47

10 Loans - Non-current

Particulars
As at

fttarch 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good

I nter-corporate deposits
- Retated parties (Refer note 52) 863.50

863.50Total

1 1 Other non-current financial assets

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months*

Receivable from [and owner

302.77

102.59

25.45

430.81Total
* inctudes fixed deposits of Rs. 87.50

loan.

miltions (March 31, 2023: Nit ) pertai ning to debt service reserve account as lien against term

1 2 Tax assets (net)

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

Non-current
Advance tax (net of provision for tax)

Current

1,080.92

1 08.90Advance tax (net of Provi sion for tax)

Total 1,189.82

1 3 Other non-current assets

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

Unsecured, considered good

Capitat advances

Batances with statutory / Government authorities

Lease equatisation reserye

26.48

5.37

6.79

6.67Prepaid expenses

Total 45.31

Mumbai
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14 lnventories

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31, 2023

(At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)

Completed property (office space)

Food, beverages and operating suppties

Others

7.60

7.60

18.29

1.93

20.22

27.82Total

15 Current lnvestments

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 3'l ,2023

At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

lnvestments in mutual funds* 9,733.77

9 733.77Total
*i Rs.72.13 mi ions pertaining to debt service reserve account as lien term loan 3: Nit)1,

16 Trade receivables

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Credit impaired

474.22

182.00

127.39

lmpairment allowance

Allowance for expected credit loss

Total Trade receivables

783.61

(127.39',)

656.22

'l 7 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
As at

March 31,?024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current account

in deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months

3.68

348.60

41.76

0.10

394.O4 0.10
Total

Mumbai
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18 Other bank balances

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Deposits with originat maturity of more than three months but less than 12 303.05

49.04

436.78

0.1 1

months *

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months

Batance with banks in escrow account

Earmarked batances with bank#
788.98Total

* includes fixed dePosits of Rs 239 75 millions towards bank guara ntee (March 31, 2023: NIL)

# pertains to unclaimed distribution account

19 Loans - current

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good

lnter-corporate dePosits
150.00Refer note 52)- Retated Parties (

150.00
Total

20 Other current financia[ assets

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

U nsecured, considered good

lnterest accrued on

- bank deposits
- security dePosits

Unbitted receivabtes

Receivabte from land owner

Other receivabtes

- related parties (Refer note 52)#

- others

43.28

6.41

412.81

0.91

11.18

3. 59

264.96

478.18 264.96
Total
# Batance as at March 31,2023 pertains to issue expenses recoverable from selling unithotders

21 Other current assets

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31,2023

Unsecured, considered good

Batances with statutory / government authorities

Advances to suPPtiers

Advances to emPloYees

Lease equalisation reserve

Prepaid expenses

219.44

53.69

2.65

17.80

149.96 18.29

167.71
Unit issue expenses (

Total

to the extent not written off or adjusted)
443.54 186.00

Mumbai
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22 corpus
Rs million

Particulars
Balance as at August 10, zozz

0.10
received during the Period note 52)

0.10
as at

0.10
Balance as on April 01, 2023

Movement the (Refer note 52)
0.10

23 Unit
Units Rs million

Particulars
Balance as on April 01, 2023

tlnits issued durine the oeriod

- pursuant to the initiat pubtic offer, issued, subscribed and futty paid-up in cash

- in exchange for equity interest, redeemabte preference shares and computsory convertibte debentures of SPVs and

joint venture (refer note 1 )

1 40,000,000

1,375,000,000

1 4,000.00

1 37,500.00

Less : Units issue (refer note betow)

as 1 .51 5.000.000 1 50.950.21

Note : Issue expenses pertaining to the lnitiat pubtic Offering have been reduced from the unit capitat in accordance with lnd'AS-32 Financial lnstruments: Presentation

Terms / rights attached to Units

tiability when the same is approved by the Manager.

has not issued any units for consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation titl the batance sheet date, except as disctosed above'

24 Other Equity
Retained

Particulars
Balance as at August

Loss for the period
r29-51)

as at

Balance as on April 01, 2023

Add : Profit for the year

Less : Distribution to unitholders

as at
(1 601.811

Nature and Purpose of reserves

Retained earnings

transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings

129.51)
5,978.46

Mumbai
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25 Borrowings - Non-Current

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31,2023

At amortised cost

Term loans - secured

From banks (Refer note A)

From financiat institution (Refer note B)

Debentures - Secured (Refer note C)

Non-convertibte debentures (NCD)

Series 1- Tranche A- NCD

Series 1- Tranche B- NCD

Current maturities of long-term debt (Disclosed under the head "Current Borrowings")

Term loans from banks (Refer note 29)

20,394,94

11 ,379.24

6,951 .64

2,977.49

41,703.31

(5.20)

(5.20)

Total 41,698.11

Notes
(A) Term Loan from banks

Name of the subsidiary

Outstanding
Amount

(Rs. million)

lnterest Rate

as at March 31,
2024

Remaning Term

CSJIPL

SIPL

EDPL

9,386.59
9,436.93
1,571.42

8.0%

8.1%

8.3%

176 months
180 months
153 months

Security Terms
CSJIPL

The loan is secured by way of first charge on the lease rentat / cashftows (present and future) from the lessees and coltaterat security of

Nexus Elante Matt, Etante Office Suites and Hyatt Regency

SIPL

The loan is secured by way of first charge on the tease rentat / cashfLows (present and future) from the lessees and coltatera[ security of

Nexus Seawoods matl

EDPL

The toan is secured by first ranking charge on the future lease rentats / cashftows from lessees and identified immovabte property

pertaining to Nexus Ahmedabad One Ma[t.

Mumbai
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(B) Term loan from financial institutions
TheTrust has obtained lease rental discounting Loan ('LRD Loan') of Rs. 12,500 mittion with a fl.exi hybrid toan of Rs' 1,000 millions as a sub'

timit of LRD Loan. LRD Loan carries interest rate of B.4Q% p.a i.e. Repo Rate + Spread. LRD Loan wil.[ be repaid in 156 months which inctudes

48 months as standstit[ period.

Security Terms

The LRD loan is secured against exclusive charge on immovable properties and lease receivabtes of Nexus Hyderabad Mat[, Nexus Centre C'ity

and67.95%of totat buitdup area of Nexus Koramangata Mal.t and corporate guarantee is provided by Nexus Hyderabad Retai[ Private Limited

and Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited.

(C) Debentures - Secured

The Trust has issued fottowing redeemable non-convertibte debentures:

Particu lars Series 1 -TrancheA Seriesl-TrancheB

No. of debentures

Face Vatue (Rs.)

Coupon Rate
Tenure

Redemption date

Deemed date of Attotment

Catt Option

70,000

1 00,000

7.86% per annum payabte quarterty
3 years

June 16, 2026

June 16,2023

30th month and 33rd month from Deemed

Date of Atlotment i.e. June 16,2023.

30,000

1 00,000

8% per annum payabte quaterty

5 years

June '16, 2028

June 16, 2023

54th month and 57th month from Deemed

Date of A[totment i.e. June 16,2023.

(i) The NCDs are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

(ii) Security
The NCDs are secured against first ranking mortgage of immoveabte assets - Setect Citywatk MatL and first ranking hypothecation over the

escrow account into which att cashftows of the mortgaged property witt be deposited and hypothecation over at[ such cashftows (both

present and future).Further, Corporate Guarantee is provided by Setect lnfrastructure Private Limited capped to the vatue of its mortgaged

property.

Mumbai
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26 Other non-current financial liabitities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024 March 31 2023
As at

At amortised cost
Lease deposits

Emptoyee retated tiabitities

Advance from body corporates

Retention money

At FWPL

Catl option over Non-contro[ling interest (Refer note 1 )

1 ,019.54
42.22

22,22

1 20.53

80.42

284.93Total

27 Provisions - Non-current

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 53.55

Total 5 3.55

28 Other non-current tiabitities

Particu lars
As at

March 31,2024 March 31 2023
As at

rred lease renta[s 62.80

1.40Advance received from customers

Total 64.20

29 Current borrowings

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

Current maturities of [ong-term debt (Refer note 25)

Commercia[ Paper (refer note)

5.20

932.00

Total 937.20

Note

On March ZZ, ZOZ4, Nexus Setect Trust issued 2,000 Commerciat Papers with a face vatue of Rs. 500,000 each, at a discount of 8'03% per

annum to the face vatue. The commercial papers were tisted on BSE and wi[[ mature on February 20,2075,

30 Trade payables

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

Totat outstanding dues of micro and smatI enterprises

Total outstanding dues of trade payabtes other than micro and sma[[ enterprises

Dues to others

160.37

549.58

30.62

0.05

Dues to retated parties (Refer note 52)

Total 740.56 0.05

Mumbai
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31 Other current financial liabilities

Particulars March 31 2024
As at

March 31,2023
As at

At amortised cost

lnterest accrued
- on term loan

Lease deposits

Landowner related tiabitities

Retention money payabte

Unpaid distributions
Emptoyee retated tiabitities

Liabitity towards Corporate Social Responsibitity

Capitat creditors
Other tiabitities
- retated parties (Refer note 52)

137.40

5,775.71

6.00

38.02

0.11

87.41

12.14

21.61

9.72

12.96

480.42

- others (inctuding payable in retation to issue expenses)
6 101.08 480.42Total

32 Provisions - Current

Particulars March 31 2024
As at

March 31,2023
As at

Provision for emptoyee benefits
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences

7.02

85.42

Total 92.44

33 Current tax tiabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31,2023

Provision for tax ( net of advance tax) 95.65

Total 95.65

34 Other current tiabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024
As at

March 31,2023

Deferred lease rentals

Advance received from customers

Statutory dues

146.15

132.72

224.31

Total 503. 1 8

Mumbai
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35 Revenue from operations

Particulars

Revenue from Lease Rentals

Lease rentals

Lease equatisation income

RentaI income on discounting of Lease deposits received

Total revenue from leases (A)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Mall and Office Rentals

Maintenance Services

Marketing lncome

Parking income

lncome from sate of renewabte energy

Hospitality business

Room income

Food and beverage revenue

Others

Other operating revenue
Forfeiture, Recovery and penalty charges

Property management and consultancy service

0thers

Total Revenue ftom contracts with customers (B)

Total lA+Bl

36 lnterest income

Particulars

lnterest income on assets carried at amortised cost

- bank deposits
- security dePosits
- inter corporate deposits to retated parties (Refer note 52)

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ZO23

3,751.25

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2023

For the quarter
ended

March 31- 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the half year
ended

lrtarch 31 - 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

3,534.17
(3.33)

5't.75

7,285.42

2.58

102.40

7,390.40

1,985.74

568.34

294.97

3-56

2,a52.61

693.59

71.49

3,617.69

1 1.OO8.09

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

5.505.39

1,532.07

37'1.69

242.55

22.01

2,168,32

453-OZ

2,8.96

2,650.30

8.1 55.70

For the half year
ended

September 30,2073

5,404.',t0

2't.99

79.30

12,689.52

24.57

18't.70

12,895.79

3,517.81

940.03

537.52

25.57

5,020.93

984.01

245.50

143.06

0.04

1,001 .73

322.84

1 51 .91

3.52

3.582.59

1.372.61

5.91

50.65

225.62

I to-lu
'1 1.63

1.03

18 65

3,807.81

l -480.o0

340.O4

214.47

114.36

11.21

30.16

0.63

21.07

353.55

440.09

230.66

22.84

292.76

147.53

12.73

't,146.61

732.85

378.19

35.57

33.03

0.63

66.79

31 .19

0.63

39.67

1.84

27.12

51.81

1.764-46

5-347 -O5

For the quarter
ended

March 31,2024

1 9.68

1,853.23

5.661.04

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ZO23

100.45

6,267.99

19.163-74

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

Other lnterest income on

- income tax refund

- others

18.12

3.56

22.38

17 .99

2.19

22.71

36.1 1

5.75

45.O9

94.34

7.'t1

21.20

'130.45

12.86

66.29

2.95

0.28

Mumbai

1 25.88172.6470.64 ?48.5652.O4Total

26.27

0.31

8.99
0.'t6

35.26

0-47

38.21
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37 Other lncome

Particulars

Gain on sale of financial assets classified at FVTPL

Net gain on fair value changes

Liabilities written back

Provision for expected credit loss written back

Sal.e of Scrap

Misce[[aneous income

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ?073

For the quarter
ended

March 31,2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, Zo23

97.75

73.47

21.63

5.74

1.58

7.20

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the period
August 1o, 2022 to

Mtrch 31, 2023

7 1.67

1 1 8.81

3.63

(s.66)

2.65

1 50.03

16.67

2.25

0.88

1-1'l

221.70
'135.48

3.63

(3.41 )

3.53

319.45

208.95

25.26

2.33

5.'l l
6.54

38 Cost of material and comDonents consumed

Particulars

1 89.33

For the quarter
ended

March 31. 2024

170.94

For the quarter
ended

December 31, 2073

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2023

360.27

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

207.37

For the half year
ended

September 30,2OZ3

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2023

567.64

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

Cost

Total

39 Changes in inventories of finished

Particulars

Finished goods

Office space

At the beginning of the period

At the end of the oeriod

Total

consumables

qoods and work-in-Dropress

47 -81

47.41

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

48.34

4A-34

For the quarter
ended

December 31, 2023

96.15

96.1 5

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

60.00

60.o0

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2023

156.15

1 56.1 5

For the year ended
March 3 1, 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

7.60
(7.60)

7.60
(7.601

Mumbai
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40 EmDlovee benefits exoense

Particulars

Sataries, bonus and altowances

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expense

Compensated absences

staff wetfare
Total

41 and maintenance

Particulars

Power and fuet (net off recoveries)

charges

Total

42 and maintenance

Particulars

Repairs and maintenance

- ptant & machinery

- buitding
- others

Total

197.67

For the quarter
ended

March 31,2024

183.48

9.00

4.33

9.14

35.72

?41 -67

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ZOZ3

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

For the quarter
ended

December 31 - 2023

For the quarter
ended

lAarch 31,2023

For the quarter
ended

lilarch 31, 2023

For the quarter
ended

lrtarch 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

267,22

14.98

1 0.95
't5.57

48.34
357 -06

For the half year
ended

September 30, ZOZ3

For the half year
ended

l arch 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31.2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 3 1, 2023

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31,2023

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2O23

168.40

9.84

(1.6e)

(8.e4)

30.06

61 9.1 0

33.82

1 3.59

15.77

114.12

351.88

1 8.84

2.64

0.20

65.78

439-34

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

1 09.1 9

304.02

154.04

303.69

263.23

607.71

342.48

448.85

796.40

For the year ended
March 31- 2024

605-71
'1,056.56

1,662.27

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

413.21

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

221.74

457.73

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ZOZ3

216-35

470-94

For the half year
ended

March 3'1, 2024

438.1 3

791-33

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

393.77

63.01

27.59

131.18

65.40

52.70

98.25

128.41

80.29

229.43

80.69

1 56.98

1 56.1 0

209.10

237.27

385.53

831.90

Mumbai
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43 Other expenses

Particulars

Legal and professionat fees

Property tax
Rates and taxes

Marketing and promotiona[

Brokemge and commission

Management fees

Office expenses

corporate sociat responsibil.ity

Travelting and conveyance

Rent expenses - short term lease

Bad debts / Advances written off
Provision for GST recoverabte

Loss on sale / discard of PPE and investment property

Operating expenses (Landowner's share)

Foreign exchange fluctuation toss/ (gain)

Miscellaneous exDenses

Total

44 Finance costs

Paniculars

At amortised cost

lnterest expense on

- Term loan

- Lease deposits

- Debentures
- commerciaI PaPer
- Lease liabitities
- Bank overdraft
- Others

Bank charges

Total

45 and amortisation

Particulars

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments

Depreciation on lnvestment property

Depreciation on right of use assets

Amortisation of

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

For the quarter
ended

December 31,2023

For the quarter
ended

March 3'1, 2023

1 6.84

For the half year
ended

March 31,2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, ZOZ3

For the half year
ended

lr{arch 31, 2023

'16.84

For the year ended
March 31- 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2O23

606.57

For the quarter
ended

December 31 - 2OZ3

3.29

2A-94

For the quarter
ended

March 31,2023

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2023

3.29

24.94

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2023

1.933.5E

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

16.84

3.29

2,E.94

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

527.4O

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

668.18

48.92

203.29

1.88

t./o
0.11

0.98

0.88

926.00

For the quarter
ended

March 31, 2024

1.134.37

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

1,38',t.24

97 -27

409.20

1.88

3.71

0.11

1-'13

t -bl

I R96 18

For the half year
ended

March 31,2024

110.6'l

98.39

17.71

177.98

2.52

17.60

20.46

24.60

7.79

2.77

1 3.02

14.89

3.72

1 0.50

0.16

5.07

97.93

99.68

16.02

302.94

1.68

1 8.33

23.52

1 0.68

4.98

1.88

1.70

7.51

2.20

16.55

0.35

0.62

713.06

48.36

205.91

L.51

6.49

208.54

198.07

33.73

480.92

4.20

35.93

43.98

35.28

12.77

4.65

14.72

22.40

5.92

27.05

0.51

5.70

159.61

147.21

33.92

326.36

1.84

21.95

33.18

9.68
't0.46

5.14

3.36

26.71

1.34

9.78

0.32

8.35

1.29

3.33

85.55

695.92

5.71

2.32

6.49

368.1 s

345.18

67.65

807.28

6.04

57.88

77.16

44.96

23.23

9.79

1 8.08
49.1'l

7.26

36.83

0.83

14.05

2,32

6.49

799 .21

't.95

For the half year
ended

September 30,2023

1,'t43.59

80-55

242.95

3.06

0. 15

0.75

2,524.83
't77.82

652.14

1.88

6.78

0.1 1

2.42

4.97
? 370 95

For the year ended
March 31,2024

197.7'l

1,620.87
't'1.04

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

970.18

For the quarter
ended

December 31, ZOZ3

-474-77

For the half year
ended

September 30,7023

112.16

924.90

5.83
1.909.90

Mumbai

957.78 .6478Total

assets

56.25

461.80

2.90

955.83

55.91

463.10

2.93

954.07 18
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46 lncoretd
Staterent of profit and loss

Particulars

Current lncome Tax

Current tax
Tax adjustments reLating to earlier years

Deferred tax charge / (credit):

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half yar ended

itarch 3'1, 2024 December 31, 2023 lrlarch 31, 2023 ltarch 31,2024 September 30,2023 ilarch 31, 2023

562.90

For the year ended
Itarch 3'l . 2024

For the period
August'10, 2022 to

l,larch 31,2023

237.60 325.30 443.49
(8.s6)

1,006.39

(8.s6)

Deferred tax
tax

OCI Section
Deferred tax related to iteB

Particulars

in the

in ocl:

216-62

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

ttarch 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 llarch 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

,darch 31, 2023

For the year ended
llarch 3'l , 2024

70.86

For the half year
ended

ilarch 31, 2024

For the halfyear
ended

September 30, 2023

For the pedod
August 10, 2022 to

itarch 31, 2023

Statement to Other
Deferred tu related to items in ocl
lncome tax

Notes:

Mumbai
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47 Earnings Per Unit (EPU)

Particulars
For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quart r ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 l arch 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 September 30, 2023 March 31, 2023
For the year ended

llatch 31 , 2024

For the period

August 10, 2022 to
l arch 31, 2023

Profit / (Loss) year

Weighted average number of units

Earnings per unit
- Basic (Rupees/unit)

1,515,000,000 1,51 5,000,000

(29.s1 )

Refer note

2,532.14

1,5't 5,000,000

3,453.40

1,'t75,573,770

(29.51 )

Refer note 1,345,286,885 Refer note

o.97
o.97

0.71

o.71

1.67
1.67

2.94

2.94

4.45
4.45

Refer note

Refer note

Refer note
Refer noh

Refer note

Refer note

48 lnvestmentManagementfe

Property Management fee

REIT l,lanagement fee

ended l^arch 31, 2024 amounts to Rs. 3'1.68 mittion and Rs. 107.1 9 miltion respectively.

49 Secondment Fees

for computation of secondment fees paid to the l/Enager.

Mumbai
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50 Financial instruments' Fair value measurement

A, The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Particulars

2024 March 31 2024 March 31 2023 March 31 2023March 3'l

assets

At FVTPL

lnvestments in mutual funds

At amortised cost

Trade receivabtes

Cash and cash equivalents

other bank batances

Loans

Other financiat assets

656.22

394.04

788.98

863.50

656.22

394.04

788.98

863.50

9,733.77 9,733.77

0.10 0.10

99 99 264.96

265.06

264.96

1 3,495.50 13,Total

Financial liabilities
At FVTPL

Ca([ option over Non-controtling interest

At amortised cost

Borrowings (inctuding interest accrued)

Lease deposits

Trade payables

80.42

42,772.72

6,795.25

740.56

80.42

42,772.72

6,795.25

740.56

450.93

0.05

480.42

0.05

financiaI liabilities
Total 50,839.88 480.47 480.

current financiat assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts targety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

B. Measurement of fair values

The tevet of fair vatues are defined betow:

ctosing price as at the reporting period.

Little as possibLe on entity-specific estimates, lf att significant inputs required to fair vatue an lnstrument are obseryable, the instrument is inctuded in Levet 2'

Level 3: lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obseryabte market data, the instrument is inctuded in Levet 3

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

There were no transfers between Levet 1, Levet 2 or Levet 3 during the nine months ended March 31 , 2024

measurement heirarchv for asssetsQuantitative disclosures fair value
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Particulars

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

As at March 31, 2024

lnvestment in mutua[ funds

As at March 31, 2023

lnvestment in mutual funds

9,733.77 9,733.77

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL

As at March 31, 2024

Catl option over Non-controtling interest

As at March 31, 2023

80.42 80.42

Calt option over Non-controlting interest

Determination of fair values

assumptions made in determining fair vatues is disctosed in the notes specific to that asset or tiabitity.

i) The fair vatue of mutuat funds are based on NAV at reporting date.

ii) The fair vatues of other financiat assets and tiabitities are considered to be equivatent to their carrying values.

Mumbai
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51 SegmentReporting

a) Operating Fgments of Nexus select Trust are -

(i) Urban consumption cenbe Rentats (Matt Rentats),
(ii) Office Rentats,
(iii) Hospitaljty and
(iv) Others - comprising of {a) sate of office units, and {b) income from generation of renilable energy and (c) other operating revenue.

Net Operating lncome ('NOI') exctuding Ind AS adiustments is the key metric reported to the CODM for the purpoes of asFssment of the segment results.

Further, the informahon relating to Fgment as€ts and segment liabiLities are rct regularly provided to CODM for reviil and hence the same is not dislosd.

Revenue

Pafriculars

Revenue from customets

Matt Rentats

Office Rentats

Hospitality
Others

lnter-Fqment Revenue

Mall Rentals

Hospitatity

Others

Tohl Revenue

Particulars

4,725.10

294.99

34o.17

81.63

5,O37.77

276.@

353.75

71.24

(10.41 )

(0.20)

i28.47),

(0.48)

t250.971

19,163.78

For the year ended
March 31. 2024

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 i arch 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

lla.ch 31, 2024

For the half year
ended

S€ptember 30, 2023

7,263.a6

4Z't.73

453.17

123.64

(4.e3)

(0.14)

r101 6:ir

8.1 55.70

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

For the half year
ended

lr,tarch 31,2023

For the year ended
l,tarch 31, 2024

For the period
Aqgust 10, 2022 to

lrlarch 31, 2023

For the period
August 'l 0, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

9,762.aa

571.59

693.92

152.91

17,026.74

993.32
't,147.O9

276.55

(13.12)

(0.13)

(23.s3)

(0.33)

t1a9 1A\

B.

347.O5

For the quarter
ended

March 3 1. 2024

For the quarter
ended

December 31, 2023

For the q@rter
ended

March 31, 2023

'il -ooa-09

For the half year
ended

Itarch 31,2024

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

Matl

Office Rentals

Hospitatity
Others

Segment Resqlt (Net Operating lncome excluding lnd As adjEtment)
Unallocated / Non-Operating income

Unallocated / Non-Operating expenrs
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax
Finance costs

Deprtriation and amortisation expenses

Profit before share of net profit of investment accounted for using equity method and tax

Share of net profit of investment accounted for using equity method

Profit / (Loss) before tax

3,686.58

229.18

179.14

70.97

4,155.a7
308.52

{531.49)
3,94?-.90

(926.01)

3,734.90

216.4
172.11

57.63

445.58

351.45

12A.59

8,351.10
588.04

(957.93)

3,',132.24

33.66

5,401.82

297.90

199.26

97.a1

5,996.79
434.57

t754.761

5,676.59

11,474.n\

1,952.96
24.91

12,827.30

743.4
550.71

776.4
14,347.88

1,022.6'l

11.717.711

1,540.'t2
15.30

4,1A5.23

279.52

4,038.30
(970.18)

1, 11

18-16

t29.51)
(2e.5 1 )

(29.51 )

7,9a1.21

{1,896.1 8}

(29.s1)

(2e.51 ) 't3,657.7a
(3,370.95)

5,OE5.19

62.57

(29.s1 I

(2e.51 )

(29.511

(2e.51t3,165.90
633.77

Profit /

'1,555.42
91.85

1,9a1.a7 (29.51

Tax
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Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-2310004

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, unless otheMise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

I List of related parties as per the requirements REIT Regulations

S.No Relationship Name of Entities

(i) Sponsor
(ii) Trustee
(iii) Manager

(v) Directors and Key managerial personnel of the Manager

(Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited)

Chief Executive officer and Non - lndependent Director

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary and Comptiance Officer
lndependent Director

lndependent Director

lndependent Director

lndependent Director

Non - lndependent Director

Non - lndependent Director

Non - lndependent Director

Relative of KMP

(vi) Joint Venture

(vii) Entities controlled by Trust

Wynford lnvestments Limited

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Nexus Setect Matt Management Private Limited

(iv) Sponsor Group SSlll lndian lnvestments one Ltd

BREP Asia 5G Atpha Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SG Forum Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Forum Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll 5BS Forum Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia SG Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia sBs Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll sBs Red Fort Holding (NO Ltd

BREP Asia SG Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Kohinoor Holding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BRE Coimbatore Retait Hotdings Ltd

BREP Asia 5BS Coimbatore Retait Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SB5 Coimbatore Retail Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia ll lndian Hotding Co lX (NQ) Pte Ltd

Dalip Sehgat

Rajesh Deo

charu Patki

Atpana Parida

Jayesh Tutsidas Merchant

Michael D Hotland

Sadashiv Srinivas Rao

Tuhin Parikh

Asheesh Mohta

Arjun Sharma

Neeraj Ghei

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited (titt May 12, 2023, entity jointty

controtled by Sponsor Croup)

CSJ lnfrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by

Sponsor Group titl May 12,2023')

Chitrati Properties Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlled by

sponsor Group titl May 12,2023\

Safari Retreats Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controlted by

sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Euthoria Devetopers Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023' entity controtted

by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Naman Malt Management Company Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023'

entity controtled by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Nexus Hyderabad Retait Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023, entity

controlled by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Vijaya Productions Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023, entity controtted by

Sponsor Group till May 12,2023)

Nexus Shantiniketan Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023' entity

controtted by sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Nexus Udaipur Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023, entity controtted

by Sponsor Group tilt May 12, 2023)

Nexusmatts Whitefield Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controtted

by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Nexus Mangatore Retait Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023' entity

controtted by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Nexus Mysore Retail Private Limited (w.e.f May '13, 2023, entity controtted

by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Daksha lnfrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controtted

by Sponsor Group titt May 12, 2023)

Mamadapur Sotar Private Limited (w.e.f May 13, 2023, entity controtted by

Sponsor Group titt May'12, 2023) (Nexus South Matt Management Private

Limited, merged with Mamadapur Sotar Private Limited w.e.f. Aprit 01, 2023)

(refer note 59)

Setect lnfrastructure Private Limited (w.e.f May 1 3, 2023) (Westerty Retait

Private Limited, merged with Setect lnfrastructure Private Limited w.e.f
May 15, 2023) (refer note 59)
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Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23l00o4

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(At[ amounts are in Rs. mitlion, unless otherwise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

I List of related parties as Per the requirements REIT Regulations

S.No Relationship Name of Entities

(viii) Promoter of Trustee

(ix) Entity controlled by KMP

(x) Corporate social Responsibility (CSR) Trust of Subsidiary

(xi) Gratuity Trust of Subsidiary

Axis Bank Limited

Select Management & Consuttant LLP

Select Citywatk Retait Pvt Ltd

Setect Citywatk Charitable Trust

Select lnfrastructure Private Limited Emptoyees Gratuity Fund
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Nexus Select Trust

RN: lN/REIT/22-2310004

condensed consolidated Financial statements

Nottr to the Condensed consolidated Financial Statements

(At[ amounts are in Rs. mittion, untess otheruise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

ll Transactions and Batances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (l)

Particulars

lncome
Marketing lncome

Setst Citywal.k Retait Pvt Ltd

lnterest lncome from lntercorporate Deposits Given

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

Dividend lncome

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

lnterest lncome from bank deposits

Axis Bank Limited

Revenue from Maintenance services

Settrt Citywatk Retait Pvt Ltd

Room income (Hospitality Business)

Nexus Setct llatt lrtanagement Private Limited

Management fees recoverable

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

Lease rentals

Settrt Citywatk Retait Pw Ltd

Reimbursement of income

Nexus Settrt Matt Management Private Limited

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

For the hatf year
ended

september 30, 2023

21.21

For the hatf year
ended

March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31. 2023

2.18

22.38

'10.41

3.71

2.53

0.58

o.24

39.17

1.87

1.29

22.71

6.87

2.18

45.@

10.41

10.58

4-96

0.72

o.47

68.01

o.14

0.23

78.U

50.47

4-12

0.20

0.18

36.54

2.18

66.29

10.41

6't-05

9.08

o.92

0.65

1 04.55

1.87

1.29
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Nexus select Trust

RN: IN/REIT/ZZ-23lO004

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(At[ amounts are in Rs. mittion, untss othetrise stated)

52 Retated party disclosures

ll Transactions and Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (l)

Particulars

Expenses

lnvestment management fees

Nexus Setect lvlatt Management Private Limited

Secondment Fees

Nexus Setect lrlal( Management Private Limited

lnterest on Debentures
BREP Asia 5BS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia 5G Xohinoor Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

Finance Cost

Axis Bank Limited

csR Expenses

Settrt Citylvatk Charitabte Trust

Management Fees

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

Legal and professional fees

Axis Bank Limited

Nexus Set{t lrtatt Management Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

Nexus Setect Matt l'lanagement Private Limited

Trustee Fee Expenses

Axis Truste Services Limited

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

March 31, 2024 December 31,2023 March 31, 2023

219.94

0.30

236.70

0.30

456.65

0.60

345.30

o.46

0.01

5.29

0.00

(0.00)

1.39

(0.76)

82.40

1,-1,2

0.76

0.23

111 .93

0.39

82.,{0

o.z2

2.51

801.95

1.06

0.01

5.29

0.00

2U.91

o.22

4.54

1.@

For the half year
ended

March 31,2024

For the half year
ended

september 30, 2023

202.5'2.

2.O2

1.@

0.85

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the period
August lO, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

0.39

19.4
o.62

131.32

0.29

1 35.50

0.9'l

266.a2

0.59

123.26

0.50 0.89 1.74
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Nexus Select Trust

RN: lN/REIT/22-23l0004

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rs. mitlion, untess otherwise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

Il Transactions and Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (l)

Particulars

Assets

lnter corporate deposit Siven
lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

lnter corporate deposit received

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

Purchase consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary

BREP Asia SG Kohinoor HoLding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll 5BS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

lnvestment in joint venture
lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

Repayment of security deposit

Nexus Setect Mall Management Private Limited

lnvestment / (Redemption) in bank deposits

Axis Bank Limited

Liabilities
Borrowings repaid
Axis Bank Limited

Redemption of Debentures (including interest)
BRE Coimbatore Retail. Hotdings Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia 5G Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Vlll sBs Kohinoor Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Coimbatore Retail Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Coimbatore Retait Hotding (NQ) Ltd

Liabitities of gratuity and comPensated absences transferred

Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended

March 31 , 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

30.00

37.50

61.36

45_35

For the half year
ended

March 31,2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

1,102.00

97.O1

3,355.08

7.64

2.26

For the half year
ended

March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

91.36

82.85

1 ,1 93.36

179.86

3,355.08

7.64

2.26

2,059.31

2.97

659.21

4,515.42

1,755.99

14.55

6,378.27

4.80

4.21

162.30

12.91

7,130.91 (804.32)

4,729.94

1,326.59

4,729.94

2,059.31

2.97

(667.38)

3,785.48

1,755.99

'14.55

6,37A-27

4.80

4.21

162.30

12.91
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Nexus Select Trust

RN: lN/REIT/22-23l0004
Condensed Consolidated Financial statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(Att amounts are in Rs. mittion, unles5 otherwise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

ll Transactions and Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (l)

Particulars

Equity

lssue of unit capital
(in exchange of the lnvestment in equity shares of SPvs and joint
venture)

BRE Coimbatore Retait Hotdings Ltd

BREP Asia ll lndian Hotding Co lX (Nq Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Coimbatore Retail Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Forum Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Red Fort HoLding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Asia 5G Forum Holding (Nq) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia 5G Red Fort Hol.ding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Vlll 5BS Coimbatore Retait Hotd'ing (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Forum Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Ltd

SSlll lndian lnvstments One Ltd
Wynford lnvestments Limited

Seltrt Management & Consuttant LLP

Arjun Sharma

Neeraj chei

Subscription to intial corpus

Nexus Setect MaLl Management Private Limited

Unit issue expenses

Axis Bank Limited

Distribution paid (net of TDs)

Wynford lnvestments Limited
Sslll lndian lnvestments One Ltd

BREP Asia SG Forum Holding (NQ Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SG Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Pte Ltd

BREP Asia SBS Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Ltd

BREP Vlll SBS Red Fort Hotding (NQ) Ltd

8RE Coimbatore Retait Holdings Ltd

BREP Asia ll lndian Hol.ding Co IX (NQ) Pte Ltd

Setect [lanagement & Consuttant LLP

Arjun Sharma

NeeEj Ghei

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended
March 3'1, 2024 December 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

For the half year
ended

March 31,2024

For the half year
ended

September 30, 2023

4,216.06

28,872.60

9.47

10.51

50.69

4,760.91

22,960.65

4.49

6.45

31.13

7,c/.0.11

9,152.07

17,564.34

570.83

8,454-47

o.2z

For the halfyear
ended

March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31 . 2024

For the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31,2023

0.10

4,216.06

28,872.60

9.47

10.51

50.69

4,760.91

22,960.65

4.49

6.45

7,e/.0.11

9,152.07

12,564.34

570.83

8,454.47

0.10

o-27

179.48

1 38.06

89.46

267.44

0.33

0.20

40.22

566.32

242.49

1 't.01

1U-84

268.80

206.76

1 33.98

400.52

0.50

0.3'1

60.23

848.1 3

39.33
'16.55

247.15

44a.28

344.82

223.44

667.95

0.83

0.5'l

100.45

1,414.45

606.83

27.56

411.99

448.28

344.42

223.44

667.95

0.83

0.51

1 00.45

1,414.45

605.83

27.56

411 .99
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Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23 lOOO4

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rs. mitlion, untess otherwise stated)

52 Related party disclosures

ll Transactions and Balances outstanding with Related Parties as defined in (l)

Balances at the end of the Period

Particulars
As at

March 31 ,2024
As at

March 31,2023

Assets

lnvestment accounted for using equity method

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

lntercorporate deposits receivab le

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

lnvestments in bank dePosits

Axis Bank Limited

lnterest accrued on bank dePosits

Axis Bank Limited

Other receivables from related party

Nexus Setect MalI Management Private Limited

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

Setect lnfrastructure Private Limited Employees Gratuity Fund

Trade receivables

Nexus Select Mat[ Management Private Limited

Balances with bank

Axis Bank Limited
Advances to suppliers

Nexus Setect Mat[ Management Private Limited

Other Payables

Nexus Select Malt Management Private Limited

lndore Treasure lsland Private Limited

CSJ lnfrastructure Private Limited

Westerty Retail Private Limited

Chitrati Properties Private Limited

Safari Retreats Private Limited

Euthoria Developers Private Limited

Naman Mal[ Management Company Private Limited

Nexus Hyderabad RetaiI Private Limited

Vijaya Productions Private Limited

Nexus Shantiniketan RetaiI Private Limited

Nexus Udaipur Retait Private Limited

Nexusmalls Whitefietd Private Limited

Nexus Mangalore Retait Private Limited

Nexus Mysore RetaiI Private Limited

Daksha lnfrastructure Private Limited

Mamadapur Sotar Private Limited

lssue Expenses

Receivables towards issue expenses incurred on behalf of selling unithotders

Trade payables

lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited

Nexus Select Ma[[ Management Private Limited

Equity
Subscribtion to intial corPus

Nexus Setect Mal[ Management Private Limited

2,111 .47

1,013.50

119.59

7.71

0.26

0.13

10.79

0.03

30.42

0.43

9.72 123.26

0. s9

194.41

0.59

9.15

0.59

3.54

0.59

2.47

0.74

1.45

1.17

1.83

1.45

1.45

16.18

0.1 5

0.64

29.98

264.96

Mumbai
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Nexus Seltrt Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23lo004
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(A[[ amounts are in Rs. miLl.ion, untess otheruise stated)

SEBUHO/DDHS/DDHSlClWPl2OlAlTl dated APril 1 3, 2018 (as amended from time to time)

S.No Ratios

(a) debt-equity ratio

(b) debt service coverage ratio

(c) interest service coverage ratio

(d) outstanding redeemabte preference shares

(e) capitat redemption reserue/debenture redemption reserue

(f) net worth

(g) net profit after tax

(h) earnings per share (Basic/Dituted)

(i) current ratio

(j) tong tem debt to working capitat

(k) bad debts to account receivabte ratio

(t) current tiabitity ratio

(m) totat debts to totat assets

(n) debtors' turnover (in days)

(o) operating margin percent

(p) net profit margin percent

(q) asset cover ratio

(r) inventory turnover (in days)

As avFor the quarter As avFor the quarter As avFor the quarter

ended ended ended

March 31, 2024 December 3'1, 2023 March 31, 2023

As avFor the half year
ended

March 31, 2024

As avFor the hatf year
ended

September 30, 2023

As avFor the half year
ended

March 31, 2023

As auFor the year
ended

March 3'1,2024

As avFor the period
August 10, 2022 to

March 31, 2023

0.29

4.46

4.50

NA

NA

1 49,348.50

1,463.58

0.97

1.5'1

9.70

0.03

0.16

o.?.1

11.17

77.91v"

76.10%

6.30

51.98

o.27

3.85

4.39

NA

NA

150,921.99

1,068.55

0.71

1.59

8.93

(0.00)

0.15

0.20

1 1.56

73.93v"

18.'t6%

NA

49.83

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

129.411

(2e.sl )

NA

o.94

NA

NA

1.00

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

o.z9

4.13

4.45

NA

NA

1 49,348.50

2,532.14

1.67
'1.5'l

9.70

0.03

0.16

o.2'l

12-70

75.86%

22.O47"

5.30

59.12

0.27

3.29

4.08

NA

NA

54,374.21

3,453.40

2.94

1.87

5.36

(0.00)

0.15

0.20
'13.28

73.53"A

40.68%

6.23

77.96

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

\29.41)
(29.51)

NA

o.94

NA

NA

1.00

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

o.29

3.73

4.29

NA

NA

149,348.50

5,985.53

4.45

1.51

9.70

0.02

0.16

o.z1

12.53

74.87%

29.96%

6.30

65-21

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

(19.41)

(29,511

NA

0.94

NA

NA

1.00

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(c)

(h)

(i)

(i)

(k)

(t)

(m)

The fottowing definitions have ben considered for the purpose of computation of ratios and other information

Debt Equity Ratio = Totat borrowings 1l unithotders' Equitf

not refinanced excluding repayment made of overdraft facitityl

Net worth = Unithotder's Equity2

Current ratio = Current assets/ Current tiabitities

Long term debt to working capitat ratio = Long tem debt3/ working capitat{

Current tiabitity ratio = Current Liabititis/ Totat tiabitities

Totat debt to totat assets = Total. debt5/ Totat assets

Debtors Turnover = (Revenue from operations * no. of days) / Average trade receivable

Bad debts to account receivabte ratio = Bad debts (inctuding provision for doubtfut debts) / Average trade reeivable

Operating marg'in = Net operating income (excluding lnd AS adjustments) / Revenue from operations

Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional items and tax/ Total revenue

Assetcoverntio= FairvatueofGrossAssets/Tota(borrowings*(excludingprocssingfes)

turnover ratio = (Cost of food, beverages and other consumabts* no. of days) / Average inventory of food, beverage and other operating supPties

ngs = Non-current borrowings + current borrowings + Accrued interest

= Unit Capitat - Other equity * Corpus

= Non-current borrowings (exctuding current maturities of non-current debt) + lnterest accrued on debts (Non-current)

= current asset - Current tiabilities

Mumbai
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Nexus Select Trust
RN: lN/REIT/22-23lOoO4

Condensed Consolidated FinanciaI Statements

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated FinanciaI Statements
(At[ amounts are in Rs. mi[[ion, untess otherwise stated)

54 Contingent tiabilities and commitments

Particu Iars
As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

993. s6

309.1 3

779.42

286.32

2,368.43

ln respect of Bank guarantee

Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of
advances) and not provided for

a) SRpL had constructed a buitding comprising of Matt, Hotet and Office space ('Proiect') at Bhubaneshwar under a composite construction contract. Further,

sRpL had entered into agreement for sale of office and hotet space and leases for renting the matt to earn rental income' ln the eartier years, sRPL had

avaited CENVAT credit on att input services used in construction of the project. Further, white discharging its service tax tiabitity on the advance received

from customers towards the sale of office and hotet space, SRPL avaited abatement as per Notification no. 261 2012 dated June 12, 2012 under the erstwhite

service tax regime. ln retation to the aforesaid utilisation of credit and abatement, SRPL had, in the eartier years, received a demand cum show cause notice

from the Office of the Commissioner (Audit), GST and Central Excise amounting a total of Rs. 297.09 mittion'

During the year ended March 31, 2020, sRpL had received a demand dated January 27, 2070 from the office of the Principal Commissioner, GST and Centrat

Excise confirming the aforementioned demand and imposing a penalty of equivalent amount. SRPL has fited an appeal against the said order before Customs,

Excise and Service Tax Appettate Tribunat (CESTAT) and has deposited Rs. 22.2'l mittion towards mandatory pre-deposit for appeat. The management believes

that SRPL has merits in the said case and accordingty no provision is required in the condensed consotidated financiat statements'

b) During the Fy 2020,21, CSJIpL received a show cause notice from the Commissioner of GST and Central Excise amounting to Rs. 119.52 million (exctuding the

interest and penatty) on account of demand of service tax on the sate of office space and certain CENVAT Credit for the period October 2014 to June 2017 by

invoking the extended period of timitation. csJlpL had fitted writ petition in Hon'bte High court of Chandigarh chattenging the vatidity of said show cause

notice issued under the repeated act. However, order was passed by the Commissioner against CSJIPL with 100% penatty on February 21, 7072. Against the

said order, a revised writ was fitted in High Court on March 03, 2022.

Based on the fact of the case, management believes that CSJIPL has merits in the said case and accordingty no provision is required in the condensed

consolidated financiaI statements.

c) VppL, for the Ay 2007-08 had received an assessment order dated June 28, 2010 which had capitat gains amounting to Rs. 2,320 mittion added to the taxable

income of VppL. The total demand payabte inctuding interest amounted to Rs. 691.18 mittion (advance tax and tax deducted at source amounting to Rs.

10.00 mittion) as per the assessment order received. VPPL had appeated against the assessment order to the lncome Tax Appetlate Tribunal ("|TAT") by

making a payment of Rs. 10 miltion as tax paid under protest. VPPL received an order from the ITAT dated November 75,2011 wherein the ITAT has

disagreed with the assessment order and passed an order in the favour of VPPL. As a resutt, VPPL did not have capital gains and hence there was no tax

tiabitity. VppL subsequentty received a refund order dated December 11,2012 for repayment of tax which was paid under protest.

ln Fy 2015-16, the lncome tax department had fited an appea[ before the Honorable High Court at Madras against the order passed by the ITAT for the AY

2007-0g and VppL had received a notice dated January 28, 2016 on this matter. VPPL has appointed a [ega[ firm and contested the matter. The management

betieves, based on the tegat representative's representation, that the amount demanded witt not be sustained. The matter is currently pending with the

Hon'bte High Court of Madras.

d) The Amritsar Municipat Corporation ("AMC"), vide its Order dated October 03,7027, had raised a demand of Rs. 286.32 miltion towards Property Tax on EDPL

for the years Fy ZO14-15 titt Fy 2019-Z0.The amount inctudes 100% penatty. EDPL has fited a writ petition in the High Court of Punjab and Haryana,

Chandigarh praying, inter atia, for (a) stay on the said Order dated October 03, 7022 and (b) chattenge the vires of the statutory provision'

The Court vide its Order dated December 05, ZO27 has directed the authorities to not to take any coercive steps against EDPL pursuant to order dt. October

Ctaims against the SPVS not acknowledged as debts

Contingent liabilities in respect of
GST/Input Tax credit (inctudes matter mentioned in note a betow)

Service-Tax matters (inctudes matter mentioned in note b betow)

lncome-Tax matters (inctudes matter mentioned in note c below)

Property-Tax matter (refer note d betow)

Total contingent liabilities

107.48

179.83

03, 2022, and for
The management

deciding, inter-atia, the appticabitity of the appropriate provision.

believes that EDPL has merits in the said case and accordingty no provision is required in the condensed consolidated financial statements

.*

Mumbai
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(Att amounts are in Rs. miltion, unless otherwise stated)

55 Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint venture entity
I Asset Acquisition

On May 12, 2023 Nexus Select Trust entered into share acquisition agreements with sharehotders of SPVs for acquisition of equity interest, redeemabte

preference shares and computsorily convertibte debentures as described in more detaiI in Note 1 - Organization structure; in exchange for units of Nexus

Select Trust and payment of cash consideration amounting to Rs. 147,734.47 mittion (the "Purchase consideration"). The management has apptied the

optional concentration test, under lnd AS 103, and conctuded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantiatty all of the

fair vatue of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties and related assets, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, the

acquisition has been accounted for as an asset acquisition'

The management has identified and recognized the individuat identifiabte assets acquired and tiabitities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration

to the individuat identifiabte assets and tiabitities on the basis of their retative fair vatues at the date of acquisition.

The attocated vatue of the identifiable assets and tiabitities of the SPVS as at the date of acquisition were:

Particulars Rs. Million

Assets
Property, ptant and equipment

lnvestment property

lnvestment property under devetopment

Right of use assets

CapitaI work-in-progress

Other lntangible Assets

Other Assets

Total Assets (A)

Liabilities
Borrowings (inctuding current maturities of (ong term borrowings)

Other Iiabitities
Toral Liabilities (B)

Net Assets (A-B)

6,465.92
139,473.23

62.85

80.85

43.85

37,828.40

1 8,090.05

202,O45.15

43,023.52

11,287.15

54,310.67
147,734.47

ll lnvestment in Joint venture
on May 12, 2023 (the acquisition date), Nexus Setect Trust has acquired 50% of the equity interest of lndore Treasure lstand Private Limited ('lTlPL') in

exchange for units of Nexus Setect Trust amounting to Rs. 2,059.31 mittion.

56 Detaits of utilisation of proceeds of IPO are as follows:

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus
Proposed
Utilisation

ActuaI utilisation upto Unutilised amount as

Match 31, 2024 at March 31, 2024

Partiat or futl repayment or prepayment and redemption of
certain financial indebtedness of the asset SPVs and the joint
venture.

Acquisition of stake and redemption of debt securities in

certain asset SPVS

2,500.00 2,500.00

10,037.64 10,032.64

General and REIT issue 36 1,467.36

Tota 1 4,000.00 1 4,000.00

57 Detaits of utilisation of proceeds of Non Convertible Debentures are as follows:

Objects of the issue as per the information memorandum
Proposed
Utitisation

Actual utilisation upto Unutilised amount as

March 31, 2024 at March 31,2024

Providing loans to the SPVs for repaying their debts,
refurbishment expenses, working capital requirements and for
generaI corporate requirements.

1 0,000.00 1 0,000.00

Total 10,000.00 1 0,000.00

Mumbai
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58 Financial lnformation of the Manager

Considering that the net worth of the Manager entity has been materiatty eroded as on 31st March 2024, the disctosure of summary financial

information of the Manager entity, as required by the SEBI master circutar SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2i P/CIR/2023/116 dated Juty 6, 2023 is as

fo[lows:

I Sum Batance Sheet as at March 3'1,2024

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
As at As at

Particu lars

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Other intangibte assets

Financiat assets

- Other financiat assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Non-current tax assets (net)

8.19

21 .15

1.68

9.21

36.16

2.62

11.56

66.21

1 35.85

7.98

1 3.33

54.64

244.64 123.94

Current assets

Financial assets

- Trade receivabtes

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Other financial assets

Other current assets

34.88

19.77

38.44

14.38

20.75

4.69

145.91

8.91

'to7.47 1 80.26

Total Assets 352.11 304.20

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Capitat

Other equity

1 50.1 0

(120.71

1 50.1 0

(33.e1 )

29.39 116.19

Liabilities

Non-current liabitities

Financiat tiabitities
- Borrowings

- Lease liabitities

Provisions

1 00.00

5.39

13.42

21.13

10.44

1 18.81 31.57

rrent liabilities

nanciat [iabitities
- Lease liabitities
- Trade payabtes

Dues to micro enterprises and smatl enterprises

17.09 14.65

Dues to others

- Other financiaI tiabilities

Provisions

2.59

28.39

90.64

34.69

30.51

23.63

60.88

79.09

28.19current tiabitities
203.91 156.44

Liabitities 322.72 188.01

and Liabilities 352.'.|1 304.20

Mumbai
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(Att amounts are in Rs. mitlion, untess otherwise stated)

58 Financial lnformation of the Manager

ll Summary Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2024

For the year
ended

March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023Particu lars

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and tax

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax

ExceptionaI ltems

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Revenue from operations

Other income

(1 10.e2)

12)

7.32 0.62

lncome

52

(4s.82)

860.95 389.58

971.87

(147.oo)

7.32

.81

o.62

(31.8

Deferred tax (credit) / charge

expense:

(4s.82)

41 8.55

(1 3.33 )

(1 3.33)

15.26

20.82

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Other expenses

856.54

4.41

385.76

3.82

783.90

187.97

(147.oo)

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that witt not be rectassified subsequentty to profit or [oss

Re-measurement gain / (toss) on defined benefits obligations

lncome tax retating to above item

other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

303.44

115.1 I

(28.97',)

2. s0

1 4.35

(32.491

Mumbai
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59 capital Reduction and Restructuring schemes

I Capitat Reduction

(i) The fottowing SpV,s have fited petitions for capitaI reduction under section 66 read with section 52 and other appticabte provisions of the companies Act,

2013 to obtain approvat of National Company Law Tribunat (NCLT):

- CSJIPL
- NURPL
- NWPL
. CPPL

NCLT has passed an adverse order for csJlpl. However, this witt not have any impact on condensed consolidated financial statements. out of the

remaining, subsequent to March 31,2024, capital reduction scheme for CPPL and NURPL have been approved by the NCLT. NWPL petition is pending with

NCLT for approvat.

(ii) NHRPL had fited petition under section 66 and other appticabte provisions of the companies Act, 2013 to obtain approval of National company Law Tribunal

for reduction of share capitat. The said scheme *u, upprou"j on August 11,2073. The said capital reduction has no significant impact on condensed

Consotidated FinanciaI Statements.

ll Restructuring
ln accordance with section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, fottowing schemes of amatgamation (the "Scheme") was filed for

amalgamation, on fast track basis, between whotly owned subsidiary company and their respective Hotding company :

- Merger of NSMMPL, hotding company with MSPL, subsidiary company - The appointed date as per the Scheme is Aprit 1, 2023, which was approved by

Regionat Director on Juty 28, 2023. The said merger has no significant impact on Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements'

- Merger of WRPL, subsidiary company with SIPL, hotding company - The appointed date as per the Scheme is May 15, 2023, which was approved by Regional

Director on october 12,7023. The said merger has reiutted in change in tax base of lnvestment property resutting in recognition of deferred tax asset

amounting to Rs. 1,51g.31 mittions (Refer note 46). There is no other significant impact of the said merger on condensed consotidated Financial

Statements.

60 rhe Trust was incorporated on August 10, zozz. Accordingty, the comparative figures have been disctosed from the date of incorporation. Further, the Trust

acquired the SpVs/lnvestment Entity by issuing units on May 17,2023. Accordingty, the previous year numbers are not comparable' The figures for the

comparative period from August 10, 2022 to March 31, 2023 and quarter and hatf year ended March 31, 2073, as reported in these condensed conso[idated

financiat statements have been compiled by the management.

61 The financiat information for the quarter and hatf year ended March 31 are the batancing figures between audited figures in respect of year ended March 31

and the unaudited figures upto December 31 and September 30 respectivety'

62 The figures of previous year have been reclassified/ regrouped for better presentation in the financial statements and to conform to the current year's

classifications / disctosures. This does not have any impact on the profits / (toss) and hence, no change in the basic and dituted earnings per share of

previous year,

As per our report of even date
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SR BC & COLLP 
Chartered Accountants 

12th Floor, The Ruby 
29 Senapati Bapat Marg 
Dadar ( West) 
Mumbai - 400 028, India 

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000 

Independent Auditor's Report on Security Cover, Compliance with all Covenants and book value 

of assets as at March 31, 2024 pursuant to Regulation 56(1)(d) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) and SEBI Circular 

dated May 19, 2022 for submission to Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (the 'Debenture Trustee') 

To 

The Board of Directors 
Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited 
(formerly known as Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited) 
(Acting in its capacity as Manager of Nexus Select Trust) 
501, B Wing, Embassy 247, 
LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, 

Mumbai 400083 

1. This Report is issued in accordance with the terms of the service scope letter dated July 20,

2023 and master engagement agreement dated July 20, 2023, as amended with Nexus

Select Mall Management Company Private Limited (hereinafter the "Manager"),

2. We, S R B C & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants, are the statutory auditors of Nexus Select

Trust (the 'Trust") and have been requested by the Trust to examine the accompanying

Statement showing 'Security Cover as per the terms of Debenture Trust Deed, Compliance

with Covenants and book value of assets' in relation to 70,000 listed, secured, redeemable

and non-convertible Series I (Tranche A) debentures having face value of Rs. 1 lakh each 

amounting to Rs. 7,000 million and 30,000 listed, secured, redeemable and non-convertible

Series I (Tranche B) debentures having face value of Rs. 1 lakh each amounting to Rs. 3,000

million (hereinafter together referred to as "NCDs") issued by the Trust as at March 31, 2024

(hereinafter the "Statement") which has been prepared by the Management of the Manager

(the "Management") from the audited Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as

at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 and audited Condensed Consolidated Ind AS

Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024, underlying books of

account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust as at and for the

year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to the requirements of the Regulation 56(1 )(d) of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and

SEBI Circular dated May 19, 2022 on Revised format of security cover certificate, monitoring

and revision in timelines (hereinafter the "SEBI Regulations and SEBI Circular"), and has been

initialed by us for identification purpose only.

This Report is required by the Trust for the purpose of submission with Catalyst Trusteeship 

Limited (hereinafter the "Debenture Trustee') of the Trust to ensure compliance with the 

SEBI Regulations and SEBI Circular in respect of its NCDs. The Trust has entered into an 

agreement with the Debenture Trustee vide agreement dated June 14, 2023 (the "Trust 

Deed"). 

SR 8 C & CO LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB·4318 
Regd. Office: 22, Camac Street, Block ·s·, 3rd Floor, Kolkata·700 016 

     ANNEXURE II



SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Nexus Select Trust 
Page 2 of 6 

Management's Responsibility 

3. The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management including the

preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records and

documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of

internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying

an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

4. The Management is responsible for ensuring that the Trust complies with all the relevant

requirements of the SEBI Regulations and SEBI Circular including maintenance of hundred

per cent security cover or higher security cover as per the terms of Debenture Trust Deed

sufficient to discharge the principal amount and the interest accrued thereon at all times for

the non-convertible debt securities issued. The Management is also responsible for providing

all relevant information to the Debenture Trustee and for complying with all the covenants as

prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed dated June 14, 2023 entered into between the Trust

and the Debenture Trustee.

Auditor's Responsibility 

5. It is our responsibility to provide a limited assurance and conclude as to whether the:

(a) Trust has maintained hundred percent Security cover or higher Security cover as per

the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed;

(b) Trust is in compliance with all the covenants (including financial covenants) as

mentioned in the Debenture Trust Deed as at March 31, 2024;

(c) Book values of assets as included in the Column F of Annexure 1 to the Statement and

column F of Annexure 2 to the Statement are in agreement with the books of account

underlying the audited Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and audited

Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements respectively of the Trust as at

March 31, 2024.

6. We have performed an audit of the Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS Financial

Statements of the Trust for the year ended March 31, 2024, prepared by the Management

pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended including any guidelines and

circulars issued thereunder (hereinafter referred to as the "REIT Regulations"), and issued

an unmodified opinion dated May 9, 2024. Our audit of these Condensed Standalone and

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements was conducted in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI").
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7. We conducted our examination of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. The Guidance Note requires

that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality

Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical

Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

9. Our scope of work did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing

an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the audited

Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements taken as a whole.

Accordingly , we do not express such opinion.

10. A limited assurance engagement includes performing procedures to obtain sufficient

appropriate evidence on the applicable criteria, mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The

procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less extent than for , a

reasonable assurance. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained is substantially lower

than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement

been performed. Accordingly, our procedures included the following in relation to the

Statement:

a) Obtained and read the Debenture Trust Deed and noted that as per such debenture

trust deed the Trust is required to maintain 100 percent security cover.

b) Obtained the Board approved audited Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS

Financial Statements of the Trust for the year ended March 31, 2024.

c) Traced the principal amount and the interest accrued thereon of the secured listed

NCDs outstanding as on March 31, 2024 to the Board approved audited Condensed

Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and the underlying books of

account maintained by the Trust as on March 31, 2024.

d) Obtained and read the list of security cover in respect of secured listed NCDs

outstanding as per the Statement. Traced the value of assets from the Statement to

the audited Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of

the Trust as on March 31, 2024 or books of accounts and records of the Trust

underlying the Board approved audited Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind

AS Financial Statements as on March 31, 2024.
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e) Obtained the list of security created in the register of charges maintained by the 
subsidiary company that has provided security against the NCDs and 'Form No. CHG-
1' filed with Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') by the subsidiary company in this
regard. Traced the value of charge created against Secured Assets to the Security
Cover in the attached Statement.

f) Examined and verified the arithmetical accuracy of the computation of Security Cover
in the accompanying Statement.

g) With respect to compliance with financial covenants included in Annexure 3 to the
Statement, we have performed following procedures:

i. Obtained and verified the computation of Loan to Value (LTV) of Secured Assets,
Loan to Value ratio and Net Total Debt to EBITDA ratio as computed in the
Statement with the definition as mentioned in the Debenture Trust Deed;

ii. For Net Total Debt to EBITDA and Loan to Value ratio
• Traced the Earnings before interest, depreciation and amortization expense

and tax figure from the Board approved audited Condensed Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements of the Trust as at and for the year ended March 31,
2024 and the underlying books of account maintained by the Trust;

• Traced the value of outstanding borrowings, accrued interest thereon and the
cash and cash equivalent investments from the Board approved audited
Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Trust as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the underlying books of account
maintained by the Trust;

• Traced the gross asset value of all the assets of the Trust from the valuation
report issued by an independent valuer, provided to us by the Management on
which we have placed reliance;

iii. For Loan to Value (LTV) of Secured Assets
• Traced the value of total outstanding nominal value of NCDs and interest

accrued thereon as at March 31, 2024 from the Board approved audited
Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Trust as at and
for the year then ended and the underlying books of account maintained by
the Trust;
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• Traced the cash and cash equivalent investments of the subsidiary company

whose assets are secured as considered in computing the LTV of Secured

Assets to the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents

maintained by the Trust underlying the Board approved audited Condensed

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Trust as at and for the year

ended March 31, 2024;
• In relation to calculation of LTV of Secured Asset, traced the fair value of the

secured assets from the valuation report issued by an independent valuer,

provided to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance;

iv. With respect to covenants other than those mentioned in paragraph above, the 

management has represented and confirmed that the Trust has complied with all

the other covenants, including affirmative, informative, and negative covenants,

as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed, as at March 31, 2024.

h) Traced the book value of assets from the books of accounts of the Trust underlying the

Board approved audited Condensed Standalone and Consolidated Ind AS Financial

Statements as at March 31, 2024.

i) Performed necessary inquiries with the Management and obtained necessary

representations.

Conclusion 

11. Based on the procedures performed by us, as referred to in paragraph 10 above and

according to the information and explanations received and management representations

obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the:

a) Trust has not maintained hundred percent security cover or higher security cover

as per the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed;

b) Trust is not in compliance with all the covenants (including financial covenants) as

mentioned in the Debenture Trust Deed as on March 31, 2024; and

c) Book values of assets as included in column F of Annexure 1 to the Statement and

column F of Annexure 2 to the Statement are not in agreement with the books of

account underlying the audited Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

and audited Condensed Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements respectively of

the Trust as at March 31, 2024.
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Restriction on Use 

12. The Report has been issued at the request of the Trust, solely in connection with the

purpose mentioned in paragraph 2 above and to be submitted with the accompanying

Statement to the Debenture Trustee and is not to be used or referred to for any other

person. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any

other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it

may come. We have no responsibility to update this Report for events and circumstances

occurring after the date of this report.

For S R B C & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

Partner 

Membership Number: 112773 

UDIN: 24112773BKCUOM8703 

Mumbai 

May 9, 2024 



Annexure I: Security Cover (Standalone) 

Intangible Assets under 
Development 

NCO Series 1 
(Iranche A and Bl 

Investments I Investment made by I I I I 31,010.61 I the Trust in Select 
Infrastructure Pril,ate 
Limited 

I I 14.965.00 I I I�CD Seriei l 
!Tranche A !!D� BJ 

Loans llnveslmenst made by I I I 30,99 I 
the Trust in Select 
lnlraslructure Private 
Limited 

lrwenlolin I I I 8,676 031 I I 
Trade Recejvables 
Caah and Cash 

I I I I I I �ulvolo(II< 
Bank Balances other than 
Cos� and Cash 87.50 -

Equ:iva.lont:a 
Others 149.79 0.11 
Total - 23 878.32 37 841.71 

LIABILITIES 
Debt Securities to which NCO Series 1 

I I I I 10,000.00 1 this certificate oertains lTranche A and e_\ 
Other debt shanng parT-
passu charge with above 
debl 
Olher Oebl 
SJJbordinated debt 

11.500.00 

Leasel.iBhililie.s -
PfOVl$10flS -
Others 74 20 -

Total 11.574.20 10,000.00 
ICover on Book Value 3.78 
ICov�, on M11ket Valut 4.56 

Exclusive Pari-Passu Security Security Cover Cover Ralio Ratio 

• Notes: 
1. Amount shown In Column M'Mth respect to Market value of Pari Passu charge assets is based on valuation report of assets as al March 31, 2024 

For and on b•h�lr ,Jr N
t 

Select Mall Management Private Limiled (as manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

Mumbai 

I I 

I 90.373 20 I 

I I 

I 21.348.16 I 

I 520.16 I 

- 0 11 

763.59 
1,13,005.30 

I I 

932.00 

S,55 -
1,52.402.20 I 
1,53 ,342.75 

37,810.61 

=i-1.05,338.28 

30.99 

I 30.024.19 

I 520.16 

87.61 

913.49 - 1,74,725,33 

(70.86)1 9,929.14 

1132,00 

1120.761 11 379.24 
8.55 

I 1,52,0UO 
1191.6211 1,74,725.33 

45.585 52 I I 4s.s05.52 

SIGNED FOR 

BY 

S F� B c; 8\ r�:i() LLJ=-: 
h,i� U N1 t3.t\; 

30 99 I 30,99 

◄S,616,51 



AnneJCure II: Security Cover (Consolidated} 

Column A 

Par1iculars 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

J.ol�_gibJe Assei.s 

Capital Work-in-Progress 

Right _of Use Assets 
G·oodwi11 
Intangible Assets under 
Development 
J.1westme_!l!_s 
Loans 
Inventories 
Trade Receivabfes 
Cash and Cash 

�ILITIES 

Column 8 

Description or asset 
for which this 

cenificate relate 
(plz add line item, if 

tl::'quired) 

Land together wilh 
bullding of Selecl 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited 

Debt Securities to which !Series 1 NCO 2023 
this certificate pertains (Tranche A and 8) 

Other debt sharing pari­
passu charge with above 
debl 
Other Debi 
Subord/110/ad debt 

Olh{t.,$-bofr"Owirl 

Trade f!_ayables 
Lease Liabilities 
Prcvliioi11 
Others 
Total 
Cover on Book Vatue 
Covtr on Market \lt1lue 

Notes: 

Column C (ti Column D(ii] Column E[iii] 
Exclusive Charge Exclusive Charge Pari-Passu Charge 

Debt for which 
this certificate 
being issued 

Book Value 

Exduglve 
Securily Cover 
R�Uo 

Other Secured Debt for which 

Debt this cer1ificate 
beillg issued 

Book Value Yes/ No 

16,665,21 

3,82 

45,80 

67-50 

52.56 
16,854.89 

11.500 00 

74 20 
11,574.20 

Column F[iv] 
Pari-Passu Charge 

Assets shared by pari-
passu debt holder 

(includes Debt for which 
this certificate is issued 
& Other debt with pari 

passu charge) 
Book Value 

22,743 29 

19_29 

160_62 

93,12 
23,016.32 

10,000 00 

10,000.00 

Pari-Passu Security 
Cover Ratio 

2.30 
4.59 

a. Amounl shown in line item Property, P/anl and Equipmenl in the above table include amounl pertaining lo lnveslmenl Property 

Column G[vl 
Pari-Passu Charge 

Other assels on 
which !here is pari-

passu charge 
(excluding items 

covered in column 
"F"J 

Book Value 

b. Amounl shown in line item Capilal Work-in-Progress in the above table include amount pertaining to Investment Property under development 
c. Amount shown in Column M wllh respecl to Markel value of Pari Passu charge assets is based on valuation report or assets as at March 31, 2024 

Column H[vi] Column l[vii] 

Assets not 
offered as 
Security 

1,05,Q99.54 

34.580-27 

322.46 

.lli! 
--

11,64524 
1,013-50 

27-82 
449,80 

394,04 
-

804 07 

6,63\,21 
1,61.233.39 

932.oo I 
20,394.94 l 

740,57 
78,01 

145,99 
1,57 ,430.52 
1,:,_9,722.03 

Elimination 
(amount in 
negative) 

I 
I 
I 

(70 67)1 

{120,76) 

(191.63) 

Column J Column K Column L Column M Column N Column O 
Related to only those items covered by this certiricate 

c.:;1rrymg1000� v;uuc IOf l,;arrymgmook value tor 

MarJcot V.,1lut.• 101 exclu5ivc c11ilrge as.i.ots parrl p,1ssu ch.,rge assets 
(Total c to I) A5,sats chargetJ 

where markcl v.oluc 1,;; not �M1rkf!I VBluiJ where rnllfkot vJluo 1,001 Total Value= 
on \!l!!CIU�tvt' ,l!iC<?rt.:1_ino1blc- or for Par1 Passu 45Ct!r1B

_
ln.:1blE! or (K+L+M+N) 

1,44,508.04 

34,580.27 

345,59 

65.42 

11,845,24 
1,013.50 

27.82 
656.22 

394,04 

891-57 

6,776.89 
2,0\,104.60 

9,929.13 

932.00 
20,394.94 

11,379.24 
740.57 

78.01 
145.99 

1,57,504-72 
2,01.104.60 

basis applicable. Charge A�sets a.pphc.1bl�. 
(Eg Bank b.tl.1nce, OSRA (Eg Bank bal�nce. OSRA 

atr-1 

Related to Column F 

45,585,52 

19 29 

160.62 

93_12 
-CS,581.52 273,03 

45,585,52 

19 29 

160.62 

93. 12 
45,858.55 

• lhe book value figures menlioncd above are exlracled lrom lhe consolidaled condensed financial slalements of lhc Nexus Selecl Trusl, which have been recognized al fair value as on the dale on which the said assels were acquir
:
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For and on be hair or Nl(:c
.
u�Sl(lect Mall Management Private Limited (as manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

BV 
Mumbai 

S R B C 81 CO LLP 

MUMBAI 



Nexus Select Trust 

Annexure Ill : Statement showing Compliance of Financial Covenant as at March 31, 2024 

As per terms of para 2.24 of Schedule 5 of Debenture Trust Deed(DTD) dated June 14, 2023, the financial covenants required to be complied by 

the Trust are as under: 

Financial Covenant 

As per 
S No Particulars Reference 

C 1 1 
. As per DTD 

a cu at,on 

2 

3 

Loan to value 
Net Debt to EBITDA 

Loan to value of Secured Asset 

A Loan-to-value 

S.No Particular 

i Net Total Debi 

ii Gross Asset Value 
Loan-to-value (i/ii) 

Note (i) - Net Total Debt 

S.No Particular 

I Borrowings* (Non Current & Current) 

ii Accrued interest 

Less : Consolidated Cash and Cash Equivalent Investments (Non Current & 
iii Current)** 

Net Total Debt 

* excludes lease liabilities other than finance and capital lease.

•• excludes interest accrued on fixed deposits. 

B Net Debt to EBITDA 

S.No Particular 
i Net Total Debt 
ii Adjusted EBITDA 

Net Debt to EBITDA (ilii) 

Note (Ii) - Adjusted EBITDA 

S.No Particular 

i EBITDA* 

ii Ind AS Adjustments 
Adjusted EBITDA 

*EB/TOA for the period May 13, 2023 to March 31, 2024

C Loan-to-value of Secured Assets 

S.No Particular 
i Total outstanding nominal value of debenture and accrued interest reduced by 

cash and cash equivalents investment 

ii Aggregate value of mortgaged properties as determined by Valuer in accordance 
with REIT Regulations 

Loan to value of secured assets (i/ii) 

Note (iii) 

S.No Particular 
i Nominal value of debenture 
ii Accrued interest 
iii Less : Cash and Cash Equivalent Investments 

Total outstanding nominal value of debenture and accrued interest reduced 

by cash and cash equivalents investment (i+ll-ili) 

I 

Note A 
Note B 

Note C 

Amount 
31,966 

2,53,929 
12.59% 

Amount 
42,848 

137 

(11,019) 
31,966 

Amount 

31,966 
13,452 

2.38 

Amount 
13,658 

(206) 
13,452 

Amount 
7,878 

45,586 

17.28% 

Amount 

10,000 
-

(2,122) 
7,878 

12.59% Not exceeding 49% 

2.38 Less than or equal to 
6.0x 

17.28% Not exceeding 55% 

For and on behalf of Nexus Select Mall Management Private Limited (as manager to Nexus Select Trust) 

'· 

Chie al Officer 

Mumbai 

SIGNED FOR I 
BY 

TIFICATION 

SR BC & CO LLP
MUMBAI 
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ANNEXURE III 

May 09, 2024 

To,  

The Corporate Relations Department, 

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, 

Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051 

The Corporate Relations Department, 

Department of Corporate Services, 

BSE Limited, 

25th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai − 400001 

Re: Script Symbol “NXST”, Scrip Code 543913 

Scrip Code for NCDs: 974908 and 974909, Scrip Code for CPs: 726784 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Subject: Declaration of Unmodified opinion in the Audit Report of Nexus Select Trust for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

Pursuant to Regulation 52 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we wish to inform that the Statutory Auditors of Nexus 

Select Trust have not expressed any modified opinion in the Audit Reports of Nexus Select Trust for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

Kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking you, 

For and on behalf of Nexus Select Trust acting through its Manager, Nexus Select Mall Management 

Private Limited (Previously known as “Nexus India Retail Management Services Private Limited”) 

Charu Patki 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Membership No. A18140 
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